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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plc is to maximise sharenholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investment [rust ple (the ‘Company’) was
formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated property
Avestor since 1982, The Company 1s an Investmert
Trust and its shares are premiurm I'sted on the Lordon
Stock Exchange.

Benchmark

The bencnmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in ster'ng

Investment policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by
investing in shares and securit.es of property
companies and property reiated busnesses on an
international basis, although, with a pan-Luropean
berchmark the majonty of the investments will be
located In that geographical area The Company aisc
invests ininvestiment property located inthe UK ony.

Further details of the Investment Policies, the Asset
Alocation Guidelires ard policies regarding the use of
gearing are set out In the Strategic Report on page 34
and the entire portfoiio is shown or page 27.

Investment manager

Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business Limited
acts as the Company's alternative investment

furd manager (AIFMT with portfolic management
delegated to Thames River Capital LLP (the "Portfoho
Marager or the 'Manager') Marcus Phayre-Mudge
has managed the portfol.o snce 1 Apnl 2011 and been
part of the Furd Managemert team singe 1997
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Independent board

Tne Directors area irdependent of the Manager

and meet regularly to cons.der investment strategy,

to monitor adherence to tre stated objective and
investment po-icies and to review nvestment
performance. Deta"s of how the Board operates ard
fulfils its responsibilities are set out in the Report of the
Directors on page 47,

Performance

The Financial Highlights fer the current year are set out
on page 2 and Historical Performance can be found on
page 3 Key Performarce Indicators are set cut in the
Strategic Report on pages 35 and 36.

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that

its shares can be recomrended by Independent
Financial Advisers (IFAS) inthe UK to retaill investors
in accordarce with the Firancial Conduct Authonty
('FCAY rules inrelatior to non-mainstream investment
products and intends to continue to do so. The shares
are excluded from the FCAs restret'ons, which apply
to non-mainstrear investment products, becalse they
are shares in an authorised Tvestment trust company.

Further information

General shaieholder informatior and details of how
to invest in the Company, Ircluding investment
through an ISA or savings scheme, can be found cn
pages 118 onwaids. Thisirformation can also be
fourdon the Compary's webste www.trproperty com
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Financial highlights and performance

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share

Shareholders’ funds (£'000)

Shares in issue at the end of the year (m)
Net debt

Share Price
Share price
Market capitalisation

Revenue
Revenue earnings per share

Dividends?

Interim dividend per share
Final dividend per share
Total dividend per share

Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total return™

Benchmark total return’
Share price total return*

6hgoing Charges®®
Including performance fee
Excluding performance fee

Exciuding performance fee and direct property costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March

2022 Change

305.13p 492 43p -38.0%

968,346 1,562,739 -38.0%

317.4 317.4 +0.0%
12.3% 10.2%

279.00p 456.50p -389%

£885m £1,449m -389%
Year ended Year ended
31 March

2022 Change

17.22p 13.69p +258%

5.65p 530p +6 6%

9.85p S.20p +7.1%

15.50p 14.50p +6.9%
-35.5% +21.4%
-34.0% +12.2%
-36.2% +19.9%
0.73% 2.19%
0.73% 0.60%
0.67% 0.58%

1 Netdebt 'stnetota vaue ¢ ioan notes, Gans . ncluding not'oral exposure to CFDs and “stal Retu n Swap ) ess £as' as @ £opo t on o net assetva ue

2 Cwdends pershaeare e div dends i espect o’ the firanc a veas ended 31 Maron 2023 An nter ~dvdend of 245
d sdend of S.85p (2022 520k, « thepadon 1 August 202516 snarens dess sntne req ster on 30 June 2G23. T1esna

25 June 2023

s
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2 ThengY Tota Returnforthe yeas s 22 culated by reinvest ngthe di s dends nithe assets of e Dorrpany o g e evant ex-d dend date K ovdends aqe deered

toherenvestedontneex-d v dend dateas tus s theproto

4 TheSnare Proe otz Returnis caicu ateg by 2 nvest ng tne
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Historical performance

for tne yvear ended 31 March 2023

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)
NAV ©
Benchmark v

Share Price’

Shareholders' funds (£'m)

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Net revenue {pence per
share)

Earnings
Dividends:-

NAV per share {pence)

Share price {pence)

Indices of growth

i-baresat A oL 0

Share price-
Net Asset value’
Dividend Net
RPI

Benchmark -

2013

21.5
178
258

684

6.74
7.00

21525
186.30

100
100
100
100
100

2011

224
14.5
37.7

809

809
7.45

25494
247 50

133
118
106
102

107

2015

28.3
233
295

1010

8.89
7.70

31812
310.50

167
148
110
103
128

2016

8.2
5.4
1.6

1,065

836
8.35

33596
297 50

160
150
119
105
131

2017

8.0
6.5
9.1

1118

11.38
10.50

35242
314.50

169
164
150
108
136

2018

155
10.2
255

1,256

13.22
12.20

395.64
38250

205
184
174
112
146

2019

8.7
56
62

1,328

14 58

13.50

418.54
394.00

211
194
193
115

149

11.5
-14.0
16 8

1,136

14.62
14.00

358.11
317.50

170
166
200
118
124

207
15.9
283

1,326

12.25
14.20

417.97
392.50

211
194
203
19
141

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

A

21.4
12.2
19.9

1,563

13.69
14.50

492.43
456.50

245
229
207
130
155

The NAV ™ ota Return far each year e calculated by reinvesting the dridends inthe assets of the Company f-om the e evant ex-dwdend date Dw'dends

-355
-34.0
-36.2

968

17.22
15.50

30513

275.00

133
142
227
148

ag

are deemed 1o be reinvested at the ex-d vidend date as this 1s the protoco’ used by the Company’s benchmark and othe ndices 7-hs 1§ consideed ic be an
Aternat ve Performance Meagure as defined on page 106
(B} Benchmark Index cor~poste index compns ng the FTSF EPRANAREIT Deve oped Eurcpe TR index up to Mare 2012, and thereafter the 188 EPRANARE T
Deveioped Eurcpe Capped Index Source Thames River Capital

{C
o

{F} Shareprices on'y These do not reflect dividends paid

F

(21 Pree only vaiue of the mdces setgut n(B; above
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Capital only values. These donat reflect dradends paid

Div'dends per sharen the year to which tne r decaration relates and not the year they werepaid

The Share Price Total Retun s calculated by -einvesting t1e dividends iri the shares of the Company “rom e relevant ex-dndend date
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Chairman’'s statement

&g Markets have had to
absorb huge increases
in the cost of capital and
real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusual cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. In many of our markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

-

This has been a very difficult year for the property
market, for property shares and for the Company. Net
asset value total return was -35.5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -34 0% The share price total retum
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAV and the
share price widened slightly, reflecting weaker investor
sentiment as a whoele Although the change in the second
half was modest (first half NAV total return of -33.6%
March to September 2022) we have experienced some
very dramatic price action in the intervening six months.

Macro-economic forces continued to dominate. The
drivers and trajectory of inflation remained everyone's
focus Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
consequences of their actions as market participants
Volatility remained elevated. Whilst our total return
figures are clearly very poor, the autumnal rally in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK) by
political events in November, did resume in earnest in
January. This three month rally, based squarely on a
change in the expected trajectory of interest rates, gave
us, at last, a taste of a more optimistic attitude towards
our asset class. The last few weeks of the financial year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regional banks in the US and the final take cut of Credit
Suisse This raised knee-jerk concerns of bank contagion
which here feels sensationalist given the enhanced levels
of regulatory oversight and controls on European banks
post the global financial crisis

Your investment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic stock
selection. It is fair to say that the investment dynamics of
the last 12 months have not been their preferred context
The dramatic price falls and bear market rallies have
been largely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad Forced sellers were interested in volume not price.
Small caps, as usual, struggled in these conditions. This
macro-driven environment is hopefully, finally, abating as
investors appear increasingly interested in differentiating
between individual companies’ prospects following the
significant correction

Ourinvestment universe has now seen a number of
cocmpanies who have suspended or reduced dividends.
These were, In the main, the ilkkely suspects and it would
be a surprise to us if many others now emerge given the
economic cycle One of the core attractions of real estate
investing s the potent'al of indexed ‘rcome and this is
showing through ard remains our focus.

TR Preperty Irvestment Trus:




Earnings per share increased by 26% from 13.69p per
share to 17.22p. This is an all-time high. Although
company earnings did in general recover to pre-
Cavid-19 levels, our headline earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments. More detall of this is set out in the
Manager's report.

The Board is pleased to announce a final dividend

of 9.85p taking the full year dividend to 15.50p,
representing a 6 9% increase. In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to investor
appetite for income but has also been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
earnings.

o S G R

Following a record level of earnings in 2022/23, the
Board expect to report a reduction in net income for
the year to 2023/24. Thisis not only as a result of the
non-recurrence of certain items which enhanced the
current year earnings, but alse because of the number
of companies that have anncunced dividend cuts or
suspensions. All companies have had to adjust to the
change in the price of debt. For some the impact has
beenimmediate, while for others it will he somewhat
delaved as they continue to benefit from historic
fixed rates. However, on the income side of the
equation, index-linked rents will benefit Companies
need to balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
baiance sheets. The medium to longer-term outlook
for interest rates 1s difficult 10 predict 50 it could be

a while before companies feel confident about the
longer-term outlook.

Tyt v Vo e

Gearing at 12.3% is an almest identical figure to that
at the half year. Inevitably these numbers are just
snapshats in time; the level of gearing has varied in
response to the market volatility and as investment
opportunities have occurred.

sterling weakened over the year by just over 4%. This
margnally enhanced our income account as non-
sterling dividends were worth more in sterling terms.

As our balance sheet 1s denominated in sterling a
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets The balance sheet exposure
remains materially in line with the benchmark as we
hedge expcsure tc match the benchmark

o L e e e

The discount of the share price to the NAV widened
slightly aver the year from -7.3% t0 -8.6%. However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between close to -1% and over -10%.

This volatility is indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5.8%, close to the 10-year
average of -4.9% and an improvement on the -6.6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

In light of the transient nature of the discount
volatility, no share buy-backs or issues were made
during the year.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

l Benchmark Total Return BB TR Property Share Price Total Return
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Chairman'’s statement
continued

| reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would broaden
and strengthen the Board and add diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity In January this year we
were delighted to announce the appointment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspective on a
wide range of issues.

We also announced my intention to step down from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
will succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks will
succeed Kate as Senior Independent Director.

ESG reports within annual accounts are becoming
longer and contain more and more detail. This

is wholly appropriate for an operating company

and we welcome the additional disclosure. As an
investment trust company and primarily an investor
in companies, we have to think about what ESG
should mean for us.

Our ESG approach covers three areas. Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly to the
investment trust as a Company under the direct
control of the Board. Secondly, ESG considerations
as part of the investment process for our equity
portfolio adopted by our Manager Although our
Manager cannot have any direct control over ESG

policies in underlying investee companies, it car, and

does, use its influence carefully through corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest Thirdly, our Manager does have

control over our direct property portfolio and here we

continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
ervironmental care in all that we do

Our Responsible Investment Report on pages 16 1o

25 sets out our approach in each of these areas with
some case study examples This is of course an area

of active evotution.
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Macro cons'derations continue to dominate Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borne their
share of price adjustments. However, this is an untisual
cycle where both rates and rents are rising. In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply. Our central
assumption 1s that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks’
targets. Listed property companies are generally more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead. The sector
has been hit hard and many of aur companies are
trading at large discounts to asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previcus cycles, if the
sector 15 undervalued then private capital will be quick

to stepin. Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, one
of the Company’s 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended bid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturbed share price. More recently in early May,
Civitas, the social housing landiord announced a ¢ash tid
from an Asian conglomerate at a similar premium These
businesses are chalk and cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors. These
events remind us that, for many, real estate is seenas a
crucial part of the investment jigsaw particularly in these
mflationary times.

David Watson

TF Property Investmier Trust
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Manager's report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
levels of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebbs and flows around
interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, looking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those
sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

VAT N

The Cormpany's net asset value {NAV'} total return for

the 12 months to 31 March 2023 was -35.5%, whilst the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR [in
GBP), fell -34.0%. These figures are clearly disappointing
but not materially different from those reported at the

half year, where the NAV had fallen -33 6% in the first six
maonths of the financial year. Equally important to note

is that these figures are snapshcts in very volatile times
Te illustrate the point, the first four months of the second
halt of the inancial year (1.e. October to January) saw our
universe rally +14.5% only 1o then give up all of those gains
In the subsequent nine weeks. The end resuit was a finish
to the year which was marginally worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrcte that shareholders will

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of travel was obvious and more
protective action should have been tgken It always looks
clear in hindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explain some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rotate the portfolio into the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents but then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first quarter of the financial year saw the sector

fall 24% as investors really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, you could still have made
money over a four-week pericd (in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts driving markets in mid-2022. Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal (+9.5%} as bond
markets responded to the theme that rising interest rates
were having the required deflationary effect. However,
the summer break was followed by hawkish staterments
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -30% between mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the 'higher for
longer mantra. This severe bout of pessimism was

then fcllowed by a +25% rally in pan-European property
stocks between mid-October and the end of January.
The tail end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebb away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year.
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Manager's report
continued

Benchmark Performance

M FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Deveioped Europe Capped Total Return Net GBP (Da.ly)

5%
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Fora value sector where returns are driven — year

in, year out — by income, these levels of volatility and
multipie directional shifts are almost unparalleled. What

IS happening? Essentially, the whole period has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interest rate
expectations and bond market behaviour. Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market observer with over
30 years' experience recently wrote to clients 'l can't recal
a period of time when capital values have fallen so sharply
and yet occupier demand in most sectors has remainad
pretty robust’. | have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsulates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, vields are rising but so are
rents, this is atypical. It is now clear that, through 2022, |
placed too much emphasis on this quality of earmings (and
indeed earnings growth) in many of our companies. The
market paid little heed, choosing to focus on the impact of
rising vields/capitalisation rates on asset values.

The speed at which central banks responded, as
inflation gathered pace, took many participants oy
surprise. The rising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particular
cohorts of companies Those companies which had
successfuliy utilised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of {rejfinancing was
effectively shut. German residential businesses,
particularty the larger cnes, Vonovia, LEG and the
more diversified Aroundtown (part owner of Grand
City Properties), are all seeing their cost of debt nise
dramatically as the expiry of existing bords require
refinrancing. The other heavily impacted group were
those with higher loan to value compounded by high
levels of floating rate debt. The impact on earnings

for this group has been dramatic and the majority of
Swedish companies fall into this category. Both these

g

Sep-22 Qct-22 Now-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Fen-23 tar-23

cohorts share a couple of similar outcomes; firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are disproportionately represented and secondly, these
twe groups have experienced the greatest volatility within
our universe To illustrate the pomnt, Swedish property
companies collectively fell 40.5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that period there were three sharp
bear market rallies of +17% (May}, +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-October to the end of January),
These groups were highly susceptible 1o changes in
sentiment towards the outlook for rates and margin on
new (or refinanced) debt instruments

Previously, | have written about the merits of the market
fundamentals of German residential. The vast supply/
demand imbalance and the persistent widening of the
gap between regulated rents and open market values
remains in place. What has been most frustrating is that
our largest relative position in that area 1S Phoenix Spree
Deutschland, which has no refinancing requirements
urtir 2026 and 1s a market minnow (portfolio value less
than £750m) where all sales, however few, will make a
difference performed in line with its larger cousins.

Collectively the market capitalisation of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57%. Meanwhile, the
Lnderlying asset values have corrected less than 10% in the
year and top ine earnings have grown with vacancy levers
stable and the ‘mietspegiel’ {the rent table) continuing to
increase rents, albeit at a sub-inflationary rate The asset
class offers consistently low vacancy, steady renta’ growth
and the opportunity to move ta market rents through
refurbishment or sales 1o owner-occupiers As a result,
yields steadily ightened as the cost of finance fell By the
beginning of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fully
reflecting the stability and low risk profile of the iIncome. At
such low capitalisationrates, a modest reversal upwards of
100bps has a very dramatic effect on valuation

TR Sroperty Irvestmern Trust



Much the same effect was felt in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - industrial/logistics. This sector
had enjoyed a surge in investor demand as strong rental
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
last three years. Again, the impact of the abrupt rise in
the cost of debt led to a quick reversal in yietds However,
unlike reguiated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
strong rental growth will persist in industral/logistics
property given market fundamentals.

Offices continue to be the sector most under scrutiny
and nghtly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working from home ('WFH') regime are still being
worked through by tenants and landlords. Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conclusions
are hard to pin down given the speed of change.
However, we are confident that since the half year we
have seen more data to support our current thesis
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based businesses - physical interaction is a vital part
of business life. However, the amount of space required
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
guality space has risen. This demand for better quality
waorking environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentiais. The
result is a historically wide market bifurcation between
best in class, well located, energy efficient buildings
and the rest. Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and well over 50% of that exposure is to
London and Paris, hence our focus on those markets in
this commentary.

Gecina, our largest European office exposure (see top
12 holdings) in their Q1 2023 results highlighted that
their prime inner Paris assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whilst their outer ring assets saw negative
reversion. Overall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highlights the guif between the growth
achieved in central assets and the rest. Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenon, with central Milan
recording solid demand and rental growth. Central
London office vacancy is elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3.7%) and the City (11.9%)

is almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation in
Docklands is even mare dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced erther a
reduction in their space requirements (including HSBC,
Citi and JPMargan) or wholeszle relocation (e.g. Clifford
Chance) Inthe case of the latter, the firm is also cutting
its space requirements by 40%. One should be careful
not to read single statistic across to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Anrugl Report & Accouants 2023

Wharf for several years. Thig increasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districts such as Canary
wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattan is
a reflection of both WFH but also the lack of headcount
growth. This is a particular probiem in Londen where
post Brexit, global financial services businesses continue
to ncrease their footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London.

This bifurcation of best and the rest’ can be clearly
seen inrecent valuation in the specialist Lendon cffice
landlords Great Portland reported in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings’ EPC (energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels {A&B) saw value declines of 2.5% whilst
C&D rated were -4.2%. Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable (>£1,500 per
ft) saw capital drift of -3.5% and rental growth of +2%,
whilst the least {(<£1,000 per ft) saw value falls of -11 8%
and rental growth of just 0.3%.

Even though the best in class continues to enjoy steady
rental growth, this is partly due to its scarcity The bulk
of all office markets are made up of much more average
product and take up levels in the post pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West {the core) saw
available supply fall year on year {(-19%) whilst it rose in
all other markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the Inner Rirm (+35%).

All of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best guality in the best
locations. MSCI/IPD's office sector capital decline in
HZ 2022 was -15.7%, underperforming retail which fell
14.5%. Central London initial yield has moved 80bps
from 4.8% (December 2021) to 5 6% {January 2023).
As discussed many times, the UK's independent valuer
community have always attempted 10 mark-to-market
rather than the Continental approach which is more
‘mark-to-model’. The latter approach results ina
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuations are woefully historic when
markets are correcting fast. As a result, we feel that
highlighting the modest moves in Continental European
valuations in H2 2022 would be misleading They wili
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond.

-
[

")

[t feels as though this much maligned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to online retailing, the way we search for products
{and pricing) as well as the increasing demand for
entertainment/leisure ahead of more 'stuff’. The huge
reduction in values has been felt more acutely in the
UK Alongside the differences between the UK and
Continental European shopping malls, it is also crucial
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Manager's report
continued

to highlight the sub-sectors within retail as they have,
largely, performed very differently over the last few years

The worst performing group remains the larger mails
which are, quite simply, too big with an excess of floor
space, often a shuttered department store (or two) and
a service charge with a chunky non-recoverable element
{due to voids) None of this is new information | hear you
say Agreed. However the update is that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords (and lenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

to be repurposed for other uses. Malls must become
community hubs with a range of {lower value} uses
such as fitness, medical uses, nurseries, day care etc.
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own. The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acquired

the outstanding loans on the asset. The price equated
to a yield of over 9% on a rent roll which has dropped
materially over the last decade. We are confident that

at the right rents (and yieids) those centres which can
reinvent themselves such as this dominant city centre
asset will deliver acceptable returns.

The strongest sub-sector remains retail warehousing
and outlet malls. For different reasons both offer retailers
sales channels which complement online In the case

of the former, it is the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks. Free home delivery will
become unsustainable from both a profit and an ESG
perspective. Click and collect and free returns to store
will drive demand for these super convenient locations
The Company Is a large holder of Ediston Property which
has announced a strategic review given the subscale
size of the business We are hopeful that this will provide
further evidence of supportive valuations in the sector
Outlets help retailers offload lines without damaging

full price/premium offerings. The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson have a non-
controlling stake) and Gunwharf Quay in Portsmouth
{owned by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
remain confident about their prospects

Tne combining of retail, leisure and food continues,
particularly in tourist destinations BNP have highlighted
the pick-up in post Covid footfall in the most upmarket
locations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barcelona), Via del Corso (Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall increasing on
average by 1/3 and, ir some cases, more than 65% [Paris
and Munich}

Retail investment has been resilient, particularty in
Continental Europe where investors see affordable rents
and higner yields than other sectors Whilst investment
levels are unsurprisingly below the 2012 to 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year to €40.1bn {(+2 6%}

0

according to BNP In the UK, retail warehousing continued to
dominate volumes (+60%) over 2021 and 2022. This figure
was lower across Europe and highlights the continued lack
of large shopping centre transactions in the UK

UK logistics take-up in Q1 2023 was 8.6m sq ft, a slowing
when compared to a quarterly average of 12.0m sg ft in
2022 ang 138m sq ft in 2021 but still ahead of the quarterly
average of 8.3m sq ftinthe pre-Covid decade. Vacancy
remains at 3% and rents continue to rise. Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields rise by 175bps for
prime distribution units between June 2022 and March
2023, Such was the impact of the cost of money, whilst
market fundamentats are deemed less relevant. Even an
asset with strong rental growth prospects cannot have a
capitalisation rate 200bps below the risk-free rate However,
that pricing adjustment has largely been completed in our
view. We are beginning to see stability in asset prices.

In Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savills
report 32m sq metres taken up in 2022 across the 13
largest markets, just 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the 5-year average invirtually all markets. Higher
construction and finance costs led to reduced speculative
construction maintaining the intense supply-demand
imbalance in so many markets. Over £50bn was invested in
2022, again below the record of 2021 but well ahead of the
S-year average. Yield expansion (¢ 100bps) was much less
than in the UK but again we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentals drive capital back into the sector,

We have long been cheerieaders for multi-let industrials
(MLI), generally terraces of smaller units, management
intensive, but often located in dense urban locations.
Very tittle new stock has been built over the last few
decades with alternative (multi-storey) uses being

far rmore valuabie. Rents remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable. The
tenant rosters have evolved hugely in the last 20 years,
undergoing ‘gentrification’ from being the domain

of light industrial ‘metai bashers' to a much broader
swathe of uses, many born out of internet connectivity
and the abiiity to access customers directly. Our largest
exposure was througn Industrials REIT, where we owned
11% of the company. Just after the year end (3 April)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a 40%
premium to the undisturbed share price. The private
equity behemoth already has substant.al exposure to
this sub-sector but it is a time'y reminder that if quality
assets are left undervaiued tnen private capitai wil
acquire them Qur other MLI exposure is through Sirius
(65% Germary, 35% UK) and diversified names suck as
Picton and London Metric (which acquired Muckiow in
2027 where we ownred 5%) The healthy supply-demand
imbalance makes it a sub-sector we are keen to maintain
exposure to

B Prooperty irvestrent Tras:
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The shortage of private sector rental accemmodation
remains acute, yet the listed companies focused on

this sector were amongst the poorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies (mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
teams were lured into increased leverage given the
stability of the underlying income streams and occupancy
levels However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interest rates rise.

At the asset level, rental growth has remained well below
current inflation rates given the backward-looking nature
of regulated rents. We fully expect to see these rents

rise at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramatic inflation datapoints. The serious shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
ointment is the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insulation and the type
of heating In open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improvements will be passed
through to rent prices. in reqgulated markets where only

a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth,

Within open market regimes such as the UK we have
seen strong rental growth through the combination of a
shortage of rental stock {amateur landlords leaving the
market due to higher regulation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to tempaorarily
rent awaiting price corrections).

L

LoTersiaes

Purpose built student accommodation continues to fare well,
with rising numbers of students across the UK and Europe.
The traditional accommodation alternative of private rented
houses (HMOs -Houses In Muitiple Occupation) are reducing
as regulation pushes up licensing costs and (comectly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accommaedation. Unite, our
fargest student accommodation stock was one of the few
companies to see positive capital value appreciation in 2022
with 4% annualised growth. It has recently increased its rental
growth outlock for academic year 2023/24 from 5% 10 6-7%.
Self-storage continues to confound the sceptics. Rate
growth and cccupancy have begun to normalise post the
‘Covid boom' but remain encouragingly positive. Safestore,
our largest holding in the sector, enjoyed like-for-like rental
growth of 10.7% in the year to October 2022

Hotels particularly leisure and tourist focused have atso
enjoyed strong growth as consurmers continue 1o make up for
lost opportunities to travel in 2020 and 2021. Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the quality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year on year. UK hotels ex London
was also strong at +171% year on year and 75% versus 2019

AnNnug Report & Accounis 2023

Healthcare was the poorest performer of the altermatives
group. Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation.
Continental European healthcare operators have been
rocked by the scandal at Orpea The level of state support,
both direct and indirect, are the crucial figures required by
investors. Even then, the rate of rental growth can be quite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Praperties and Assura.

Both debt and equity markets were very subdued during
the year The total capital raised in 2022 was €14bn
compared to £32bn in 2027 and €21bn in 2020. Cver
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
quarter. To illustrate the change in pricing over the

last year, we need only review the most prolific issuer,
vonaovia, Europes largest property company. In March
2022, 1t issued 4, 6 and 8 year matunties totalling €2.5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1 875% and 2.375% respectively By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
4 75% and 5.0%.

Short-dated leverage risked the vicious cycle of
increased interest costs resulting in lower earnings, so
risking credit downgrades ieading 1o even higher cost of
debt. Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings;
if asset sales weren't possible then equity (even when
trading at deep discounts to asset values) needed to be
raised through rights issues.

At the half year, | detailed the capital raising by TAG
Immobiiien, who had over stretched themselves with the
acqguisition of a Polish housebuilder. They raised €200m
at a 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price to
help pay off the bridging loan frem the acquisition. In
November, VGE a Belgium logistics developer raised
£302m. This was more front-footed with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one for four share issuance.
The business is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capital makes them less
dependent on one customer. The CEO and CFO own 49%
of the equity and 'stood ther corner’ which reassured
investors. In Sweden, Catena, ancther logistics developer
raised SEK 1.4bn (£135m) as its share price hovered
close to NTA and, whilst small, it was unusual as it was
an accelerated bookbuild and not a rights issue. Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay a hybrid bond
and strengthen its overall balance sheet.

The only merger and acquisition activity in the 12
months to 31 March (the privatisation of Industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April) were two mergers,
bath widely expected but the timing less sure. The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capco finally happened after
a tortuously long period of negotiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager's report
continued

shareholders {we do not own either company) was
that the deal results in the repayment of much of
Shaftesbury's cheap debt due to a change of control
provision. When coupled with further increases in
debt costs next year and some extraordinarily high
advisor fees (given it was an agreed transaction)
there will be precious little earnings benefit from
the anticipated synergies. The other merger was
between LXI and Secure Income REIT on a NAV for
NAV basis It was a much more straightforward
affair. We were a large shareholder in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
to NAV The managers of SIR were alsc large
shareholders in the company and their excellent
timing in previous property cycles was once again on
display They even sold the management company
which had a contract to run SIR for the next three
years.

Portfolio turnover {purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m in the year, considerably less
than the £549m in the previous year With average
net assets over the year of £1 18bn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatihty in the year.

In the half year report, | recorded that each rally then
trended down to a new low and therefore virtually

all buys looked poor and alt sells looked clever.

The second haif of the year saw the largest and
langest recovery from October to the end of January,
followed by the most dramatic correction back to the
Octaber lows, this new low peint virtually coinciding
with the year end. Throughout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on either a change in the cutlook for
interest rates (and the concern that centrat banks’
behaviour wouid become more hawkish) or renewed
speculation of a failure in the credit transmission
mechanism. Essentially, investor sentiment was
driven by the expectation of the change in the price
and availability of debt.

[n hindsight, maintaining our long-standing
discipline of buying {(or adding) to companies where
we felt confident in the resilience of earnings driven
by market fundamentals just wasn't encugh.

As would be expected, we have carefully analysed

all of our companies’ balance sheet capacity (in
terms of the quantum of leverage, cost and duration
of debt). In many cases, the market had quickly
adiusted the earnings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being overly rational about these revised earnings

1z

forecasts. The market was not interested in supply and
demand at the property/occupational market level or
whether there were still profits to be achieved from the
development pipeline.

The ability of the market pendulum to (over) swing
between exuberance (greed) and melancholy (fear) was
very much in evidence and we battled to

react accordingly.

A good example of this was our collective underweight

to Swedish property companies. Whilst this call was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the year, the volatility in the group resulted in muttiple
phases of repositioning. Whilst the broad statement that
Swedish property companies are amongst the most
leveraged in our investment universe 1s true, some are
obvicusly more exposed than others. It was therefore
crucial to understand which company would suffer the
fastest earnings degradation from rising interest rates but
also to assess when the market had over reacted. Those
maost at risk were those exposed to bend markets rather
than bank lending or had complex hybnd instruments
dreamt up by bankers when money was cheap. The scale
of share price volatility is best explained in a handful

of figures. EPRA Sweden fell -42% in the first quarter

only to recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
another 40% drop to mid-Octeber and then the long
recovery (+36%) to the end of January, followed by a
renewed bout of nerves sending the sector down almost
to the October lows These figures are the collective
impact of 18 companies. For the most leveraged (SBB,
Castellum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater.
Underlying property market fundamentals do not drive this
level of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market outicok for the cost/availability of debt impacting
on a tiny market segment (free float capitalisation of just
£20bn)

Qur exposure to German residential was the poorest
asset allocation decision of the year. | remained
convirced, for too long, that the market fundamentals of
virtuaily full occupancy and (sub-market) regulated rents
would underpin imvestor sentiment. The fact that even at
prices a year ago ali of these names were trading below
the reinstatement cost of the underlying assets mattered
rot a jot. The market focused exciusively on the impact
of the cost of debt During the year we reduced exposure
irthe arger names (Vonaovia, LEG) but mantaned

the holding in Phoenix Spree, the small Berlin focused
vehicie. It 1s an externally managed fund which has an
annually renewed contract with QSix, the manager. Its
assets are all prime Berlin, where open-market rents
continue to grow The share price total return in the year
was -50%. [ remain convinced that once prices stabilise
the smalier companies will benefit disproportionately
from the impact of portfolio sales With a market cap of

TR Property irvestrment Trust




Just £190m and the share price 2t half the asset value,
itis an excellent example of 2 portfolio of assets whigh
are no longer benefiting from being held in a listed
company.

With the price of money rising so rapidly in the year,

it was the lowest yielding assets which saw the most
aggressive repricing and so it was with German (and
Swedish) residential. The compression in yields in
the previous five years was a rational response to
the combination of strong market conditions. (high
occupancy and rental growth) combined with very
low cost of borrowing. This strong yield compression
(and capital value growth} was even greater in the
industrial/logistics sector. The structural tailwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseum, in previous reports.
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiable
investor appetite for assets with income growth.
Thereversal (yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard. Again,

our smaller companies suffered disproportionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed to catch the bounce in any recovery.
We are confident that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios will perform well. However, if the
stock market continues to undervalue them, then no
one should be surprised when more privatisations
occur. Inthe industrial group in the UK, 1 would include
industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust. Whitst in Europe the list would include Argan,
Sirius and Catena.

With the lowest yielding (highest growth) names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new cost of debt, it was the highest yielding sectors
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retail
property has clearly been out of favour for many years
as the weakening in tenant demand for physical retail
space continued. In Continental Europe, we focused
on Eurocommercial and Klepierre given their high

earnings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibail-Rodamco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
quality spectrum but both suffered from weak balance
sheets and the need to de-leverage Unibail announced
2 years ago its intention to sell its US portfolio whilst
Wereidhave has continued to sell assets whenever

it can European retail as a subset outperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection also added to
perfarmance with Unibail -27 5% and Klepierre -2 5%
over the year.

UK retail is now a small part of the listed universe.
For most investors the only way to gain exposure
is through the diversified portfolios of Landsec

Annual Report & Accounis 2023

and British Land. The bulk of our exposure is through
Ediston Property which owns only retail warehouses.
However, its market cap at £140m is too small for the
listed market and we applaud the announcement from
the board that they are carrying out a strategic review
for the future of the company. We remain hopeful that

a merger with another listed company is a viable opticn
which will ensure the assets remain in the listed space.
The company was a relative cutperformer in the year
(-18%) as were virtually all the high yielding retail names.
Hammerseon remains a play on corporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retail property We believe
they are on the right path and we opened a helding in
the year. The crown jewels are the mincrity ownerships
in the premium outlet malls controlled by Value Retail
Investors will need to remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value is reappearing.

investors’ attitudes towards cffice property has been
highlighted eartier We fully subscribe to the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest. Smaller
European cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposure to those cities through Arima (Madrid),
wWihlborgs (Malme, Lund) and Fabege (Stockholm). Core
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina (Paris), Great Portland and Landsec (London).
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
business model through Workspace (London) and Sirius
{(primarily German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with total returns of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
datareassuring. Landsec {-16%) was a top performer as
it continued to reduce leverage through saies of newly
completed prime offices in Central London. We are
strong advocates of capitai recycling and expect to see
more sales from non-core assets such as hotels and
leisure.

In the alternatives space, cur overweight to self-stcrage
was entirely through Safestore (-27%) rather than Big
Yellow {-21%). Safestore has cutperformed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last pericd.
In fact, we find it hard to choose between these two
very well managed companies. Both own irreplaceable
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas.
Demand for space has been remarkably stable given
the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accommodation provider, was another relative winner
In the year. The combinaticn of increased earnings
guidance and solid market evidence on moedest yield
maovement continues to support the asset class.
Both these asset types have intensive operational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the platform through the traditional asset
value model. This was certainly the case with Industrials
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating
business alongside the assets.

1
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Manager’s report
continued

As noted in the Chairman's Statement, the current
year's income benefited from a number of non-recurring
items Eurocommercial and Swiss Frime both changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional half year payment from

each of these companies The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-dividend on or around the last
business day in March therefore moves between March
and Aprit In the year to 31 March 2023, we received
dividends in Aprii 2022 and March 2023, resulting in two
full year payments. If the dividend due around 31 March
2024 falls back into next April, there will be no income
recorded from this company in the year to March 2024
We have no control over these timings and there are
several companies where dwidends go ex-div around
the year end. Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2.5% of the portfolic sc this has had

a significant impact. without these (and the small
enhancement due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been arcund 1.13p
lower than reported The dividend for the year to March
2023 is therefore well covered

The dividend for the previous two years was partly paid
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down. In 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out above, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported period hefore COVID-19 (being the year to
371 March 2019). The fuli year dividend to 31 March 2023
1S aimost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the impaortance of a growing dividend
to our shareholders.

Looking ahead to the 2023-24 financial year, at this
stage, we expect to report a fall in earnings. This is partly
explained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above
However, the additional impact 1s from the number of
the German residential and Swedish companies that
have announced dividend suspensions and/or cuts as
they work to reddce their gearing leve!s in the face of
rising debt costs The residential names in particuiar
are making progress with therr disposal programmes
s0 we expect to see their dividends resuming, although
possibly at a lower level, in the not too distant future.

The impact of higher interest rates will feed through to
earnings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing The impact of this of course depenrds on the
duration of such debt packages and this vanes huge y
across our companies. It is encouraging to note that

for most of them, the majonty of their debt is fixed (or
capped) until 2026 and beyond

On a more encouraging note, top ne revenue 15
benefiting from infiation. All of our European companies
and a significant number of cur UK names benefit from
rents linked to some form of indexation. It varies widely
across countries and sectors but is clearly an important
part of our revenue growth trajectory.

Altheugh the revenue for the farthcorming year is likely
to be under some pressure given all these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth will return over
the medium term. Market fundarmentals continue to
drive organic rental growth in sc many of our sectors. In
the meantime, the Company stili has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintain dividend levels over short term
ncome falis, as was seen through the COVID-19
pandemic.

Gearing began the year at 10 2%, increased to 12.0% by
the half year and finished the year at 12 2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearing seen throughout
the period as gearing has been actively changed

in response to the very variable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%.

The cost of our debt has increased through the year

as our revoiving credit facilities and CFD financing

are linked to SONIA (or other currency eguivalents)
However, animportant part of our debt book are the
EUR 50m and GBP 15m loan notes both at fixed rates of
interest. The cormbination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some price
stability at lower leveis of gearing. Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate (so drawing on
the floating rate financing) the market conditions are
such that returns are not teo sensitive to the pricing.

In the year to the end of March the physical property
portfolic produced a total return of-13 7%, made up of
a capital return of -17 5% and an income return of 3.8%
The MSCI Monthly UK Property Index returned -14.7%
over the same period, made up of an income return of
50%and acaptal fallof 18.8%

TR Property Insestment Trast




During the year we sold the residential element of the
Cclonnades development for £5m on a new 999 year
lease at a peppercorn rent. The value of this element

1$ determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual flats, During the Company's
ownership we completed lease extensions over 75% of
the flats and received more than £12.5m in premiums.
In addition, the sale facilitated the simplification of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retained the freehold of the istand site as well as all the
commercial elements. The locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the oid Whiteleys shopping
centre nearing completion. This 1s an important next
phase In the further gentrification of Bayswater

It was a busy 12 months for asset management at
Ferrier Street, Wandsworth The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibility
far either a refurbishment of the existing or a more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
permissicn secured in June 2022, During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 60% of the estate. This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new lettings exceeding £30 per sq. ft. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefit from the further
reduction in supply of London industrial space, whilst
the depth of demand from occupiers has increased.
The diversity of our occupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to food
production and even a plant nursery.
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inflationary pressures persist. Central banks appear
resolutely determined to remain hawkish with another
round of base rate increases in May. Whilst a refatively
biunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates is having the required effect with
reduced retail sales growth Energy has been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spot price of gas has
fallen back to pre-invasion prices. This will soon begin to
feed into lower headline inflation figures and also reduce
the likelihood of a recession We expect wage inflation,
driven by high employment levels, tc persist, resulting in
inflation remaining ahead of central banks’ target rates.

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, in

our preferred sectors, remain solid with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Economic growth is
likely to be at best anaemic, for a while, and speculative
development will rermain subdued. Income, often index-
linked, will remain the key valuation underpin. We will
maintaim our focus on the most judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
requirements. With such a iarge number of well financed
listed companies, we also expect opportunities to gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a world
where debt availability is getting more restricted.

The sector has a long tail of micro-cap companies

and we continue to encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consolidation where it improves share
fiquidity and reduces costs. Otherwise, we will continue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
srmaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners. Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids {and continues
to hold a wide range of small caps) we also believe that
growing the number of larger companies is in the best
interests of the secter and investors.

As we go to print at the beginning of June, we are
pleased to report an all-paper bid by London Metric
(market cap. £1,700m) for CT Property Trust (£180m).
The Company owns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the anncuncement.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
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Responsible investment

Introduction

The Board recognises the imiportance of cors.denng
Environmental, Soc’ar and Governance {ESG') factors
wher making investments and in acting as a respons.ble
steward of captal This covers the Company's own
responsibilities on governance and reportirg and, the
rmost material way i which the Company can ~ave

an impact, trough respons.bie ownersh'p of tre
mvestments that are made o1 its behaf by ‘ts Manager

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting
Maintainirg a high tevei of Goverrance and disclosare

inthe Company's owr cperatiors and reportirg

s extremely important Qur Fund Managers are
encourag ng and suppoit-ng this from the companies
in wrich we irvest and we carnat fall short of these
stardards ourselves.

Tre Compary's compliarce w'th the AIC Code of
Coiporate Goverrarce is detalled \n the Corporate
Governanrce Report on page 50

Under Sectior 414 of the Comrpames Act 2006 thereis
arequiremert to detail information about employee and
numan rights, including irformation about any pelicies
inreiat:on to these matters and the effectiveress of
these polic'es As tne Compary has ro employees, tnis
requrenrent does not app y. The Company is not witnin
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because 't
has rot exceeded the turrover thresnold and 's therefore
not ob iged to make a slavery and haman traffickirg
statement The Drectors are satis®led that, to the best

of their knowledge. the Company’s principal supplers,
whicr are hsted on page 120 corrply wth the prov siors
of the UK Madern Slavery Act 20715 These are principally
professionai advisers and service providers ir tre finarcial
serv ces ircustry corsequenty e Board considers the
Compa~ytobeiow rsk ~reat o~ o trsmatter

Tre Board curretly comprises trree ~a e Directors
ardtrree femaie D rectors Tne Board a so meets tie
FCAsruesfordversityard rcusor folowirgtre
recorrendators of the Parker Review

The actvtes of the Nomraticr Cormittee inre ator
to Board cnanges arereferred to in the Nom.~ation
Cor~ittee Report o~ pages 56 ard 57
Tne Boards dversity po ¢y sout med 7 ~oredeta
tne Corporate Governance Report

Tre Corrpary nas 10 greernouse gas enmssiors to report
from ts cperat ors nor does it have respons b ity forany
ctrer 27 g310Nns produc ng sources under the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Repert and Directors’ Reports

5

Regulatiors 2013) Investmert tiust companies are
currently exempt from reporting aganst the Task Force on
Chimate-Related Firancial Disclosures ( TCFD'), however,
tne Fmancial Conduct Authority { FCA) has now publisted
regulations trat require the Compary s Manager, as ts
Alternative Investment Fund Marager {AIFM), to report
aganst TCFD at both the AIFM and product level by Jure
2024 Tr'smeans that there will be a TCFD disclosure
specific to tne Company's portfolio avallable 'n the future,
wnch will be pubiisned on the Manager's website, The
Marager nas prodiced a report on its avera | cl'mate
change approach, which s structured Lsing the TCFD
categories and ‘s available on its website

2. Our Portfolio Manager’'s Approach to ESG
Cur Partfolio Manager's primary duty is to parsue the
objective set out at the beginning of this anncal report,
wicn is 1o 1nvest It property and property related
comparies witn the objective of exceeding the returmns of
our benchmark.

Tne Compary has rnot set cut its stall to be an ESG
focused fund, bowever as a .ong-term .nvestor,
governarce and sustamability consideratiors have
aways been emmbedded in our Manager's irvestment
process ESG sk assessmerts and considerations are
factors which feed irto the irvestment decisiors Ths
refiects the belief that strong governance combined w th
a resporsible appreach to socia ob igations ard the
cormritTert 1o protect odr ervirorment will erhance
shareho.der returms inthe lorg terr,

in the part of the portfolo that1s nvested drectly irto
commercia rea estate we erdeavodr to "practice wnat
we preach

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO
As a ded.cated nwestor in tne property sector oot Marager
s rot ravirgto cons.der some of tne more controvers’a
areas of wrat setrca rvestment However we are
iwvest ngir b ld rgs where corstruct on and argong
maragemerthave a drect mpact on the envronment
A propertysin some way de verrgasoca purpose
Woderr bord ng pract ces are very mich vore focused
onreduc ~gerergy consumpt o and eficiency than -
tre past Propert es have varying ! fespans butare buit
forthe iongterr O derbutdngs wrich are iess evergy
efficie~ttra~ ther ~odern courterparts are a fact of

fe therrep.acer-ent has wder ervrormenta a~d
SOCIa! repercessIors as wel as ~uge costimplhicators
They are gaoing to for™ part of the i~vest.ble Lniverse for
the foreseeabre fotore arnd teir effic ent improverert
and —arage~ent sjustas mMportattasensar rgrew
deve opmeris fo' ow t~e 7 ghest possib e ervirormenta:
standards Althc.gn older b idings wi ™ost ke y show
infer or scotes to ther ~ore Todern coonterparts oo a

TR Property Investment Trus:




number of envirormenta measures, we are looking for
demorstratcn of best efforts to improve these measures,
recogrising that there will be 'mitations on wnat car be
ach eved but wanting to see a positve direction of travel

Tnere are two fundamental consigerations to irvestmert
in preperty companies: the assets themseives ard therr
management. The Manager seeks tc invest in long-term
assets which are managed by qua ity teams in a well
governed corporate structure As aresult, there has been
alonyg-standinmg and shiong cultue of slewardsh'p 1 the
Manager's investment approach The Manager believes
that engaging with companies is best n the first instance,
rather than simply divesting or exciuding investrment
opportunities. However, there are instances where
governance matters have driven a decision not to invest
inacompany As one of the largest teams Investing ir
pan-European real estate equities, our Manager meets
with a significant number of management teams of
investee and potentia nvestee cempanies each year and
has a robust record of engagement, with an agenda of
reducing risk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice. This1s augmented by the strength of
Columbia Threadneedle's Responsible Investment

team and its broader engagement Over the course of
the year, our maragement team participated in 227
individual or group meetings with companies and their
management teams

The Manager .s comiritted to responsible mvestment
and 1s actively deve'oping new procedures and ways i1
whicn informationis gathered and Lsed to support their
engagement with companies on ESG matters

Corporate Governance disclosure requirements have
mcreased transparency enormously in recent years and
enabled closer scrutiny and engagement on Governance
issues for some years Environmental measures are now
rapidly coming to the fore and, witn wider disclosure
requirements being placed upon our investee companies,
the Manager is ncreasingly able to scrutinise other
measures sJch as chimate change and sustairability
pol'cies and cutcomes

However, the Board and Manager are st'll of the view that
the ESG ratirg industry and its approach and processes
nas sigrificant Fmitations, making 't difficult to draw

true comparsons and make fuly informed decisons

Trie assessments from the vanous data providers

reach different conclusions as they de not all score na
consistert way Some of the assessnents are subjective
and differert data providers nave different definitions and
cnteria

Arnual Report & AcCcounts 2023

This may eventually converge into some form of
consensus or standardisation but it still nas a way 10

go Conceptuaily, making ESG compansons between
compantes and portfolios appears simple, but it 1s
actually rather complex and 1t is important 1o ensure that
valid companisons are be:ng made As the shortcomings
are being uncovered ard the different approaches
Righiighted we Fope that this wil: put pressure on the
data providers to impiove the quahty and clarify the basis
of the'ranalysis The data services are sLbscr-bed to so
Rave to be fit for purpose.

Having noted the shortfalis above with the data co-lected
from the different providers, our Manager is enhancing
the way in which ESG date s collected and compared
Tneir own company database covers financial and
operational information together with extensive
modelling ESG data s be'ng collated alongside this,
aliowing comparisons to be made more easily between
the vanous data sodrces for a single company and
‘nterrogated rather than relying or high level "scores”.
Interactions with companies on ESG matters are

noted and progress, or ctherwise, can be tracked more
efficiently.

The Manager is therefore dedicating direct resource to
the analysis of tne information availabie and also has
the berefit of input from 1s award-winning Responsibie
Investment Team, This is work in progress and a
significant investment in resource but it will improve the
Manager's abi:ity to engage with our investee companies
on ervironmental matters and play out our responsible
nvestment ams.

It 1s crucial to disaggregate between quality companies
which also have strong ESG credentials and companies
which may appear t¢ have strong ESG credentials (on
the surface at least) but will make poor investments Gne
exarmple of this approach 1s Home REIT. On the face of 't
Home REIT's ESG credentials appeared strong given the
company's business model s focused on the provision
of accommodation to help tackie homelessness in the
UK. In addition, its leases are 100% "green’, meaning
Horme and 1t terants agree to igentify and impement
approprizte strategies for the improverment of the
properties’ environmental performance However, we
eiected not to participate in the company's IPO, and

tne fund has never owned the shares subseqguent vy, as
we had reservations about the overal economics of

the business. We were concerned about the covenant
quaiity of the tenants (often newly-formed charities)
and believed that ine long lease structures put in place
by Home REIT risked averstating a realistic value of

the underlying assets. This approach proved correct

- shoit seller Viceroy published a report on Home

REIT in November 20227 which highlighted numerous
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Responsible investment
continued

concerns with the business and the cormpany nas heen
investigated by regulatory bodies on g number of tems
ir recent montns The shares are current-y suspended
pending & decisien aver the future of the business,
having dropped 61% from the or'giral IPO price.

An exampie of a large holding where we be.jleve the ESG
credentials corrplement the vestment case s Landsec
As wel as adrering to the governance standards

we wolld expect from a leading | sted company, the
company also has a ¢ eariy cutlired susta rability
framework. Thisircludes iong-term targets, progress
against wrich 1s regua.ary moritored and presented
back to investors, sucn as operational carbon emiss.ons
reduction of 70% by 2030 {(with a 2013/14 baseline) ard
average embodied carbon reduction of 50% compared
with a typical buiiding by 203C. The company's rewest
deveopments, wh'ch in our view contribute pesitively

to the investment case given their abil'ty to contribute
to botn earnings and net tang ble asset value over tirre,
are also a!l ret zero buid ngs, whicn we believe will
contribute to an improved rental growth tone when the
assets are let As such thereisa symbiotic reiatiorsnip
between the company's strong ESG credent als and its
underly ng economic performance

Governance

Governance covers matters such as board structure,
effectiveness, diversity and independence, execdtive
pay and critena, shareholder ngrts and firancial and
governance reporting and standards

The Manager has a corporate governance voting polcy
which N its opimion, accards with currert best practice
whilst mamtairing a primary focus or finarca returns
Tre exercise of voting rights attached to the portfolio
has been delegated to the Marager. Where practicat e,
ali srarehoid rgs were voted at all company reet:rgs
N the “imancial year in accordance wt~ Columbia
Trreadneedle's own corporate goverinance polices Tr s
ensores tnat a strorg, consistert approacr s taker to
proxy voting wrick backs up ard reirforces ergager-e~t
takes a rob.st ne o™ key goverrance 1SSUes sJcn as
executive pav ard ~tegrates erviro~retal, scca &

d versity ss.es ardsusta nab: ity practices into tne
Vot rg process

Courba Trreadneedies Stewards™ p Report 2027
prov.des mare ~formation or ts firm- eve stewardshp
po cles aswe asrowthesecompywirtre
expectaticrs of tre UK Stewardship Code 2027 1c wh'cn
tre Marager sa sig-atory its statere~tof corp arce
car be found 01 the website a1

Rttps - wyow cellmbatnreadneedle com/en:

Dar-gtrefinancia- vear t~e Marager voted agairst at

=

least one managemert proposal at 52% of sharenoider
meetings Tns represents 13% of total items voted Of
the tems voted agairst, the proposals can be broadly
categorised as follows

2% 2%,

Remuneration
Shareholder nghts
Election / Reelection of
Directors

Share repurchase policy
other

Director terms

Ratify Auditor

For the year, the Manager engaged with 24 companies
directly on a range of ESG re.ated matters. These
engagements were conducted at both the board and
serior executive evel as well as directwy with investor
re'atiors. Topics of engagement were split as follows,

Climate Change
Environmental Standards
Labour Standards
Corporate Governance
Human -R-igi“ﬂé

Tre Manager tracks the milestores of tne ergagement
strategy and nas seer progress this year on a number

of matters Examples irclude the publicatior of
sustanabity reports and board accountab: ity on turar
r'gnts risk managerent

Social

Albuidings ~ave a social funct.onto some extent,
providirg pacestol ve work, eat shop stere etc
Marageert of bLildimgs needs 1o ersure any soca
cbrgatonsiothe occupants are Met nterms of

Hea th & Safety, employee 'maragement and we.be g
and cormitment to ccrmoities Most of these
chigatorsaretneresponst ity of treterant but our
mvestee corpanies are ob iged 1o report or matters
affect ~g thenr owner-piovees and sJcn statements gre
co~s dered

TP Property Investrent Trust




Environmental on data contributed directly from participat.ng companies,
Environmental po. cies in the property sector focus whiist the public disciosure score evaluates the level of ESG
largely or sustanability and chimale change Climate disclosure by listed property companies and REITs

change is gne of the defining challenges of modern times
Further detail on GRESB can be found at

The management team have sourced data and research www gresb com

from several providers, including the Columbia Threadneedie

Responsib e Investment team, MSCI and Global ESG For 2023 there 1s increased GRESE Real Estate
Benchmark for Real Assets ( GRESB) Assessment coverage of the Company's equity portfolio

(66% from 50%).
The guantity and deptr of data available in cur sector

varies greatly: the larger companies now ave teams German res'dential companes representing 11.6% of the
dedicated ta providing environmental impact data ard mdex do not submit data to GRESE due to the reguirement
reportng However many of odr companies are smalland  to submit data at the asset or buirding level and concerns
do not currently have the resources to contribute data around fair comparisons of data aggregation We continee
to the organisations providing analysis to the investor to engage with GRESE, encouraging them to modify the

comMmunity. As a consequence, we see strong correlations  reguirements to encourage w.der participation.

between compeany s'ze, maturity and overall scores Since

our investment strategy leads us to own focLsed mid-s'zed

comparnes in preference to some of the larger diversified MSCI ESG research covers a wide range of environmental

ones, the portfoiios overall ESG score might tend to be impact measures including CO2 and greenhoudse gas
unflattening compared to the wider benchmark. The nigour  emissions, energy and water usage, in additior to wider

of our process ensures that these companies receive corporate governance scores Further detail can be found at
scrutiny by the team. wiww mscl.com/our-solutions/esg-investing/esg-ratings
SRS Coverage of our sector reduced from 99% to 96% and the
GRESB is a mission-driven and investor-led organisation Company's portfoho increased from 89% 10 96%. Where
prov.ding standardised and vahdated ESG datz to the coverage is based on public data, a significant proportion
capital markets. Established in 2009, GRESB now covers is included, whereas where specific data has to be

over USD 5 trillion in rea estate assets, pubtishing 1) an submitted by companies the coverage is currently much
annual real estate assessment score for participating thinner.

companies, and 1) a public disclosure score for ali listed
real estate companies. The real estate assessment score The table below compares coverage by both data
ranks Environment, Social and Governance metnes based  providers year on year.

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolic

2023 )

Real Estate Assessment . |
Rated " | 66a o - 62% 9% S 9% B 96% | 96%
L-J;rated o 34% o 38% 7 1% A% --““4% - 4%
Total o 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 100%

Source CRESE, M3 Colurrbia Treadneed e Investments. Data as at 31 02 2023 Fund exposure ca culated as the % weight of the invested equity portfol.o

Real Estate As_seésment Public Disclosure Company Rating

Rated 50% 54% 97% S7% 89% 99%

Unrated ) 50% 46% 3% _ 39 % 1%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Source GRESE. MSCIL Colur-b'a "hreadneedie Investrnents Data as ¢t 3103 2022 Fund exposwe calcuiated as the % we ghtaf the imvested equity partfolio

Annual Report & Accounts 2023 9
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Responsible investment
continued

We continue to collect data on emissions and compare
to prior years w.tn the empnasis being more o~ direction
of travel than the absoiute measdJres themselves This
15 also an area where we expect 1o see further change
which s also explained

For the vear ended 31 March 2022, we disciosed, as best
we were abie to, the portfono-we'grted carbonintensity
of the tctal portfelio for the first time

Carbon Risk measures exposdre to carbon intersive
companies MSCI's definiton and calculation, witr

data based on MSCI CarbonMetrics, 1s the pertfolio-
weighted average of ssuer carbon intensty At the
Iss.er leve| carbon intensity ‘s theatio of annual
scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions to annual revenue
Carbori Risk s categor zed as Very Low (0 to <15),

Low (1510<70), Moderate (7010 <250). Higr (220 to
<525}, and Very High (>=525) The Carbon Risk of the
equity portfolio measured at the financial year end, was
43.6 TCO2E/SM Sales (2022: 63.3 T CO2E/SM Sa es),
fa'ing witr the low risk MSC) category The Compary's
portfo 10-weighted carbor ‘ntensity was ower than that
af the benchmrark of 49 8 T CO2E/8M Sales

Cemmparing aga rst the results from last year shows a
readlre ©.31% decrease 1 carbor inters:ty for both our
own equity portfolic and -18% for the rdex Trerearea
nurrber of reasons for this. Whi st the ratio 1s a snapshot
taken at each finarciai year end, ref ectirg thé charge
nequity hold ngs over the pencd, there s aiso wider
coverage of data at the 2023 financia year end {98%
forthe corrert year fund hoidings versas 89% for the
prioryeart Tne latest emiss:ons data for each ce™pary
is captured by MSCl or publicat or of ther data, each
company s not re.easng their data at the same pont
so tmirg differences will ar se The ratic wi l alsc be
rmpacted by tne crarging vaLe of S Sa es, nciuding the
~pact of FX rates However. w:tn ~ these i tatio~s
vie car be reasonably confidert trat tre Carbor Rosk of
tre portfol o .s mprov ng and currert v better tha~ toe
bercomrark

T CO2E/SM Sales
0

&0
50

40

2023 2022
@ TR Property 'nvestment Trust

FTSE EPRA/NARE!T Dove aped Eurcpe Capped ndex

11 order to attempt to give a p'cture of the direction of
travel we have .ooked at the “dividual compan.es the
Compary rolds to assess which have irproving or
deteriorating carbon rtersity Tetrnics over three and
“ve year periods

Tris analys s depends upon tne ~legnty of the
Lndertying data and breadth of data coverage, so we
would caution that ib's 1s a waork in progress, but
ndicates a positive lierd as awareress 'mproves and
companies are chliged to d.sclese data.

3yr
momentum

5yr
momentum

B Improving
Detenorating
| Neutral

By rumber of companes I~ prov rg waere end of period
value s esstran start of per od Detercrat rg where end
of per od va ue s greater 3yrs Data for 47 of £1 stocks
Syrs - Data for 42 of 67 stacks

B T B N I S A N T
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For the property sector, the focus is currently on the
energy efficiency of buildings once they are occupied,
but we expect intime rmore attentior will be paid (o the
carbor emitted in getting tnem buslt and eventually
dismantled which accourts for a iarge proportion of a
building's emissions over its lifespan.

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Sustainability s core to the strategy of tne direct property
portfolio which we nvest i~ hoid and manage on benalf
of sharehelders and this has been a key focus for the
rmanagement team ir tneir asset management approach

Central to the year's approach was energy consumption.
As the primary source of carbon emissions within the
portfolio, a prionty over the iast twelve manths has

been to gain a clear urderstanding of the consumption
intensity across the portfolio, establishing a benchmark
from which we can map the strategy to manage the
environmental mpact of these assets tarough energy
saving interventions. This data coliection allows us to
fix the base year from whicn to set out future targets as
well as a clear path toward a net zero carbon portfelio
Alongside this we have aisc worked hard to future-proof
the pertfolo againat the forthcoming Mimimum Energy
Efficiency Standards

We also recognise that the built environment plays a
fundamental role in the life of local communities. As a
landlord the Company cantinues to ennance its social
engagement with the local community stakeholders

at our assets. We also sirive to work with local supply
chain partners 1o deliver a best-in-class service for our
oceupiers, whilst also supporting the local ecoromries
surrounding our assets. This helps us demonstrate the
social value we bring to communities, occupiers and
shareholders.

The firal strand to our approach is governance.

This forms the foundation for how we manage our
properties  Tne manager operates a Sustainabilty and
Social Responsibility Committee which focuses on the
imp ementation and delwvery of all ESG mitiatives and
provides full transparency on cur proactive hands-on
approach From this we can execute our ervirormental
and social responsibilities We are only able 1o achieve
our geals through a joined-up approach with our property
manager, energy consultant ard other key parters with
whom we work

Annual Repors & Accounts 2023

In last year's report we idertified the tiree key piltars

to establish the fourdation for the delwvery of our ESG
strategy These three pillars, namely Asset Energy
Performance (Environment), Occupier Engagement
{Social) and Qperat.onal Performance (Governance)
continue to navigate the Maragement Team tewards the
sLccesstu. realisation of our ESG strategy.

wWhilst the significant progress made over the last 12
maontns reinforces our commitment to achieve net zero
carbon by 2050, our ultimate goa' 1s to ambitiousiy
mmpreve on this 2050 target To that end, we have
instructed net zero audits across the portfo.ic to faciiitate
us in . dentifying exactly how we can bring thus target
forward from 205C. This strategic framewaork wili be
driven by science-based targets i a cost-efficient
manner, and we will be articulating our improved
pathway over the forthcoming year

Environmental

Accurate data collection and transparent reportirg are
integrai to our goai of reducing carbon emissions across
our portfol:o. We nave put in place a number of inftiatives
to this end whicn are outiired below.

Reliable and accurate data collection is the cornerstone
to understanding the carbon intensity of our assets, Ths
gives us the ability to set ambitious targets to reduce
the carbon intensity and Scope 1 and 2 emissions for
both ourselves and our occupiers  To this end we have
been workirg in collaboration with our stakeholders

10 implement a programme to install automatic meter
readers (AMRS'} across the portfolio to enable the
accurate measurement and monitoring of each asset’s
energy consumption. This consumption data is now
being collated and analysed by the property industry-
recognised SIERA+ piatform. This means we can
reasJre enargy consumption and access live data
which we can analyse and then use to shape our building
operation decisions The AMRs have also provided the
dataset which will form part of the Cempany's inaugurai
GRESB subm:ssion currently underway, sett'ng the
benchmark for future ESG performance. Witn ongoing
access to this fully transparent and tive datasel we can
take control of our carbon emissions with irtegrity and
pinpaint exactly whrere furtrer improvements can be
achieved
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Responsible investment
continued

Asout: red inthe last report a key objective for the Fund
was 1o commerce its first GRESB subrission Now that
we have an accurate dataset of carbon consampt.on, we
have been able to begin the Tirst GRESB submrssion for
2022/23 Theresults of i s submission wil! be ava'lable
in October 2023 and from tris we will be ab’e 1o 1dentfy
further sustarability oppcritties and enhance our
strategy towards net zero. Tis s a s gmificant milestone
for the Cor-pary ard GRESB wrl erable us 1o measure
our ESG performance withim a uriform and globally
establisred platform.

Another key e.ement to maraging the carbon intersity
of the portfol'o1s throagr the implermentat on of Greer
Leases Clauses across the portfolio 1t nas enabled us
to embed our net zero commitmrents irto the forma
structoere w thin whick we ease our assets, seftirg out
a mutual agreemert betweer landlord and occupier

to strive to rmprove energy efficiencies and reduce
carbon emssions gererated by tne assets Trey also
provide a formal framework for the Company to work
wlh occupiers on our data coliection workstream N
mstances where we are rotin controi of the utiity supply.
This inturn strergthens our abi ity 1o enforce carbor
mntersity targets and gamn further cortrot of Scope 1 ard
2 emissions

Furt~er contro. of carbon emissions has been achieved
through the successfu tra-sitior of al erergy acros
lard ord areas for tne who e portfolo to renewabie
sources Trisasa portfolo-wide irtiative ard 130% of
andlord e ectricity ard gas supp'ies are now contracted
or certified green tanffs, backed by tne Ofger regulated

—~

Rerewable Erergy GLarantees of Qngm (REGO) screme.

From 1 Apr 12023 & corr~ercial rentar properties
arereqared o rave a- EPC of E or better Tre d'rec
property portfoio currert y reets trese sta~oards ard,
cverar the portfo .0's EPC profiie s we l paced forire
short-termrequ rererts atd orproved rat mgs Naes been
ach eved cverire 'ast 12 Montrs

[l
[aS]

Two sigrifica~t achievements of note are the
improverrert of the two EPC G rat'ngs with 1 the
portfolio to B and C ratings and increasing tne
percentage cf assets now qualifying for EPC rat-ngs
by over 20% This has beer accompiished through
detared operatonal analysis of cur assets and tre
implementation of energy saving enharceTents.

Itis importart to note that the ncrease .nEratng s

due to changes in tre assessment criter'a and the
majority of tre E and D rat rgs are at Wandsworth where
the strategy 1s to either completle a comprehensive
refurbishment or a fuil-sca‘e redevelopment in the mid
terrt. Work on th s project wil complete prior te the 2030
MEES stardard whchwiirequire a mim mum EPC of

B. Orcetnsproject has bheer del vered tne percertage
of the portfolic by ERV achieving 2030 compuanrce wil'
merease to 88%  This s before any other enhancements
are Tpiemented

Furtner tc th s the Company has row rased the target
of acnievinga m nimurm ERPC ratng to the mimmum of a
B for all plarred refurbiskments ard upgrade works to
tne portfo o Tr.s forms part of tre wider ESG-focused
refurbistiment checklist

EPC (% of ERV)

E: 8%
(2022 6%)

B 58%
(2022: 47%)

TR Property Inyestmert Trus:




Tre Company has been working closely wth the major
tenant of our industrial estate in Gloucester to ‘nistall
PV ceils an the roof of tne building to generate cheap,
:ow carbon (carbon neutrai) energy on site  Infusion,
wno package speciaiist teas for a number of high-end,
3rd party customers have been a key tenant on the
estate since purchase in 2015 and sustamability is key
to the company ethos  The installation of PV cells on
the roef was a critical developrent for the compary in
its path towards net zero carbon. Resdlts to date nave
heen very positive with 80% of the onsite generaticn
being consumed on site and the ba:ance being exported
to grid Infusicn project that 75% of thenr total annual
electricity consumption wll be generated on site.

The key facts of the installation are

- System Size - 244 8kwWp

- Year 1 Generation Prediction — 231,752kWn's

- COZ Saving perannum — 49 tonnes

» EPC improvemenrt from Crating to B

Tnis rugeiy successtul project demonstrates our
occuper-focused, opportunity-ied approach whereby we
nave championed our occupler's success m achieving
their sustainability goals whrlst alsc improving the
environmental profile for the portfol.o Following this

success we are investigat.nginstalling PV ento the
remaining units on the estate

Annual Repor: & Accounts 2023

“Infusion GB are extremely commutted to reducing our
environmental footprint and the installation of Solar

PV at Gloucester was a critical step towards this. The
proactive engagement of TRPIT was mstrumental to this
and enabled us to install a self-generating power source
to our buildings This initiative has been incredibly well
receved by customers, suppliers and employvees alike”
Bruce Stevens, Comrmergial Director, Irfusion GB
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

The management team has continued actively to engage
with occoupiers to suppoit and potentiaily invest in their
ESG objectives Commurication and collaboration plays a
certral ro e 1machievirg ESG goals

A quarterly ESG newsletter 1s now published and
circulated with occupiers to encodrage engagerrent. Key
content for the newsletter inciudes inviting occuprers

to participate in the AMR installat:on programme,
comrmrurity engagement in‘tiatives and raisng bicdivers ty
awareness across the portfoo which include the
installation of bird boxes and bug hotels at Gloucester

At Wandswarth we have successfully managed to
‘ntegrate a critical -ocal community partner into Ferrer
Street through the letting of Unit 16 to the Wandsworth
Foadbark By ‘ett'ngthe unit at nil rent we nave erabled
t-em to continue to support peopie ard famiiies facng
severe nardsh'p across Wandswortn Borough  Inthe
last year over 11,0000 emergency focd parceis were
provided toloca housenolds in severe nardsrip. Wiha
larger faciity at Ferrier St they rave beer ab e to increase
treir errergency food provision by 71% throughoot the
borough and del'ver directly to those housero ds who
can~ot access ther Welcorre Centres.

“Wandsworth Foodbank are extremely grateful ic TR

roperty investment Trust for engfling our move 1o
Ferner St The warehouse provides us with a space (o
recerve, s0rt and stare large amounts of donated focd
and dispatch it to our seven Weicome Centres and
cirectly to people s homes \We are reaily grateful for this
cartnership as we Support 1oca! households through the
cost-of-lvng cnisis " Dan Frib wWardswortn Focdbark
Ma~ager

24
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The Colonnades s a'so central to the commurity
landscape of the Bayswater area and it1s vital that it1s
fully integrated into this ervironment We have continued
to work with our -ocal cormmunity pariners at the
Colonnades over 1€ last 12 mantns to help aileviate the
challerges of rough sleepers in the Bayswater area

Governance

In order to deliver our ESG targets it is essential that our
internal managemert structure s fuily aligned with our
strategy. e Sustainabil'ty and Social Responsiblity
Commtiee meets on a bimonthiy basis to ensure that we
are or track with our Sustainabiiity Roadmap objectives
tnro.gh the thorough review of current nitiatives and
impementation The Committee warks in partnership
with our managing agents (St'les Harrold Wiiliams)

to ensure we maintain a sustainable supply chan

whiich complements cur net zero carbor goals. This s
demonstrated through objectives set to ensure 100%

of waste materia: under landlord contro s not sent to
landfill The accreditatior of our managing agent to Safe
Contractor also demgnstrates our commitment to paying
ail directly empioyed staff on our assets a real Living
Wage Inaddition, the management teair attend regular
ESG training everits and seminars, continuing our internal
education around ESG and making sure that all avenues
are being explored to achieve positive outcomes across
the portfo o

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

This significant progress over the last twelve months
demonstrates our firm commitrment to bring forward our
net zero carbon 2050 strategy. Througn our tharough
carbon corsumption data managemert, GRESB
submission and MEES ‘mprovements we will be able

to ¢learly set out cur key objectives for the forthcoming
year

We will continue to expand our AMR programme to
maximIse our comprehensive dataset on Sierra+, This
will provide further nsight into how we can identify and
implemrent energy saving measLres, targeting Scope 1
and 2 emissions

In October 2023 we will have the Company's inaugura
GRESBrating Fromtais we will be able analyse the
results to formulate a robust strategy to strengther t's
rating ard target ar ‘ncrease of at least one star for the
next subrrsson

Annua Report & Accounts 2023

In order to further futureproof the portfoiio against MEES
we wisl continue to track our exposure to inefficient
assets tarough regular EPC analysis By reducing the
portfolio’s reliance on fossil fuels and implementing
furtner renewable energy sources through solar PV, we
wiil continae to drive dowr the higher EPC rated assets

Over the next twelve mortns we will strengthen our
management of Scope 3 emissions We will cont nue to
col.aborate with our supplers and occupiers 1o adopt
more susta rable pract ces reduce therr retance on
fossil fuels and del'ver best 'n class asset management
to improve cur pathway to net zero carbon tnrougn
careful.y planned and delivered interventions

By successfuily achieving these objectives over the
forthcoming year we expect to be able to declare
an ambitious improvement on oLr net zero carbon
commitment, br.aging it forward from 2050,

[
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Portfolio

as at 31 March

0.5%

2022 2022
£'000 %
UK Securities’
- quoted 385,876 40.5 518417 33.2
UK Investment Properties 73,957 7.7 96,255 6.1
UK Total 459,833 48.2 614,672 393
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 488,839 513 940,744 £0.2
Investments held at fair value 948,672 99.5 1,555,416 995
- CFD (credrtor)/debtor® o 4,662 05 7657 05
Total Investment Positions 953,334 100.0 1,563,073 100.0 & UK Securities
UK Property
T [ ] Continental Europe
as at 31 March Securities
2022 2022 CFD Debtors/Creditors
£'000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 385,876 35.7 518,417 256
- CFD exposure® 75,963 7.0 57,324 29
UK Investment Properties 73,957 7.0 96,255 55
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671,996 340
Continental Eurcpe Securities
- quoted 488,839 45.2 940,744 50.5
- CFD exposure? ) 7 54,943 51 87318 6.5
Total investment exposure! 1,079,578 100.0 1,700,658 100.0
31 March £ Securities
o at 3l Mare X 2022 2021 2020 2019 UK Property
Total investments £949m £1.555m £740Tm  £1,155m  £1297m
Net gssets £968m £7.563m £1,326m  £1,136m  £1,328m
UK quoted property shares 41% 33% 28% 3% 33%
Overseas quoted property shares 51% 60% H6% 61% 59%.
Direct property (externally valued) 8% 6% % 8% 8%
as at 31 March
2023 2022 2022
£ Benchmark Company Benchmark
P X % % %
GBP 33.6 351 339 336
EUR 42.3 41.3 419 42 3
CHF 9.9 35 7.4 71
SEK 13.8 13.8 16.3 163
NOK 0.4 03 05 24

J¥ secur tee nomdes one un sted e dng 000

Metuntgz sedansg. ganan TFC 2ontarts e d oe bz gnie sneet e 1z et
roes FZFC postons
Tots n.estrents ustattgozbeterposire noudngtne 9ross Laue ot LED pas tans
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Investment portfolio by country

Belgium

Xior Student Housing
Aedifica

Care Property Invest
Icade

Intervest Offices & Warehouses

Montea
Warehouses De Pau
Shugard Self Storage

France
Gecina
Klepierre
Argan
Covivio
Carmila
Altarea

Germany
Vonovia

LEG Immohilien
TAG Immochbilien
Aroundtown

Netheriands
Eurocommercial Properties
NSt

Unibail Rodameco Westfiela

Norway
Entra

Spain

Merlin Properties
Arima Real Estate
Inmobiliana Colonial

Notes

15,267
8,959
7,191
5,457
3,476
1,732
1,429

601

44112

34,321
29,984

22,445

16,785

5,741

1,170
110,446

72,456
14,868
13,014

4310
104,648

24,767
2,902
2,110

29,779

3509
3,509

26,908
10,531
4,161

41,600

» Comrpanes shown by country 07 st ng

-+ Theabove positons are the physicz! holdings .ncluded intae investments held atfa ¢ vaiue 1 the Balanze Sheet "o CFD pesitions s the net ot tie profit o loss on the

Market
value

%

1.0
0.9
0.7
0.6
0.4
0.2
01
01
46

3.6
31
24
1.8
06
07

116

76
1.6
1.3
05
11.0

2.6
03
0.2
3.7

0.4
0.4

28
11
04
43

Sweden

wihlborgs

Fastighets Balder B
Catena

Sagax
Sambhallsbyggnadsholaget
Febege

Pandox

Platzer Fastigheter
Atrium Ljungberg

Cibus Nordic Real Estate
Fastighets Neobo

Switzerland
Psp Swiss Property
Swiss Prime Site

United Kingdom

Seqro

Safestore Holdings
Picton Property Income
Industrials REIT
LandSec

Sirius Real Estate
Phoenix Spree Deutschland
Great Portland

Ediston Property
Londonmetric Property
Unite Group

CT Property
Workspace

Tritax Big Box REIT
Supermarket income REIT
Hammersen
Warehouse REIT

Atrato Cap

Urban Logistics REIT
Shaftsbury

Helical

Cap & Regicnal
Newriver REIT

Direct Property

CFD Positions (inciuded in

current assets and liabilities})

Total Investment Positions

CFD contracts (1 e not the nvestment exposure) meluded in the Balance Sheet curent assels and habilities

s

Arngal Report & Accounts 2023

21,999
19,804
11,166
10,677
8,410
6,382
3,939
2,706
1,493
1,274
742
88,592

40,606
25,547

66,153

79,223
42,509
32,628
28,318
28,199
23,664
23,137
22,973
19,440
17.115
15,219
14,262
13,390
7,033
2,909
2,827
2,700
2,573
2,494
1,709
1,408
1,205
941

385876

73,957

4,662

953,334

Market
value

%

23
2.1
1.2
1.1
0.9
0.7
0.4
0.3
0.1
0.1
01

9.3

42
27
6.9

83
45
34
30
3.0
2.5
24
24
20
1.8
1.6
1.5
1.4
07
0.3
0.3
03
03
0.3
0.2
01
01
04
434.5

7.8

05

100.0
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Twelve largest equity investments

i SEGRO

31 March 2022
Sharenoiding

value _ £792m  £77.3m
% of investment

portfolio’ 7.3% 4.5%
% of eguity

owned _09% 0.5%
Share price 768p 1346 0p
Segro (UK)

Segrois the largest UK REIT by market cap
and is the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listed in the UK with a
total portfolio of ¢.£18bn (split ¢ 62.0% 1n
the UK, ¢.38 0% in Continental Eurape, with
c.56.0% urban warehouses, ©.26.0% big
boxes and ¢.18.0% land and cther uses).

In the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industriat and logistics
Rental growth in these markets has been
extremely strong as thereremains an
acute supply-demand imbalance, fuelled
by tenantg’ requirements to deal with the
growth in e-commerce.

In Eurcpe, Germany and France arethe
group's largest markets with Haly thirg:
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outicok (and are
geographically iess space-constrained) In
2H22 UK valuations saw a sharp correction,
while EU valuations have lagged the
aggressive repricing of the UK. Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
manages largely to pre-let and develop at
yields significantly in excess of investment
values (C.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
netinitial vield of 3.7% at FY22). This has
been & successful formuta to drive both
earnings and NAY growth, as well as high
shareholder returns.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +457%

1 Notes:

The pertertage of iIncestent pootn o positons set out above noude exposures trrougn CFL S ot tne nd

- Thef e ezt iotzigna
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j VONOVIA

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £725m {£1499m
% of investment

portfolio! 6. 7% 88%
% of equity

owned 06% 0.5%
Share price €17.34 €42 31

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonovia I1s a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalisation. Atthe end of 2022, the
company owned & portfolio of ¢ £95.8bn,
primarily split between Germany {c 88.9%
of value), Sweden (c.7.4%) and Austria
{c.3.7%). The portfolic has increased
dramatically and stands at 548,000 units,
fotlowing a string of acquisitions, mostly
of isted peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hembla, Victoria Park, and BUWOG

Vonoviais involved in the whole value chain
ofthe residential sector, via its rental business
{€.80.1% of group EBITDA), third-party
developrmert segment (.6 7%), recurring
sales segment {c.4.9%), its value-add
segment {energy, multimedia, and other
services segrment, .4.6%) and its nursing
segment {¢.3.0%). The German residential
sectorremains heavily regulated, vet Vonovia
has continually been able to generate solid
rert growth (+3 3% in 2022}, whilst also
complying with regulations and assuming a
social role, which permits them to benefit from
critical political goodwill and partnerships {as
observed by the 20,000-unit portfolio sale to
the State of Berlinin 2021}, Even though asset
values have come under pressure, as seen
with alireal estate asset classes, operationally
the business continues to perform strongly as
seen by FFO Igrawth of 14 6% p/s drivenby
operational improvernents and healthy rent
growth. Moreover market evidence points

to further upwardrevisions torent growth
estimates as the supoly demand imbalance in
Germany persists.

The five-year total sharehoider return has
beer-45.7%

G der r=turns 2 e eSS N te 20a TUTTeny ZFthe ng ang

<

[ 1
31 March 2022
Shareholding
value £53.6m £61.5m
% of investment
portfolio” 55% 3.6%
% of equity
owned 1% 1.0%
Share price £20.85 €24.18

Klepierre (France)

Klepierre is a French REIT, which owns,
operates, and manages a portfolio of
European shopping centres, spanning ten
countries Atthe end of 2022, the company
owned a portfolio of ¢.£19.8bn, with major
exposures in France (€.38.3% of value),
ltaly (c.23.8%), Iberia {c 13.0%}, Germany/
Netherlands (¢.9.7%), and the Nordics
[c.87%). The company, like all shopping
centre owners, has reaped the benefits of
areturn to normality as social gatherings
are permitied and travel restrictions have
been Iifted demonstrated in its strong
rebound in footfall and tenant sales. Whiie
the ongoing shift towards e-commerce

as aretail channel has continued, it has

at a slowerrate, even retreating in certain
markets, with digitally native retailers
pivoting to physical by opening stores On
arelative basis, the company continues to
benefit from its 100% focus on Continental
Europe, without any exposure to weaker
UK and US markets. Lastly, the company
benefits from the experience of the
Chairman, David Simon, also Chairman
and CEC of Simon Property Group, which
owns a c.22.3% stake in Klépierre.

In 2022, EPS growth was +18.7% YoY,
benefiting from accelerating indexation
and occupancy improvements, with
EPRANTA broadly flat YoY. Meanwhile,
it's financial metrics remain conservative
with a netdebt to EBITDA of 7 9x and an
EPRA LTV of c 43 7% Its average cost of
oebtis low atjust ¢ 1.2%. and 1s expected
toremair low. as evidenced by its high
hedgingratio of ¢.90.0%, and weighted
average loan maturity of & Syears

The fve-year total shareholoer returr has
been-4 5%

cduz postons anctheportios

TR Property Investmert Trus:




¥ 'LandSecurities,

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _£59.3m  £45.2m
% of Investment

portfolio’ 5.5%  27%
% of equity

owned 1.3% _ 08%
Share price 621p 786p

Land Securities (UK)

Landsec is one of the UK's largest REITS,
with 3 portfolio valued atc £11bn. The
company's assets are a mix of offices
(€.51.0%), retail assets (¢ 36 0% split
between shopping centres and outlets)
and other uses (£.13 0% such as leisure
assets, retall parks and hotels) ¢ 61.0%
of the assets are in central London.
Sincejoining the business In 2020 new
CEQ Mark Allen has sought to alter the
company’s strategy, pledging to sell out
of its non-core assets (e.g. hotels, leisure
assets and retail parks), while increasing
the size of the development pipeline to
focus on large mixed-use schemes that
others do not have the capabilities to
deliver. In addition to the established office
development pipeline the company now
plans to spend an additional £7.5bn over
five years on mixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target. Balance
sheet management has been relatively
conservative with a very tong debt
maturity of 10.9 years as at September
2022, netdebt to EBITDA of 8.7x and LTV
at September 2022 of 31% {and lower
since that date following disposals of
large office assets including 1 New Street
Square). The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the development pipeline,
avoiding gearing up despite capex spend,
and has a medium-term target of LTV
rermaining in the mid-30s.

The five-year total shareholder return has
heen-17.0%.

T Notes:

5 gecina

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _£524m  £44.0m
% of nvestment

portfolio?! . 48% 2.6%
% of eguity

owned _08% 0.6%
Share price £€9555 £1143

Gecina (France)

Gecing ig the largest French REIT

andis one of the largest real estate
companies in Continental Europe by
rarket capitalisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was valued at c.€20.1bn,
comprising of offices (£.80.0% of value),
residential (¢.18.0%), and student
accommodation (¢.2.0%).
Gecina develops, manages, and cwns

a diversified portfolio, which is heavily
skewed toward the Paris region {¢.97.0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris in recent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
much-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
quality portfolio. As a result, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-linked
rents, positive reversion and a material
increase in occupancy levels YoY which
all helped to drive 7 4% EPS growth YoY.
Asset values during FY22 were broadly
fiat {-0.6% including value creation from
pipeline), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
stronger indexation, and highlights the
high quality of the portfaiio.

The company is one of a handful of
European real estate companies with an
A rating from Moody's and S&R given its
conservative financial profile, operating
with an EPRA LTV of .36.8%. The average
cost of debtis low at ©.1.2%, alongside a
high hedging ratio of ¢.90.0%, and a long
weighted average loanmaturity at 7.5
years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%,

:
31 March 2022
Shareholding

va_!L_J__s_e £42 5m £60 4m
% of investment

:Jor_tfoHo‘ 3.9% 3.6%
% of equity

owned 2.1% 20%
Share price 950p 1340p
Safestore (UK)

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning c.160 stores, primarily
in the UK (and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores). In addition the company
has a large footprint in the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new European cities (through both Jv
structures and outright ownership) taking
footholds in Holland, Spain and Belgium.
Safestore has a best inclass operating
platform which, along with peer Big Yellow,
allows it to dominate the UK storage
market, particularly interms of enline
search

The company has driven consistent
eamings growth both organically {through
like-for-like occupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions. The self-storage market also
performed extremely strongly during the
COVID-19 pandemic and has repeatedly
shown its resitient credentials during wider
economic turbulence

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +119.6%

> Thepercentage of nvestment portfciio pos hions set out above nclude exposures through CFD *or bath the individual pos tons and tie portfoio

The five-year total sharehotder returns are the retiims in the loca currency of the halding

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

S|
-t LR

31 March 2022
Shareholdirr{gijﬂm
value __£406m  £44.6m
% of investment
portfolio! _37% 2.6%
% of equity
owned - 1.0% 1.0%
Share price CHF104.0 CHF121.5

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading rea! estate companies, owning

a diversified portfolio of high quality

real estate assets in Switzeriand. At the
end of 2022, its portfolio was valued at
CHF9.4bn, compnising of offices {c.64.0%),
retail {c.16.0%), food {€.6.0%), and

other {c.14.0%). The portfclio is skewed
towards Switzerland’s key economic
centers, including Zurich (¢.57.0%, Geneva
{c.14.0%), Basel (c.8 0%). and other major
citiesatc21.0%.

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be helding up well.
Transactional evidence is light, but from
the few transactions taking place it seems
that property values for prime assets are
broadly stabte Similarly, demand for office
space in economic centers such as Zurich
and Geneva is expected to remain strong.
As aresult, PSP made further progress
during the year on its vacancy reduction,
lowering vacancy from 3 8% to 3 0% at
Dec 23, and saw like-for-like rents grow by
+2 2%; all this led to EPRA EPS growth of
+4.1% Moreover EPRANTA still grew 3%
over the year on modest revaluation gains
and retained earnings. LTV remained low
at 32.6%; amongst the iowest levels for
European property companies while its
current cost of debt is fixed for 4.7 years.

The five-year total shareholider return has
been «31.4%

T Notes:

31 March

Shareholding

value £373m  £359m
% of investment

portfolio” 3.4% 2.71%
% of equity

owned ) 9.9% 6 7%
Share price 69p 98p

Picton (UK)

Picton is a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industrial. The
£850m pertfolio, as at September 2022,
was €.58.0% industrial. ¢.32.0% offices
{of which ©.22.0% London and the South
East)and ¢ 10.0% retail {of which ©.7.0%
retall park). Along with a high quality asset
portfalio. where rental growth and capital
value performance have repeatedly beaten
relevant benchmarks, the companyis

run conservatively, taking very imited
development risk as well as maintaining

a very strong balance sheet. Forexample,
the company’s LTV as at December

2022 was ¢.26.0%, with long-dated debt
maturity (.10 years) and very limited
near term refinancing requirements. tn
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

a number of valuable asset management
opportunities, including both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space,
and the potential for residential conversion
in certain assets which could provide
lucrative upside versus current valuations

The five-vear total shareholder return has
been-0 4%.

iy industrials
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £34.5m  £53.3m
% of investment

portfolio’ - 32% 3%
% of equity

owned ___98% 9%
Share price 118p 198p

Industrials REIT {(UK)

tndustrials REIT 1s a UK focused

multi-let industrial business The portfolio
has been transformed over a number of
vears to focus solely onthe UK MLI sector,
and the £660m portfolio is now ¢.95% MLI
{as at September 2022) Over a number
of years the UK ML asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by
both yield compression and ongoing ERYV
growth {in the 12 months 1o December
2022 industrials REIT has seen LfL ERV
growth of +10.5%), with rents coming fram
a low base (average passing rentin the
portfolio was £5.94 at December 2022). In
addition 1o its strong underlying property
fundamentals the company's Hive
operating platform gives the company
access 1o data on enquiry levels and
dernand, as well as allowing for innovative
operational approaches such as the

use of digital short-form smart leases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfolio vacancy
Total shareholder return since IPO in June
2018 has been +28 0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstone at a
premium of +42 0% to the clasing price
before the offer was made.

The total shareholder return since listing
(15:06/18) has been +29 0%

sLodus pastansandtieptog
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' SEEL IS
31 March 2022
Sharehotding
value _ £269m  £47.8m_
% of Investment
portfolio’ . 25% 2.8%
% of equity
owned _ . .08% 1.7%
Share price £8.06 £10.59

Merlin Properties (Spain)

ierlin Properties 1s a Spanish diversified
REIT with a c.€11.3bn portfolic. The
majority of the company’s gssets are
offices (c.56.4%), where the company
focusses Its exposure on major cities,
primarily Madrid and Barcelona.
Additionally, the company owns shopping
centres (¢, 18.9%), data centres/logistics
(0.12.4%), with theresidual c.12 4% of
assets in land and other yses,

As aresult of inflation and continued

tenant demand in the Spanish market, the
business continued to perform well, with
average like-for-like rent growth of 7 3% and
year end occupancy of 95 1% (a 60bps YoY
improvement). Even though property values
are not insulated from wider market trends
{asset vaiues declined -1.5% YoY) yields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and are therefore fikely 1o provide more
protection going forward. During 2022,
Merlin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, comprised of 659 hank branches
letto BBVA forc.€2.0bnata 17% premium
to its book value (the BBVA portfolio
represented ©.15% of the total portfolio).

As aresult of this transaction, the company
managed to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps to ©.35.8% by financial year
end. This gives the company significant
flexibility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline in combination
outlook for property values. Moreover, its
cost of debt remains low, at an average of
¢ 2 0%, with a hedge ratio of ¢.99.6%, and

a weighted average ioan maturity remains
long at 4 9years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-154%

+ Notes:

. \’, PHOENIX
H ° SPREE

31 March 23 2022
Shareﬁoldmg

value i - £26.8m £57.9m
% of investment

portfolio’ 2.5% 3%
% of equity

owned 15.7% 14 7%
Share price 186p 382p

Phoenix Spree (UK)

Phoenix Spree Deutschland is a UK histed
investment company that owns residential
units, exclusively in Berlin, Germany. The
company is predominantly invested in
so-called ‘altbau’ properties (typically built
between 1500-1940) which offer features
that remain highly desired by prospective
tenants and buyers. Atthe end of 2022,
the company's portfolio was valued at
c.£776m. The company aims {0 maximize
sharehoider returns by converting

rental units into condeminiums and sell
these in the open market at significantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

to benefit from a structural supply and
demand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specifically, which led to healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6 6% ahead of the prior year. Furthermore,
increased mortgage costs wil likely mean
that many prospective buyers wilt rent

for longer as mortgages have become
more expensive. This will likely lead to
further upward pressure to market rents.
Nonetheless, property values reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of increased
interest rates, which led 1o a decline in the
EPRANTA of -9.7%, even as average sales
prices were still materially (+22.4%) ahead
of trailing book values. Whilst tfransaction
volumes have significantly declined as
aresult of interest rate increases, itis
expected that investment volumes should
pick up again once interest rates have
stabilized.

The five-year total sharehelder return has
been -40.5%.

b SWISS PRIME SITE
371 March 2022
Shareholding

velue £25.6m £27.4m
% of investment

portfaliot B 2.4% 1.6%
% of equity

owned . 05% 0.5%
Share price CHF76.05 CHFS1.25

Swiss Prime Site (Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site is one of the largest
real estate companies in Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolic of real estate
assets, coupled with aleading real estate
investment (indirect) business. It owns

a diversified real estate portfolio, which
was valued at CHF13.1bn, comprising of
offices {c.44.0% of value), retail {c.26.0%),
logistics (9.0%), hotels {¢.7.0%), with the
residualc.14.0% of assetsin land and
other uses.

Despite a slowdown in transactions,
underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear 1o be holding up well,
as the few transactions that did take
place appeared broadly suppaortive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demand remains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts to simplify its corporate
structure (the sale of Wincasa, a real
estate services company) and exit the
retail business (Jelmoli}. Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with like-for-like rent growth of +1.9%
and further vacancy reduction (-30bps

10 4 3%) whilst EPRA NTA increased
modestly with +1.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reduced
by 130bps over the year to 38.9% and cost
of debt was kept low at 0.9%.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +5 9%

» The percentage of nvestment pert“olio pos tions setout above include exposures through CFD for both the ndividua- pos tons and the portfol o
+ The five-vea lotal snarehalder retuing are the returns in the local cur-ency o the held ng

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value {%)

Retail Industrial
West End of London 50.0 -
inner London* 17 376 393
South West - 10.7 10.7
Total 51.7 48.3 100.0

*Inner | ondon defined as ins.de the North and South £ cular

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

% 01to 5years

510 10 years

] 1010 15 years

1510 20 years

| 20+ years
I S £ .

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft}: 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
TRebel Specsavers

The property comprises alarge
mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed
N the mid-1870s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres orthe north east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Read, close fo
Bayswater tube station and ongoing
development of The Whiteley The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished in 2015 with a new 20 year
lease being agreec with Waitrose.

AJ
[R]

Gross rental

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 36.000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lackdown Bakers

Site of Just over an acre, 56 metres ‘rom
Wandsworth Town railway station ir an
area thatis predominantly residentia
The estate compnises 16 small industrial
units generally let to a mix of small 1o
medium-si1Zed private companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

Contracted rent

£29m
£99m
£1415m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq f): 63000

Principal tenants: Infusion GB, Pulsin Ltd

The 10 Centre comprises six industra’
units cccupied by three tenants and
sits ona4.5-acre site, Gloucester
Business Park is lccated to the east of
sunction 11A ofthe M35 and one mile to
the east of Gioucester City Centre. The
rroperty also has easy access 1o the
A417 providing good links to the M4 via
janzstion 15

TR Property e cestrent Trust



irvestment crpettive gnd benchmark

The Company’s investment abjective is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationzlly and aiso in
investment property focated in the UK,

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return index in sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, 15 free-float based and as
at 271 March 2023 had 109 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure to any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details about the index and performance.

Busmess hooei

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company
The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strateqy, corporate governance;

risk management and internal control; the overall
mnvestment and dividend policies: setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring
nvestment performance

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedle
Investment Business Limited as the Company's
Alternative investment Fund Manager (‘AIFM') with
portfolic management delegated 1o Thames River
Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund
Manager. Gearge Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Eliictt the Finance Manager. They are
supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Repaort of the Directors
on pages 49to 51,

in accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD"), BNP Paribas
has been appcinted as Depesitary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provides custedial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by Columbia Threadneedie Investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set cut on
pages 58 and 59.
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Strategy and investment policies

The investment selectior process seeks to dentify
we'l managed compan.es of all s'zes. The Marage!
general'y regards future growth and captal
appreciat.on potentia’ more h:gn y than immediate
yield or discodnt to agset value

Altncugh the investment objective allows for
nvestment or an interrat onat basis the Comrpany's
benchmark is a pan-Europear Index and the
majarity of the iInvestments wi! be ‘ocated n that
geograph cal area. Direct property imvestments are
located in the UK only.

As a dedicated imvestor in the property sector

the Compary carnot offer diversification outs:de
that secter, nowever, w thin the portfolio there
are mitations, as set oot be.ow, on the size of
rd'vidual nvestrents held to ersure that there 's
divers:ficat on with 0 the portfalio.

Tne maximum holding 1n the stock of ary one ssuer
or of a single asset 15 imMited to 15% of the portfo 1o
at the port of acquisiton In additicn, any holdings in
excess of 5% of the portfoio must not n aggregate
exceed 40% of the portfolio.

The Manager currentiv applies tre following
guidel res for asset a location

UK tisted equities 25-60%
Continental European

listed equities 45 - 75%
Direct Property — UK 0 - 20%
Other listed equities J-5%
Listed bonds 0-5%
Unguoted invesiments 0-5%

Tre asset al ocatior guide re Lpper 1im tfor UK

sted eguties Mas roreased from 50% 10 50% Tre
requiremert fartne weignt-gto UK comrmeerc a
property ras ~ot changed ~owever the rumber of
companes ho ding reg estate iocated i~ Eorope
bot wiha UK st~y ~as roreased trereforetre
asset alocator gudel re ~as beer cranged o
accomodate t- g

The Compary may er-pioy levers of gearing fram
time 1o tme w th the aim of ernarcing returns,
sJdbject to an overall maximuarr of 25% of the portfolic
va Je

[7 certain rrarket conditions the Marager may
consider it prudent ~ot to e ploy gear ng at al, and
to hold part of the portfono ) cash.

The current asset alocation gl del ne is 10% ret
cash to 25% net geaning (as a percentage of portfolio
value)

IMvestment properties are valued every s'’x montns by
an extermal independent valuer Valuatiors of al the
Grouap's properties as at 31 March 2023 have been
carnied cut an a ‘RICS Red Book’ basis and trese
valuatiors have been adopted in the accounts.

The Group charges 75% of annual base ranagemert
fees and firance costs to capital, in ine with te
Board's expected .orng-term spiit of returns = the
form of captal gains and ircome Al performance
fees are chargedto captal

It 1s the Board's current irtent-or to nold ro more
than 15% of the portfolio in isted ciosed-ended
vestmert compan es

Some companies mvesting rcommerca or
res:dertal property are structured as isted exterral y
rmanaged ccsed-ended investment companies

and therefore form part of our investment uriverse
Altnough trisis ot a model ustally favoured by our
FLnd Manager scre investments are made in these
structores ~order tc access g particular sector of the
market or where the managemerttear s regarded
as especia 'y strong. If trose cor~paies grew and
becore a arger part of our investment un verse ard:
or new co™pan es come 1o the market 0tk s formrat
tne Fund Manager may w sh o ircrease exposcre

o trose ver ces Iftre Marager w snes toircregse
rvestrerttc over 15% tne Covpary veit make an
arrourcerent aocord tg'ly

TR Property Investnent Trust




Key Performance Indicators

The Board asscssces the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’s
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs'):

KPI

The Directars regard the gut-performance of the
Comrpany's net asset value total return relative to
the bencnmark as being ar overall measure of value
delivered to the shareho:ders’ aver the .gnger term.

Board monitoring
The Beard reviews the perfarmance in detal’ at each meetirg
and discusses the results ard cutlook with the Manager

KPI

The principa: objective of the Company is a total
return objective, however the Fund Manager also
aims to deliver a redabie d:vidend with growth over
the longer terr.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews statements on income received to
date and income forecasts at each meeting.

KPI

Whilst expectation of investment performance 1s a key
driver of the share price discount or premium to tne Net
Asset Value of an investrment trust company over the
longer term, there are periods when the discount can

widen The Board 1s aware of the vuinerability of a sector-

specialist to a cnange of investor sentiment towards that
sector, or to perods of wider market urcertainty and the
impact that can nave on the discount.

Board monitoring

The Board takes powers at each AGM to huy-back and
Issue snares When considening the merits of snare

buy- back or issuance the Board looks at a number of
factors, in addition to the short and langer-term discount
or premium ta NAV, to assess whether action would be
beneficia’ to shareholders overai:, Particular attertion

1$ paid to the carrent market sentimert, the potential
impact of any share buy-back activity on the liquidity of

the shares and on Ongorg Charges over the longer term.

Annual Report & Accounis 2023

Outcome
NAV Total Return* {Annualised) _-350% -1.8%
Benchmark Total Return {Annualised) -34.0% -49%

* The NAY Total Return is calculated by assum’ng dividends paid by the
Conpany are reinvested nthe assets of the Zompany on the relovant ox
d v dend dete Thebenchmark total retum assumes duvidends are reinvested
ontne re evant ex-dradend dates
Although this KPI has not been met in the current year, it
has aver 5 years. The NAY Total Return has exceeded the
benchmark for the previous 12 years

QOutcome
Compound Annual Dividend Growth® 69% _4.5%
Compound Annual RPI 135% 57%

* Thefina d'v dend in the time series divided by the initial dividend in tne penod
raised to te power of 1 divided by the number of vears in the seies

The exceptional inflation figure for the year to 31 March
2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen
behind RPI on both a one and a five year basis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered in the current and
previous 12 years, despite a fail in earnings through the
COVID pandemic. Over the longer term, the dividend growth
rate has comfortably exceeded RPI on an annualised basis
(10 years 8.3% vs4.0% and 20 years: 10.6% vs 3 6%).

Outcome

Average discount™

. -é: 8,0@

Total number of shares repurchased - -

* Average dally discount throughout the period of share pr.ce 1o NAV with
income Source Bloomberg

The discount has seen wide fluctuations through the year

as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The

average discount over 1 year s wider than we have seen for

a while however, over b years is at a similar levelto the prior

year lavel of -4.6% and to the ten year average of -4.9%
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPI
Tie Board is conscious of expenses ard ams 1o
deliver a balance betweer excellent serv ce and costs

The AIC definitior of Ongoing Charges ncludes any
direct property costs ir addition to the management
fees and all other expenses incurred in running a
pubtcly listed company. As 10 other :vestrrent trust
comparies nold part of their portfelio 'n direct property
(they either hold 10C% of their portfoiio as property
securites or as direct property) in add:tion to Onga.rg
Cnarges as defined by the AIC, this statist'c's snown
without direct property costs in order to aliow a ¢ earer
comparison of overall administration costs with those
of ather funds investing m securities.

Board monitoring

The Board moritors the Company’s Orgoing
Charges, r comrpar.s01 1o a range of other
investment trust compan.es of simiiar size, botn
property sector specialists and other sector
specralists. The broker provides a st of comparies
It believes is a reaspnable comparison Note there s
ne other Investment Trust special sing in property
related equities

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and
the Board reviews reports on actual and forecast
expenses durrgiie vear

KPI
The Compary must cont rde 10 reet the req.iremenrts
of Secton 1158 of tre Corporation Tax Act 2510

Board monitoring

The Board revews finarc a forrat or a~d forecasts at
each meehng wricr set ot tre regu rements outl ned m
Secton 1158

Qutcome

Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees . 073%  0.64%_
Ongoeing charges excluding

performance fees and direct

property costs 0.67% 0.62%

The Compary's Orgoing Charges are compet'tive wnen
compared tc the peer group

Costs over the year nave rot increased sigr-ficantly, the
rorease Inthe ongo:ng charges percentage s as aresu't
of the fall in NAV over the year

Qutcome

T=e Drrectors believe that the cond t ons ard orgoing
reguiremerts rave been met rrespect of the year 1o
31 March Z2C23 ard thatthe Corpany w contirueto
~eet the regL re™ents

Tre KPIs are cemsidered tc be Aterrat ve Perfor~ance Measures as defimed later r the Aoz Report

[&8)
o
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Principal and emerging risks

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the
risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. It has included below details of
the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
order to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commodity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks to raise interest rates in response.

Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated. This
nas brought challenges not seen for many years and particularly impacted the property

sector.

The legacy of COVID-19 has seen ongoing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of resourcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are ‘isted on the Londcn Stock
Exchange and the share p~ce 1s determined by supply and
demand. The shares may t-ade at a discount or premium
tothe Company's underlying NAY and thig discount or
premium may fluctuate over ume

Poor investment performance of the portfalio

relative to the benchmark

The Campany's portfoiio is actively managed In add tion

to investment securities, the Company also invests in
commercial property and accordingly, the port*o io may not
follow or outperform the return of the bencnmark,

Aprua' Report & Accounts 2023

The Board monitors the leve of discount or premium at
which the shares are trading over the short and longer term.

The Board encourages engagement with the shareholders
The Board receives reports at each meeting on the activity
of the Campany's brokers, PR agent anc meetings and
events attended by the Fund Manager.

The Company's shares are avanabie through the Columbia
Threadneedle savings schemes and the Company
participates in the active marketing of those schemes
The snares are also widely avalable on open architecture
pratforms and can be he.c directly through the Company's
registrar,

The Board takes the powers to i1ssue and 10 buy back
shares at each AGM

The Manager's objective 1s to outperform the benchmark
The Boarg regularly reviews the Company's long-term
strategy and investmen: guidelines and the Manager's
relative positions against those

The Management Engagemen: Committee reviews the
Manager's performance annualy The Board has the
powers to change the Manager i deemed appropriate
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

o

Market risk

Bo'h share prices ana exchange rates may move rapidly and
can aaversely 1mipact the value of the Company's portfolic
Alnough the portfonc s avers fied acress a number of
geographical regions, the nvestment mandate 1s focused
on a single sectar and theefore the portfol o will be sensitive
wowaras the property sector, as wel as globa: equity markets
more generally.

Property companies are subiect to many factors whieh can
adversely affect ther :nvesiment performance They incluae
the genera, economic znd finanaal envirenment in which therr
tenants ope-ate interest rates, avalabiity of investment and
development f'nance and ~egulauons ssued by governments
ana autnortties

Rising interest rates have an impact on botn capita vaues
and distrbutons of property companies H gne” interest rates
depress cap.ial values as investiors demand a marg nover an
nereased nsk-free rate of retur

Althougn the UK has now exited tne Eurcpean Lnion. the
structure of is relationship with Cont nental Europe continues
10 evove and there coud be an impast on occupation across
each sector

The COVID-19 ¢'obar panaemic nas changed the way we live
and wark ang unceriamty remains regarding the impact on
economies anc property markes around the wora both inthe
short and 1Gnger term

The mvasion of Ukraine by Russ.a .n Sebruzary 20272 crested
‘urtner marxet volatinty and uncertainty which remanns
mflation and nterest rates are at ewwvated levels not seen in
over 10vears

Any strenglnening or weaxkening of sterhing will have a drecs
impact as a proportion of our balance sneet's ne.cin 1on-GB?
aenomnated currencles The curency exposure 1s mantanec
M line w'th *ne bencnmark and wil cnange over time As at

37" a7cn 2023, 66 47 of the Company’s exposure wwas 1o
currenc es other than stering

The Board receives and considers a regular report from the
Manager ceta’l ng asset allocation, investment decisions,
currency exposu-es, gearng levels and ratianale 1n ~elation
10 the prevar ng market condiions

Tne report considers the .mpac! of a range of current
ssues and sets out the Meanager's response in posinioning
e portfolic anc the ongomg implications for the property
market valuations overal and by each secior

P Praoperty Insestmert Trust



The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings .n the uncerlying portfoio putting pressure
on the Company’s ability te grow the dividend could result
from g number of factors:

« A'though most companies negatively impacted by
COVID-19 returned to pay-ng divicends during the year,
wWith many at pre-covid levels, rising interes? rates have
posed a new threat The effect on dividends has (in
general] not been felt tnrough tne financial year that we
are reporting on but the increzsed debt costs will have an
impact on earnings and hence distributions in fuiure,

.

prolongea vacancies in the direct prope-ty portfo®io and
lease or rental renegotiations as a result of longer-term
changes fosowing COVID-19;

sirengthenng of sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in sterling terms. The Company saw
amateral increase in the level of earnings in the years
leading up to the COVID-19 pandem:ic A significant factor
Inthis was the weakening of sterling following the UK's
aecision to leave the EL (‘Brexit’]. Although this has now
passed, the value of sterling may continue to fluctuate in
ne near or medium term as the longer-term implications
of Brexit and COVID-19 and the impact on the UK and
European economes become clearer The invasion of
Ukrame by Russia has also increased marke: uncertaimiy
The ionger-term implications will differ across the
European economies This could lead to currency volatiity
Strengthening of sterling would lead to a fall in earnings;

.

adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or cther
ncome received by the Company,

- changes In the timing of dividend receipts from investee
companies;

»legacy impact of COVID-19 on working practices anc
resulting changes in workspace demand, and

» negative ounook leading to a recuction in gearing ievels in
orcder o protect capinal has an adverse effect on earnings
Accounting and operational risks

Disrupticn or failure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties anc the
risk that those suppliers provide & sub- standard service.

Annua: Report & Accounts 20232

Tne Board receives and consicers regular :ncome
forecasts.

Income forecast sensiivity 1o changes in FX rates 1s also
monitored.

The Company has substantial revenue reserves which are
drawn upon when required

The Board continues to monitor the impact of interest
rates, Broxit and COVID-19 and the .ong-le m implications
for income generation.

Third-party service providers produce penodic repo-is
to the Boara on the'r controi environiments and business
continuation provisions on a regular bas:s.

The Management Engagement Committee considers the

performance of each of the service providers on a regu.ar
basis and considers their ongoing apponiment and terms
and conditions

The Custodan and Depositary are responsible for the
safeguarding of assets Inthe event of a loss of assets
the Deposiary must return assets of anidentcal type or
corresponding value unless 1 1s able to cemonstrate 1that
the loss was the result of an event beyond its reasonable
caontrol

39

M3IARAO

[
Q
=
[+7]
=
3
@
3
Q
o

SIUBWIRELS [eIdueUlH

AINSO[DSIP (N41Y Pue AIBSs0|6

WA Lo 330N

UOIlBUHO U] JaPI0UBIeUS



Principal and emerging risks
continued

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust company, subject to
continuing ta meet the re evant eligitn!' 'y conditions.

As such the Company s exemnpt from capital cains tax on
the profits reahsed from the sale of investments

Any breach of the reigvant e'igibaity conditions could leac
1o the Company 0sing investment Trust 5ta1us and being
subject to corporat'on tax on capital gams reabsed witim
the Company's porifolo

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply witn the London Stock Exchange
osting Rutes and Disclosure Gu'dance and Transparency
Rules; failure to meet the requ.rements of the Alterative
Investment Fund Managers Regulations, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK. Eurcpean and
overseas 'egislation affecting UK companies

Fallure to meet the required accounting standaros o
make appropr ate disc.osures in the Half Year anc Annuai
Reports

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, ether tnrouch the use of bank debt o- der vatives,
may be utised trom Tme to time YWh: st the use of
gearing ‘s intended to enhance the NAV total return, t wil
have the opposite effect when the return of the Campany's
investment porifol ¢ s negaiive or where the cost of debt
1s higner than the return from the portfolio

Other Financialrisks

The Company's investmen: aciv.iies expose 1116 a vanety
of financial nieks whizn inc'uce couaterparty credit risx,
iaudity © sk and the valuation of financ al s ruments
Personnel changes at Investment Manager

~css of portfoio manager or other <ev <1aff

40

“he ‘nvestment Manager monitors the investment portfolio,
income and proposed divicend ievels (10 ensure tha' the
prov.gions of CTA 2070 are not breached The results are
reported to the Board at eacn meeting

‘ncorme forecasts are reviewed by the Company's tax
adv sor through tne year wno alsoreports to the Board o0
the vear-end tax posimon and on CTA 2010 compiiance

Tne Board recerves regulsr reguiatory updates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, lega advisers and
ine Auditor The Board considers tnose reports ang
recommencations and ta<es act.on accorcingly

Tne Board receives an annua! "eport and upcate from the
Depositary

[nternal checkhsts and review procedures are 1n place at
service providers.

The Board receives reculz- reports from the Manager on
she leve's of gearing in the portfolio These are considered
aga.nsi the geznng I mits set out in the Board's investment
Guidelines and a'so in the context of current marker
conditions anc sentiment. The cost of del? 1 monitorea
z21¢ & ba'ance scught between term, cost and flex-bility

Cetalls of these r sks together w.th the po cies or
managing tnem are “ounc In *he Notes to the Financ a
Starements

The Chairman conducts reguia meetings with the Fune
Managemen: ieam

The ‘ee bas'e protects tne core nfrastructure and deptn
and gua 'ty of resources "ne fee struciure Mcentwvises
outpe-formanice and s fundamental in the ability to re*ain
<ey staff

TF Property Investmer: Trust



Long-term viability

Inaccordance with provision 31 of tne UK Corporate
Governance Code, wnich requires the Company

to assess the prospects of the Company over

the longer term, tne Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Company over the comirg three
vears This perod is used by the Board during the
strategic planning process as it considers this
period of time 1o be appropriate for a business of the
Company's nature and size

This assessment takes account of the Company's
current gposition and the policies and processes for
managng the prircipal and emerging risks set out on
pages 37 to 40 and the Company’s ability to continue
Inoperatior and to meet its I'zhbilities as tney fall due
over the period of assessmert.

I making this statement the Board carried out a
robust gssessment of the principal and emerging
risks facirg the Company, including tnose that might
threaten its business model, future performance,
solvency and liguid'ty

In reaching their conclusions the Directors have
reviewed three year forecasts for the Company with
sensitivity analysis to a number of assumptions’
investee company dividend growth, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, tax rates and asset vaue
growth.

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ Tre Compary nas a long-term investment
strategy urder wnich it invests mamly in readily
realisable, publicly isted securities and which
restricts the levei of borrowings

+ Of the current equity portfolio, 50% could be
igudated within five trading days and 71% w'thin
10 trading days.

- Ona Group basis, current assets exceed cdrrent
labilities at the Balance Sheet Date

+ The Company .nvests in real estate related
companies whictk hold real estate assets and
invests in cormercia real estate directly. These
nvestments prov.de cash receipts in the form of
dividerds, property income distributions and rental
incorme

Arnual Report & Accounts 2023

+ The Company 1s able 1o take advartage of i3

closed-end investmert trast company structure
o hold a proportion of its partfolio in less lquid,
direct property and the ess liguid securities of
smailer compan’es with a view to long-term
outperformance.

- Atthe Balance Sheet date the Company had

£120 million undrawn or its revolving 'oar
faciities

+ The structure has aisc enabled the Company to

secure long-term financing EUR 50 millian loan
notes 1ssued .n 2076 are due to mature at par in
2026 and GBP 15 millior lcar notes .ssued on the
same date are due to mature at parin 2031,

+ Theresult of this is that of our own debt 32% has

fixed nterest rates (assLming all loars are fully
drawn). The frexible structure allows debt levels to
be rapidly increased and reduced as needed

+ Theimpact of COVID-19 on the UK and Eurcpean

commercial property markets continued to
cirminish through the year This resulted in dividend
receipts from nvestee companies in the current
year significantly stronger than the prior year as
the majonity of companies have now returred 1o
paying dividerds, although some at fower levels
than before the pandemic

- Tre mvasion of Ukraine r February 2022 has

created further market vo:atility and uncertainty
However the portfolio remains fughly Lquid,

- The core part of the direct property portfciio 1s

defensively pesitioned, witn 40% of the iIncomne
secured t¢ a major supermarket for over 10 years
and benefits from fixed uplfts. The balance of the
portfoilo 1s focused on the industrial sector where
the supply and demand dynamics remain positive
from an accupationa’ standpoint.

- The expenses of the Company are largely

predictable and modest in comparisen with

the assets. Regular and robust monitoring of
reverue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken
througnout the year Analysis has shown that the
Company could suffer a reduction in earnings of
86% and st'li be able to meet its nabinites from
revenue cashflow as they fell due Experses could
be met ertireiy from capital if required due to the
liguid nzture of the portfoio.
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Long-term viability
continued

» Index 'mked income will benefit from the increase
rorterest rates

- Global interest rate mcreases have adversely
affected the property sector and the resuiting
increase in the cost of debt wil uitimately have ar
.mpact on earn.ngs.

Some companies’ fixed debt for the med-um term
s0, for these compares, the impact of curret
rates wil: not be feit for a while.

- The Compary has no employees and
conseguently does not have redundarcy or otner
empioyment related habiities ar respons bilities.

The Company retaing titie to 118 assets neld by the
Custodian which are subject to further safeguards
mposed on the Depositary

+ Theimpact of a range of factors have been
corsidered in terms of the potential effect on
stering 66% of the portfe'io s expesed to
carrenc.es cther than sterlirg

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Rea. Estate wi'l cortinue to be an irvestib e sector
of iInternational stock markets and investors wi’
cortrue to wshto bave exposare 1o that sector

+ Cosed-end investment trust comparies wi'
cont nue to be;n dermand by .nvestors and
regJaiatior or tax eqgislation wil ot cnangeto
an extent ta make the structure urattract ve
comparson to other investment products

+ Treperformance of tre Comrpany wil cortimue
to be sat sfactory Srou dtre Board deerr that
performarce s less tran sat sfactory, it ras tne
appropr.ate powers torep ace tme Investroent
Marager.

The Company’s business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled it to operate over many
decades and the Board expects this to continue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full over the coming three years to 31 March 2026.

By order of the Board
David Watson

iz TR Procerty Investmert Trust
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Directors

David Watson

Appointed:
Aprit 2012

Experience:

Dav'd necame Chairmar in July 2020,
prior to which be served as the Board's
Senior Independent Director ((SID7)

and Chairmran of the Audit Committee
David spent 9 vears as Firance Urector
of M&G Group lc where he was a
director of fodr equity mvestmen:
rrusts, and marerecently at Aviva

olc as Chief Finance Officer of Aviva
Gereral Insurznce He was Chairmar of
Aegon Asset Managemert UK plc unti:
September 2022, Jav.e ¢ a Chattered
Accountant and has had a distingu shed
career nthe financ al services .ndustry

Skills and contribution 1o the Board:
“hroughout hes execat ve career Javit
Fas accumuiatec re evars sk lsin
‘nerce aud tarcrskmanggemer: arc
experence nthe reestment indastry
H-s expernierce as SiZ arc Charor g
rumper of beards hawe bl T sgrficant
experience .nsharebolaerard riestor
enrgagemenrt

Other appointments:
Sasciscdrert ya Drectorctthe
Pracential Assarance Cornany where

te Charsthe fad* Comrmr mee

[

Kate Bolsover

Appointed:
ctober 2016

Experience:

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and J P NMorgan Cazenove
netweer 1995 ara 2005 where she was
Managing Direcior of the mutaal func
bus'ress anc ‘attery director of Corzerate
Commdnicatong Prior to that, she worked
exenswely i the investmeant fund incustry
anc was Managing Director of Baring's
rmrutuai funds grous Kate was prevous y

a non-executive arector of JRMorgar
Amencan Investment Trust ple, Seror
Irdeperdert Director o Montanaro UK
Smal er Companes “rastand Chairran
and Trusiee ot Tomorrow's Peors e

Skills and contribution to the Board:
From her exec live experierce Kate
controgtes s grfcantarc reevant ske s
ofthe rvestirert nousry Herroeor
varnous boards a'sc gives ber the re evan®
experience r shareho der ard investor
srgagement

Other appointments:

ate scarrenty Charmar of F ze 7y

Az ar Jaiues PLT arc Sencr irgeperoent
Drecior oFIr sesce 300 InTome = Js

~

L 12z Sheisasca nor-executye
Drectoro® Bae G ¥orgd & Co L ardo®

Be e,JeHeathcare T1ast

Tim Gillbanks

Appointed:
sanuary 2078

Experience:

Tim s a Chartered Accourrant, with
30vyears experience n the firanca!
services anc Investmen: irdustry Most
recently he spent 7 3 vears a1 Columbia
“hreadneedle Investments, intially

as Ch.ef F nancial Officer then Chef
Gzerar ng Officer and finally as rtenim
Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and contribution to the Board:

Trr brrgs &« de experience, partiza arly
rfArarcal seraces arc inyestmert
managemer: H s preswious franc.a
experence adrng his execdiive caresr
riorrs b r s ro e asthe Charmar of
the Luds Sommiles

Other appointments:

Trrescdrrerty a Non-Erecat se Jrector
ctZrovr Shpey &Zoblimted Jaras
Hercerscr JK.Ircesiors Limited anc
~ar s Hencerson Grodr Holdngs L e ed
He s a'soYice-Charof the Board of
Trusiees of B ooc Cancer UK.
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Sarah-Jane Curtis

ST IV B T,
Appointed:

January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Irstitution of Chartered Surveyors, She
was previous!y Business Director a7
Bicester Village for Va ue Retall. Prior
tothat, Sarah-Jane was a director of
Covert Garden for Caprtar and Counties
PLC. She has also worked for Grosvenor
far 24 years, inclucing as L.ondon Estate
Director (retall/res dential) and Func
Manager for LiverpootONE.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extersive
experence durirg her varied

career part:cularlyin the retar and
experence sectors andin funo and
‘nvestment management aclivities

Other appointrments:

Sarah-Jane s currently Property
Drector of Ricester Motion as we'l as a
consaitant 1o Value Retar FLC

alols]
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Andrew Vaughan

TR I S BT RIS
Appointed:

August 20272

Experience:

Andrew joined Regeveo UK n 2000 as
Managing Director and was appointed CEQ
2011 Hebeganhis career at Frnends
Provident where he was & fund manager.
Andrew spent three years at Moorfield Group
as an Investment Specialist before joining
Redevco. He has a BScin Urban Estate
Surveying.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Andrew brings deec experience as a par-
European direct property investor

Gther appointments:
Andrew s Chief Executrve Office of
Redeveo 3V

Busocla Sodeinde

I ST I

Appointed:
January 2023

Experience:

Busoaisa Chartered Management
Accountant who has spent most of her
executve career n Financia. Services. Unt'l
2019 she was a Managing Director/Chief
Financia Officer a1 State Street Global
Markets EMEA, prior 1o which she was
Finance Director tc the Corgorate Finance
team of Deutsche Bank Capital Markets.
Busolais the founder of a cigital publishing
firm focusedon literacy and s also a
supporter of women-ted ventures

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Busela has considerable experience in

the financial services sector and from her
non-executive career has gained expertise
nauditand risk She alsc has expernence
in d gital (social) media and consumer
engagement.

Other appointments:

Busclas a non-executive director of
Hargreave Hale AIM VCT PLC, The
Ombudsman Services, a trustee of the
Church Commissioners for England, where
she sits on the Audit & Risk Committee and
a Trustee of The Scouts Association.
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Managers

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

MarcLs Phayre-Mudge joined the managemert team
for the Company at Henderson Glaobal Investors in
January 1997 .nit'ally managing the Company's direct
oroperty portfolic ard latterly focus'ng on rea estate
equities, manag ng a rumber of UK and par-European
rea. estate equity funds n addition to activies ir the

Trust Marcus moved to Thames River Capitar n Octaber

2004 where re s alsc fund manager of Thames River
Property Growtl & Income Fund Limited Prior to joining
Henderson, Marcus was an nvestment surveyor at

Kr: ght Frank (1990) ard was rade an Assoc ate Partiar
in the fund managerrent division (19953 He qualified as
a Chartered Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc {Hons) in
Land Management fram Read g Univers-ty

George Gay

George Gay ~as beer tre Direct Property Fund Marager
sirce 2008 He jcined Tnames Rwver Cap'tal m 2005 as
assistart direct property marager and q.a 1ied as a
Crartered Surveyor ~ 2006 George was previous v at
nche Oy ~vestment agent Morgar Pepper where as
an nvestment graduate ~e gared corsiderab e ~dustry
experence He ~asan Ma -~ Property Va oat om and Law
from Cty Ur versity

™~
w2l

Jo Elliott

Lo E liott has beer Firance Marager simce 1995, first at
Henderson Global Investors then, since January 2005,
at Thames River Capita , wher she jomed as CFO for the
property team She joined Herderson Globa Investors
ir 1995, where ste Tast recently neld the position of
Director of Property Finance & Cperations, Europe,
Previously she was Corporate Firance Manager with
London and Edinburgr Trust plc and pror tc that was
an investment/treasary analyst with Heron Corporation
plc uo has aBSc {Hons) in Zoology from the University
of Nottingham and qualfied as a Chartered Acccurtant
with Ernst & YoLngir 1988

Alban Lhonneur

A ban Lronneur Deputy Fu~d Marager, joired Tharmres
River Cap tal =~ Auguost 2008 He was previcdsly at
Ctgroup Giobar Markets as an Equ ty Researc analyst
focusng on Cortinerta Eurcpear Rea Estate Pricrto
that e was at Soc ete Gerera e Secur t.es. where ne
focused on trarspart equity researcn Henas a BSc

- Bus ness ard Marage~ert from the ESC Toulouse
~clud ~g crevear at Brone Un vers ty, Lordon

He a so atterded CERAM N ce H'gr BLsiress SCm00

I 2005 ~e obta red a post graduate Specaiised Master
- Firarce .~ 2005 from ESCP-EAP
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Report of the Directors

Tne Directors present the audited financial statenents

of the Group and the Compary and their Strategc Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March
20Z3. The Group comprises TR Property Investment Trust
plc and its wholy owned subsidiaries As permitted by
legislation, some matters normaily inctuded in the Report
of the Directors nave been inc wded in the Strategic Report
because the Board considers them to be of strategic
impertance Trerefore, the review of the business of the
Compary, recent events and cutiook can be found on
pages 410 42

Status

Tre Company is aninvestment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
an nvestment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of
tne Corporatior Tax Act 2010.

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each whicn are premium
listed on the London Stock Exchange

The Company has received confirmation from HM
Revenue & Customs that it has been accepted as an
approved investment trust for accounting pericds
commencing on or after 1 April 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved companies in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Regulat'ons 2077 (Statutory instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Compary ras
conducted and witl continue to conduct its affairs so as
to maintain investment trust status The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and wili continue to conduct
its affairs, r such a way as to comply with the Individua!
Savings Accounts Regulatons The Ordinary shares can
be he:d in Individual Savings Accounts {15487,

Results and dividends

At 31 March 2023 tre net assets of the Company
amounted 1o £668 milion (2022 £1,563 mllion), o0 a per
share basis 305.13p (2022; 492 43p) per share,

Revenue earnings per snare for the year amounted to

17 22p (2022: 13 69p) and the Directors recommend the
paymert of a fimal dividend of 9.85p (2022: 9 20p) per
share bringing tne total dividend for the year to 15 50p
(2022 14.50p) In amvrg at their dividend proposal the
Board also reviewed the ncoire forecast for the vear to
March 2024

Arnuz Report & Accounts 20723

Performance details are set out nthe Finarcial Hignlights

on page 2 and the outcome of what the Directors consider

lo be the Key Performance Indicaters on pages 35 and 36
The Chairman's Statement and the Manager s Report give full
detars ard analysis of the results for the year

Share capital and buy-back activity

At 371 March 2323 the Company had 317,350,280 (2022
317.35G,980) Ordnary shares in 1ssue

Al the AGM in 2027 the Directors were given power to buy
back upto 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since that AGM e
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares urder
that authonty, which will expire at the 2023 AGM The Board
will seek 1o renew the autharity to make market purchases
of the Comparys Ordinary shares at this year's AGM

Since 1 Apnl 2023 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for carcellation. The
Board has not set a specific discount at which shares

wili be repurchased.

Management arrangements and fees

Detais of the management arrangements and fees are

set oul in the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning on page 58. Total fees paid to the
Manager i any ane year (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4.89% of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds. Total fees payable for the year t¢ 31 March 2023
amourt 1o 0.6% (2022 2.0%) of Group Eguity Sharehoiders’
Funds No performance fee was earned in the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022 £24489,000)

Basis of accounting and IFRS

The Group and Company firancial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a
go:ng concern basis in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and in conformity with
the requirement of the Companies Act 2006 The financial
staterments have also been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Financia’
Statements of investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts (SORP ) to the extent that it is consistert
with UK-adopted Internationai accounting standards

Tne accounting policies are set out in note 1 1o the
Firarcial Statements on pages 80 1o 83
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

Tre Company’s Fimancia. Instruments conmpr se is
mvestment portfolio, cas~ balances, borrow ngs

ard debtors and creditors that anse directly from -ts
operations such as sales and purcnases await.rg
settlement profit or loss balances on derivative
instraments and accrued income and expenses. The
financia, r.sk management objectives and pol cies ansirg
from its “inancial instruments and exposure of the
Compary torisk are disclosed 1 note 11 to the financia:
statements.

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibiiity for the Group's
systerr of risk managemert and irterna: cortrol and

for reviewing its effectveness. The Portfol.o Marager s
responsib.e for the day to day investment maragemert
decisions o1 behalf of the GroLp Accountirg and
Company Secretarial services have both been cutsourced

The syster of nsk management and nternal control ams
to ensure that the assets of the Group are safeguarded,
proper accounting records are mairtaned, and the
financia! informrat on used with nthe busiress and for
publicatorn srelabe Cortro of tnerisks identfied,
coverng financia: operaticnal, compliance and risk
maragement, 's embedded in the cortro s of the Group
by a senes of regular nvestment performarce and
attribLtion statements, financal and nsk analyses, AIFM
and Partfo'io Manager reports and guarteriy contro.
reports.

Key risks have beer dent'fied and contrels pat

piace to mit'gate them, 1mc ud™g trose rot direct y the
respors bil'ty of the AIEM ar Portfol'c Manager The key
risks are expla ~ed in more detan 1 the Strateqic Report
o pages 37 to 40

Tne effect veress of each third-party providers ~terra
CoNrois S assessed o an ongoing bas s by te
Co™pa~ce and Risk departrents of the AlFM a~d
Portfo o Marager tre Ad~ ristrater and the Compary
Secretary Eacn mairta rs is own syster cf nisk
Tanagement and nter-al cortrot ard the Board and
A.dit Cammittes recewe regu ar reports from tnemr
The risk manage™e~t and internar co™ro. syste™

‘s designed to provide reascrabie bat rot absc ute
assdra~ce aga rstraler a- v sstatement or ossardic
ma~age. ratter thar e v nate rskof farLretoac- eve
object ves Astre Co~pany ~as "o ermp ovees and 15
operatcra fooct ons are Ldentake” by TR rd part es

the Audit Com ttee does not consider 't necessary for
the Company to estabiish ts own rternal audit functior
Irstead, the Audit Coemmitiee relies or internd cortrol
reports receved from its principal service provider s to
satisfy itself as to tne contro's i place

Tre Board nas estabnsned a process for dentify ng,
evaluat ng and managng ary major nsks faced by the
Group Itundertakes an arnua revew of the Group's
system of risk management and internal cantrol in line
with relevant guidarice. Busiress risks rave also been
ana'ysed by the Board and recorded in a risk map that
s reviewed reguiarly. Each quarter the Beard receives a
formal report frormr eacn of the AIFM, Portfolio Manager,
the Adrministrator and the Company Secretary detailing
any dentified interna’ contral fallures or errors

Tne Board a sc considers tne f.ow of information and
the irteract o~ between the th rd-party service prov ders
and the comtro's 1 place to ensure accuracy and
completeness of the record ng of assets and incorme.
The Board receives a report from the Portfoio Marager
setting oLt tne key cortrols ir operation

Tre Board aise nas d rect access tc Company Secretarial
advice and services provided by Columb.g Threadneed.e
irvestment Busiress Limited which, through its
rom.nated representat’ve, sresponsib'e for ersuring
that the Board and Corm'ttee procedares are {ol.owed
and that app cable regulat ors are complied with

These contre s have been ir p.ace throughodt the year
Jnder review and Jp to the date of sigr rg the accounts

Key r sks idertified by the Aud tor are considered by the
Audt Corrmrittee 1o ensure rabust nterrai controls ard
mortor fg procedures are in place in respect of these

r sks onanongo Ng basis

Annual General Meeting (the 'AGM’)

Tre Comparys AGM wii be ne d at the Rova’ ALtomob e
Ciub, 89:97 Pal Mall, Lordor SW1TY SHS or Trursday

20 Joy 2023812 30pr Tne Notce af AGM s setolto”
pages 11Cta 114 and exp anatory ~otes fo .ow o~ pages
1% gnd 116

Material interests

Trere were o contracts sobsistrg durrgor attre end
of tre year ~ wncr g3 Drector of tre Company s or was
ratenaly ~terested a~d ot sorwas s gn ficart o
reabor (ot e ComMpa~yshos ~ess Nolrectorras a
contract of service winthe Co~pary Furirer deta s
regarding tre D rectors appo ~t~e~t etters car be
fourd o~ page 57

TR Property Irvesirert Trast



Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The Company confirms that there are no iterms which
require disciosure under Listing Rule 9 8 4R i iespect of
the year ended 31 March 2023,

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable stat_utes and other sharehoiders’
rights, snares may be issued with such rights and
restrctons as the Compary may by ordinary rescluton
decide, or (if there is no such resolution or so far as it does
not make spec fic provision) as the Board mray decide.
Subject 1o the Articles of Assoc ation (the Articles), the
Corrpanies Act 2006 and other sharehoiders' nghts,
Jnissued shares are at the disposal of the Board

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company, wnen votng
Is undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords its
owner one vote,

Restrictions on Voting

Nc member shall be entitled to vote if he has beer served
w.th a restriction nolice (as defined in the Articles) after
farure to provide the Compary with information cencerming
interests in those shares required to be provided Lnder the
Comparies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisabie at a generai meeting of the
Company in respect of whict the business being vated
upon is being heard. Votes may be exercised in person, by
proxy, orin relation 1o corporate mermbers, by corporate
representatives.

The Articees provide a deadline for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {or such shorter time as the
Board may determine} before the mesting (not excluding
nor-working days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be heid inuncertificated
form and, subject 1o the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject
tothe Articles, any member may transfer al’ or any of his
certificated shares by an instrurnert of transfer in any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may approve

Arndal Renort & Accounts 20232

Significant Voting Rights

As at 31 March 7023, the following shareholders had notified
that they held over 3% of the voting rights in the Company on
anon- discretionary basis

Shareholder % of voting rights*

Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.0%

Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 8.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 4 9%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5.5%
Quilter Chevict Investment Management Ltd 3.7%
Investec Wealth & Investment Lid 3.0%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.2%
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%

* See above for further nfarmation on tne voting ngews of Ordinary shares

Singe 31 March 2023 the Company has been informed that
Integrafin Holdings pic hold 4.0% of the voting rights in the
Company

Articles of Association

The Corrpany’s Articles of Association may oniy be
amended by a special resclution at a General Meeting of
the sharehoiders. They were amended at the 2021 AGM
and are available to view or the Company's website

Corporate Governance

Full details are given in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 49 to 55. The Corpoiate Governance Report
forms part of this Directors’ Repart
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Directors is accountable to snareholders for
the gavernance of the Corrpany's affairs This statemert
describes how the pr n¢'ples of the 2018 UK Corperate
Governance Code (the Code’} ‘ssued by the Firancial
Reporting Councll {tne FRC} in 2018 have been appl ed
totre affairs of the Company The Code ca= be viewed at
www fre.org vk

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In apolying the prncipies of the Code, the Directors

have aiso taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance pubashed by the AIC {the ‘AlIC Code), of wnich
the Company 1s a member. The AIC Code establisnes the
framework of best practice specifically for the Beards of
nvestment trust companies. Furthermore, the AIC Code
has full endoisemert of the FRC. which means that AIC
meiTbers who report aga’nst the AIC Code meet therr
obligations under the Code and the related disclosure
reguirements cortamed in the L.sting Ru'es Tne AIC Code
can be viewed at www.thea .c co.uk.

The Directors beieve that during the vear Lnder revew the
Company has complied winh the main principles and relevant
provisions of the Code, nsofar as they apply to the Company's
business, and witk the provis'ons of the AIC Code

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company d'd rat comply with
the foliowing prowvis ons of the Code in tne year ended 31
March 2023

Provision 9 Due to the nature and structure of the
Comrpany the Board of ron executive directors does rot
feel 1t 15 appropriate to appo.nt a chief executve

Frovision 19 Tre Cha rmar has served on tre Board for
mare than rire years 11 accordance with the AIC Code,
the Beoard nonetheess corsiders that re s rdeperde~t
He wil stand dowr at tre forthcoming AGM

Provisior 24. The Board beteves thrata Drectors, nciudirg
tne Chairan shol'd ston a of tre Board's Comir ttees

Prov siom 26 Astne Company nas roerrployess and 18
operatiomal fu-ct ons are undertaker by tined part es, the
Aud't Committee does ~ot cors der it appropr ate for tre
Company to estab s ts cwn ternal andit forctior Toe
Co™pany's sery ce orov.ders provide assorarce of treir
effective systerr ¢f r'sk ~arager-ertard ~ter-a a~d
control

Provis on 32 Tre Board does ot nave a separate
Re~_nerat or Cormttee Thefurctors of 3
Re~_~erato” Comr tlee are cammed ot by e
Manage~et Ergage~e~t Lo r ttee

wn
o

Composition and Independence of the Board

Tre Board current y consists of six Directors, all of
whom are ron-execut ve The Board's irdependence,
nc uding that of the Chairran, has been considered
and all of the Directors are deemed to be
rdeperdent n character and nave no relationskips
or ¢ recumstances which are likely to affect therr
judgermenrt.

The Board sLbscribes to the view expressed ntne

AIC Code tat long-serving Directors shouid not be
prevented from forming part of an independert majority
it does not cors’der that the length of a Director's tenure,
misolation, reduces the 1 ab ity to act independently,
The Board's policy on tenure is that continuity and
experience add significanty to the strength of t1e Board,
although 't bel eves in the merits of ar ongoirg ard
progressive refresament of ts composition.

Diversity

The Board recogr.ses the benefit of divers ty and

as at the date of th.g report 1t comprises three men
and three worren, Diverstty 1s taken into account as
part of the recruitmert, appoinrtment and succession
plannng prozess The Board ‘s corrm tted to
appoirtng the most appropriate candidate, regardless
of gender or other forms of diversity and therefore no
targets nave been set agairst wn-ch 1o report

Inaccordance with Listrg Rule 9 8 6R {9, (10}
and (11] the Board nas provided tne fal owing
rfornation nre atio~ to its diversity

Board Gender as at 31 March 2023

Number

of senior

Number Percentage positions

of Board of the on the

members Board Board

Men 3 50% 22
Wwomen 3 50%! 1@

The Company does not d sc'ose the number of Directors
nexecutve managerent asth s:snotapp! cab e foran
nvestment Trust company

The three senar pos T ons are Cha rman of the Beard, Serar
Independen: D rector and Charrman of the Aud < Comm tiee
Notwe the posian of the Chairman of the Aud Corim ee
s not currenty defined as & sen ar pos T onuncer the L st ng
Rues, however the Board be eves that, for an nvesimen: frus?
company, Tshoud beregarded as such as - sbroad vequ vaen:
“othe ChefFrnanc g Officer of atrad ng corpany
Thgmeesthel stngRues targer of 40%

FThsimeels el st ng Puestarge: of 1

TF Prozery Insestmert Trus:



Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023 ™

Number
of senior
positions

on the
Board

Number Percentage
of the
Board

of Board
members

White British
or ather White
(including minority-

white groups) 5 83% 3@
Mixed/Multiple
Ethnic Groups 1 17% -

The Company does not d'sclose the number of Directors
nexeculve managemen: as thisis nat applicable for an
‘nvestment trust company

+ Thehree sen-or pos tions are Charman of the Board, Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Comimittee
Note the posion of the Charman of the Audr Commitiee
15 not currently defined as a senior pos tion under the Listing
Ruies, however the Board helieves that, for aninvestment trust
company, it should be regarded as suck as 11s broadly equivalerit
wothe Chef Finanaia Officer of a trading company

The information inciuded in the above tabies has
been obtained through guestionnaires completed by
the irdividual Directors

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Companies Act 2006 and any direct.ons given
by spec.al resolution, the business of the Company
15 managed by the Board who may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whether relatinrg to the
management of the business of the Company or not
ir particular, the Board may exercise all the pawers of
the Company ta borrow money and to mortgage or
charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and
Jrcaled captal and to issue debentures and other
secLrities and to give security for any debt, hability or
obi'gation of the Company to any third party

Board meetings

There are nc co~tracts or arrangements with third
parties which affect, a'ter or termirate upon a
change of control of the Company

Directors

Simon Marnison retired from the Board at the
conclusior of the 2022 AGM. Andrew Vaughan
was appointed a Director on 1 ALgust 2022 and
Buso a Sodeinde joired the Board on 24 January
2023 The Directors’ biographies are set out

on pages 44 and 45. All Directors will stand for
re-cloction by sharchaolders at the forthcoming
AGN N accordance with the Code, witn the exceptior
of David Watson, who will retire from the Board at
the conclusion of the meeting. Kate Bolsover wi:l
succeed nim as Chairman and Tim Gilibanks will
become Senmor Independent Director

Board committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee,

a Nomination Committee and @ Management
Engagement Committee, which also carries cut
the funct:orns of a Remureration Committee. All
the Directors of the Company are non-execuative
ardserve oneach Committee of the Board It has
heen the Company's policy to include all Directors
on all Committees This encourages unity, clear
communication and avolds duplication of discussion
betweenr the Board and the Committees

Treroles and respansibilities of each Committee
are set out in the ndividaal Committee reports
which fol.ow. Each Committee has written terms
of reference which clearly define its responsibilit es
and duties These can be found on the Company's
website, are available on request and will a'so be
avallable for inspection at the AGM.

The nurnber of meetings of tne Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Directors, are snown below.
Board
Attended

Eligible

6 6
6 6
2 2
6 6
& 6
4 4
2 2

David Watson
Tim Gillbanks
Simon Marnsan!
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan
Busola Sodeinde”

Retired from t1e Board on 76 July 2022
Appomited to the Board on 1 August 2622
Appantedio the Board on 24 January 2023

Audit
Attended

O = NN = NN

MEC Nomination

Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

Q= NN - NN
| - md b o (D ek sl
- el ol ed O = ed
— ek ek (O el w3

ir add-ticn to formal Board and Comrmittee meetings, the Directors also attend a number of ad hoc meetings which

are canvened as and when necessary
Annus Report & Accounts 2023
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Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

The Boaid is responsibie for tre effect ve stewardshup
of the Company's affairs Certain strateg c issues

are monitored by the Board at meetings agairst a
framework whicn has been agreed with the Manager.
Addrional meet rgs may be arranged as required. The
Board nas a formal schedu'e of matters specifically
reserved for its dec sion which are categorsed under
varous headings, including strategy, managermeni,
structure, capita, financial report ng, nternai controls,
gearing, asset allocation, share price discount, contracts,
mvestrrent policy, frmance, risk, investrent restrctions,
performance, corporate governance and Board
membership and appointmerts

Inorder to enabie them 1o d-scharge ther respons:hiities
all Directors have full and time'y access to relevant
information. At each meeting, the Board reviews tne
Company's investmrent performarce and considers
firancial analyses and other reports of an operaticnai
nature Tne Board monitors comphance witn the
Company's objectives ard s respensible for setting asset
allocation and rwvestment and gearing . mts within whick
tne Portfo.uo Manager has d scretion to act and thus
supervises the management of the Imvestrent portfol.a,
wich s contractually delegated to the Portfolio Manager

The Board has respors b ity for tre approval of
nvestments ir unquoted nvestrrerts and ary
I~vestrments in funds managed or advised by the
Portfo.o Marager It nas a'so adopted a procedure
for Directors, 1the furtrerance of tner duties, 1o take
‘ndependert professional advce at the expense of the
Corrpany

Conflicts of interest

Ir line w th the Cor-panies Act 2006, tne Board has tne
power to authonse any potentia cont (cts of interest
t~at may arse and impose such 't or corditons

as tthirks Ait Areqister of potential conflicts s
~airtained ard s rev ewed at every Board meetirg

1o ersoere g deta s are kept up-to-date Approprate
aJthor sation will be so.g~t pror to tne appoirtmert of
ary new Director or fary ~ew conflcts arse

Relations with shareholders

Sharehcider re aticrs are g ven ™gn [t or ty by t-e
Beard the AIFM and tre Portfol o Marager Tre primie
TediuT by vt o tre Carpany comrmunicates vt
snareholders sthrowgm the Ha f Yeara~d Annua
Reports whicr a ™iic provide sarenoders wis a oiesr
wrderstandng of tre Companys activtesadtrer
res.1s. T~ s formaticn s suppe™mented bytreda v
ca cuator of tre Net Asset va e of tre Corrpany's
Crdnary srares v ighig pub sed o~ tre Lordor
Stock Excrarge

This information 1s aisc avaiiab.e on the Compary's
website www trproperty com together with a
monthly factsheet and Manager commertary

Trne Annuat Report ard Accourts and Notice of the
AGM are ssued to sharenolders so as to provide at :east
twenty work ng days notice of tne AGM, in accordance
with corporate governance best practice. Snarenolders
wishing to lodge questions -n advance of the AGM, or t
contact tme Board at a~y other t me, are invited to do so
by writing to tre Company Secretary at the registered
address givenon page 118

General presertations are giver 1c both shareho ders
and ana ysts fo'lowing the pubiication of the annual
results. All meetings between the Manager and
sharenclders are reported to tne Board.

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Sect.on 172 of the Carrpanies Act 2006 requires
directors to act -~ good faith and in a way that is the
most Hkeiy 1o promote the success of the Company.
M accotdarce with the requirerrerts of the
Comparies iMiscellanecus Reporting) Regu'ations
20718, be'ow the Company explairs now tne
Directors have d scharged tner duty under section
172 durng the year Fulfiling this duty naturally
supports the Compary 0 achieving its Investmenrt
Object ve and ne'ps ta ersure that a.l decis ons are
made n a respo~sble and susta ~ab.e way

Cr appomtment Directors are provded with a
detaired nduction out ming thewr duties. legaily

and regu atory as a Director of a UK pubiic nmited
company and continue to receve regular relevart
techrica updates and trairing Tre Directors also
Fave access to the advice and serv.ces of the
Compary Secretary and, wner deemed recessary,
trey have the opporturity to seek independent
profess'ora advice - tre furtherarce of thenr duties
as a Drector atthe Compary's expense

Decision making
The importance of stakercider consideratiors
~ particular 7 the context of decis on-rmzkrg s
regL.arly broaght to te Board's attent on by t1e
Compary Secretary ard taker ~tcaccou t at every
Board meet rg Tre Board considers tre ropact
tnat any vatera decis ot w  ravear a re evant
stakeno ders to ensare tratitis makirg a decisior
trat promotes tre orgter~ seccess of tre Copary
wether i she forexa™pie rreator todvidends,
“ew ~vestert opportunt es or the Cortpany's
future strategy I~ add tor, trne Baard, together witr
tre Manager ~oids a meeting focused or strategy
or ar arria bassitolook ahead nthe rarket and
a~t cpate potental scemaros ard now th s Tay
rpact tie Compary s stakeboiders

TR Property reestment Truse



Stakeholders

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company's stakeholders and ensures that they are
considered during ali its discussions and as part of its
decision-making. Since the Company 1s an nvestment
trust company that s externally managed, the Company
does not have any employees (the Directars have a

Company), nor does it have a direct impact on the
cormrmurity or envronment in the corventional sense.
The Board recognrises i1s key stakeholders and explaing
beiow why these stakeholders are considered impertant
to the Company and tne actions taken to ensure that
their nterests are taken .nto account,

Letter of Appomtment and are not employees of the

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Shareholger support s
essential to the ex'stence
of the Company and
celivery of the long-term
strategy of the business.

The Manager

Holding the Company's
shares offers investors a
licuid imvestment vehicle
through which tney can
abtain exposure o the
Company’s diversified
portfolio. The investment
Manager's performance s
critical for the Company
to successtully deiiver tg
investment strategy and
meet 1ts objective

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

The Company has over 3,000 shareholders, including institutonal and retai investors

The Board 1s committed to mantaining open channels of communication and to engage with
shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful n orde; to gain an understanding of
their views These include the channels below:

+ Annual General Meeting — the Company welcames and encourages attendance and
participation from shareholcers at its AGM The Manager gives a presentation at the
AGM on the Company's performance and the future outlock Shareholders have the
opportunity to meet the Directors and Manager anc to address guestions to them directly
The Company values any feedback and guestions it receives from shareholders ahead of
and during the AGM and zkes action or makes changes If and when appropriate.

« Publications — the annual and hatf vear reports are made avaiiable on the website and
sent to shareholders. These publications provide information on the Company and its
portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Company's financial position
This is supptemented by daily publication of the NAV on the London Stock Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feedback fram
shareholders {o improve its publications.

- Shareholder meetings ~ the Manager meets with shareholders peniodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

- Working with the Brokers — the Manager and Brokers work together to mamtain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with reguiar updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

- Shareholder concerns - In the event that shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do 5o at any time by wr'ting to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Cirector 1s also avalable to shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has falled to
resolve or for which such contact s inappropriate

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship witn the Manager is crucial, as the
Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, «ong-term returns in line
with the Company's investment objective Important compenents in the collakoration with
tne Manager, representative of the Company's culture incluge those listed below.

- Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at al' ievels, allowing time and
space for cniginal and mnovative thinking

* Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully cansidered and understoog hefore any
husiness desision 1S made,

« Ensuring tha: any polential con‘tots of imerest are avaided or ranaged effect'vey

The Board ho'ds detailed discuss ons with the Manager on all key strategic and operat.ona!
topics on an ongoing basis o aadition, the Chairman reguizdy meets with the Manager 1o
ensure a close dialogue 1s maintained

53
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

Arange of advisers
enabies the Company

to function and ensure
that it meets its relevant
obigations asan
mvestment trust company
and a constriuent of the
FTSE 250.

Lenders

Availabilty of funding and
hguidity are crucial to the
Company's ability to 1ake
advantage of mvestment
opportunities as they arise

Regulators

The Company can orily
operate with the approval
of its regulators who have
zegiimate nterest In how
the Company operates in
the market and treats .is
shareholders.

Investee Companies

Portfol'c companies are
uitimately shareholaes
assets ana the Boarc
recogrrses the importance
of good stewardship aad
communicat.on wth
‘nvestee Compan es in
meetng tne Company's
nvestmen? objective anc
strategy

The Board maintans reqular contact with ‘ts key external providers and recerves regu'ar
reporting fram them through Board and committee meet'ngs, as wel as outs:de of the
regular meeting cycie. The aavice, 8s well a3 1ner neeas ana views, are routinely taken into
account. The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses ther performance,
fees and continuing appointment at 12ast annua’y 10 ensu-e that the key service providers
continue ‘o funct on at an acceptabie ‘evel and are appropriately “emunerated to deliver

1he expected level of service The Audit Committee réviews and evaluates the control
aenvironments in place at each sevice provider as appropriate

The Boa-d needs 1o demonstraie 1o lenders that it s a well-managed bus ness, capable of
delivering long-term returns cons'stently

Tne Board regularly considers how it and the Company meet the varous "egulatory and
statutory obligations and fohows voluntary and best-practice guagance, ncuding now any
governance decisions it makes can have an impact on 1s stakenolners, both 1 the shorter
and nthe longer 1erm

The Manager commuricates regularly with pertolic companies and 1 an eigaged
stareholger (01 beha* of the Company) The Board mon tors the Manager's stewardsnip
arrangements and receves regu'a” feedback 01 meet.ngs vath the management of portfol o
companies ana votng at the ~ general meetings

TheBoard s always mindfu, of the requ remerttoact in

the best nterests of srare~o ders as a whole and tc ~ave

regardto tre otner reguirements of section 172 wh ch for>

part of Board's decision-mak ng process Tre failow g key

dec sioms taken by the Boaid dunng tre year ended 31 Marcr
CZ23areexarplesaftns

Gearing

Dur rgtrefiranc a year, tre Compary co t n.ed 1o
Lhihisets existing revelv.rg annas car fac i tes and
fo .owing areveew of the ava ate oplions eac” were
rerewed o~ broady si ar terms as thereceqa s fe
doethroughout tre year Tre Board s keem to mainta 0
awdera~ge of bark rgre aticnshipsto evsure tat t
has access to a diverse range of terms a~d s "ot re ant
or any are pravider Tre fac: tes provide fexbiity ad
compementtng onger-ter™ pr wate paceert fixed
term debttratis - place

54

Dividends

Subject 1o snarero.der apprava of tne proposed firal
divdend the Corpany wl payatota divdend of 15 80p for
tne financia year represent ngar rorease of 6 9% or the
prev-oJs year Ircomerose sharpy as compares regomed
paving dirdends ard as aresat th syearsdvdend s
covered by earr'rgs Intal forecasts for the ‘imancia year

tc 31 Marcn 2024 indeate thatreverue may fataganasa
n.mber of compan es have s.spended dividends The Board
recogrises e mpertance of dv-derds to snarerolders and
s.hbject to carefu: review of tre Corrpary's revense forecasts
ardreserves 1ogeter vt~ tre ~yestrert o took trerars
prepared 1 Lse rever e resenves 1C s.pport t1e dradends
padto shareno ders over per.ods of ~cor~e shartfal or

v atinty for dent fled reasors

TR Property investmen: Trast



Portfolio management

During the year the Board continued to focus on the
performance of e Manager in achieving the Company's
Irvestment object ve witnin an appropnate risk

framework The Board continued to consider the ‘mipact

on the Company (inc uding portfolio activity, nsks and
opportunities, gearing, revenue farecasts and the operations
of other third party providers) of a number of events through
the financial year to ensure that the portfolio had sufficient
res:lience together with the Company’s cperatioral structare
to meet the unprecedented circumstances.

Culture and business conduct

The Board believes that having a good corporate

culture, particularly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key staketoiders, aids delvery of

Its long-term strategy . In ine witn this purpose, the Board
promates a culture of openness, debate and integrity through
ongoing engagement with the Manager and with its other
service providers. The Directors agree that establishing and
maintaining a healthy corporate cuiture within the Board and
inits interaction with the Manager, sharehoiders and otner
stakeholders wi'l support the delivery of its purpose, values
and strategy. The Board strives to ensure that its culture s in
1ne with the Company's purpose, values and strategy

The Company has a number of policies and procedures

In place to assist with maintaining a cuiture of gooad
governance Including those relatirg to diversity, Directors’
corflicts of interest and Directors’ dealings in the Company's
shares The Board assesses and monitors comphance with
these policies as well as the general culture of the Board
regularly threugh Board meetings and in particular durnng
the arnual evaluation process (for mere information see the
Board evaluation section on page 56).

The Board seeks to appoint the best poss:ble service
providers and evalLates their service on a reguJlar basis as
described on page 58. The Board considers the culture of the
Manager and other service providers, Inciuding ther policies,
practices and behaviour, through regular reporting from
those stakehoiders and in particular during the annual review
of the performance and continuing appointment of all serv.ce
providers

Employee, social impact and wider community

The Board recognises the requiremnenrt under the Companies
Act 2006 to detail information about buman rights,
employees and communty issues, including inforrmation
about any policies it has N re.aton 1o those matters ard

the effectiveness of those po icies These requiramenis,
practicaliy, are "ot apphcable to the Company as it has no
employees. all the Directors are nor-executive and it as
odtscurced ali operational fungctiors to tnird-party service
providers Therefore, the Compary has not reported further in
respect of these provisions

Annual Report & AcCounts 2023
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Directiors’ indemnity

Directors’ and Cfficers’ habrity insurance coverisin
place in respect of the Directors. The Compary's Articles
of Association allow 1t, to the extent permitted by the
Companries Acts, to ndemn fy the Directors against any
Tability.

wodal abalens

The Company has entered intc deeds of indemnity for

the benefit of each Director of the Company in respect of
iabilities which may attach to them in their capacity as
Directors of the Company These provisions, which are
quatifying third party ndemnity provisions as defined by
section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were introduced in
Lanuary 2007 and currently remain in force.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors wio were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors’ Report are listed on pages 44
and 45. Having made enquines of fellow Directors and of the
Company's Auditor, each of the Directors confirms that:

- sofarasthey are aware, there 1s no informat.on of which
the Company's Auditor is unaware; and

+ each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit informat'on and to establish that the
Company's Auditor 15 aware of that nformation
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This nformation is @iven and should be interpreted m
accordance with the provisons of Sect'on 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

L atten

By order of the Board,

Columbia Threadneedle Investment
Business Limited,

Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

+ Review the Board ard its Committees ard make
recommendat:ors to the Board inrelation to stracture
size and comrposition, the balarce of knowiedge,
experience and skill ranges.

+ Consider succession planning and tenure policy and
oversee tre development of a dwverse pipeline,

- Cors.dertnere-election of Directors; and
Review the outcome of the Board eva'uation process

The Noemmation Cormmitiee meets at least annually,
and more fregLently as and when reguired Ittast et in
March 2023,

Activity during the year

The Committee discussed successicn p'anring of

the Board, its tenure and diversty poncies It reviews
arrualytre size and structure of tne Board and w)'l
continuge 1o review successior planning and further
recruttment, tak ng into account the recommendat ons
of Board evatuatiors. The Committee appoirted a search
consultant ard, fol'low.ng nterviews witn a nurmber of
suitable candidates, trecommended the appo rtment of
Busola Socde nde to tne Board,

Board evaluation

Dur ng the year the Board engaged T'™ Stephensor

of Stephenson & Co, an independert company wihicn
special.ses in mvestrrert trust board eva'vations, to
facitate ar ndependent evaivat or of tne effect veress
of the Board, its comm ttees ard the performra-ce of
each Drector [0 additior to tne Ditectors, the most
sen.or mempers of the Invest~ert Ma-agementtear-s
were nterviewed Mr Stephenson’s report was dscussed
By the Cormittee

The eva uatior was considered by e Com~ittee 1c he
constructive rterms af anawys rg Board compesit on and
providing recor~merdatiors 07 Beard successior plar~ing

There were ro s:ign ficant act ons ar s g from the

eva wation process ard twas agreed tnat tre current
co~oostorcftre Board ardits Co~itiees refected 5
Sotabe ~xof sk ls and expererce ardt-attme Board
asa vwhoe tre adewdual Directors a~d ts So tless
were funcror g effective y

58

1maght of the external performance evaiuation, the Board
confirms that the performance of each Director continLes
10 be effective and demonstrates therr commitment to
their rale Therefore ail Directors, w tn the exception of
David Watson, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM Furtner information on eacn Director's
skilis, exper ence and their contribution 1o tne Board are
ootlined intrebiographies on pages 44 and 45

i1 accordance with tne prov.sions of the Code it s tre
irtertior of tre Board to engage an external faclitator to
assist with the performance eva'uatian every three years
and the next external evaluaton w | be carned out during
the year ending 31 Marcn 2026 The Board wil. continue
to complete an mterna' board evaluation annually in the
ntervering years

Beoard's policy on tenure

Prov sior 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Governarce
al'ows a different approach ta tenure ir relation to .nvestrnent
companies, reflecting Fow they d ffer to operating
compan.es in ot naving a chief executive The Board took
nto consideration the approacn and introduced its 'Policy
Governing Board Miembers' Tenwre and Reappointrent’,
Trus policy cutlnes the Board's approach to tenure ard
reappontmert of non-executive directors [t states its belief
that the vaiue brought through continuity and experience of
Directors win longer peniods of service is 1ot orly desiratle,
but essertial ir ar investment company The Board did
rotfeelthat it wou'd be appropriate to set a specific terdre
it for irdividual Directors ar tne Chairman of the Board

ol 115 committees. Instead, the Board wil seek to recrunt

a new Durector. on average, every Two Lo three years so as
regilarly tobrng the stmulus of fresn thinkirg irto tre
Board's d scussions, ersuring that o1 each accas'on that tne
Board enters 1o new mvestment commitments at least
na'f the Board men-bers have drrect personai exper ence of
regotiating previous commimerts wit te Manager

Board Succession

Having served as a Director sirce 2012, vt sta~d dover
fram the Board at the concws or of the fartheorirg
AGM. Kate Bosover w i succeed ~e as Crairman

T Gllba~ks w I succeed Kate as Senor irdependent
D'rector Buso'a Sode nde was appointed a Director on
Z4 saniary 2023 A~ ndeperdert thrd party agercy
Norge Lirvted was ergaged for the recr. tment process
W Cr resated i Buso a's appo ~tment Nuic e ~ave no

ctiercorrest on with the Company

TF Property irestmert Trust



Directors’ training

On appointmert, new Directors are offered training to
sult their needs. Directors are also provided with key
informaticn or the Company’s activities on a reguiar
basis, neluding regulatory and statutory requiremerts
and internal controis. Changes affecting Directors’
responsibiidties are advised to the Board as they anse
Directors ensure that they are updated on regulatory,
statutory and industry matters

Letters of appointment

No Director has a contract of emp.oyment w'th
the Company. Directors’ terms and conditors for

appomntment are set out In letters of appointment which
are avalable for inspectior al the registered office of the

Company and at the AGM

David Watson
R B S S BEE

B
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee (the 'MEC")

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
+ Monitor and review the performance of the AIFM ard
Portfolio Marager,

+ Review the terms of the Investment Management
Agreement;

+ Annually review the contracts and performance of
each external third-party service provider and

Review, an ar annua! basis, tre remureraton of the
Directors

Inaddition ta imvestment management, the Beard

nas deiegated to external third parties the depositary
ard custodial services functions (which mciude the
safeguarding of assets). the day to day accoutng,
company secretanial, administration and snare
registratior services Each of trese contracts was
entered irto after fu!l and proper cons.derat o~ of the
gua ity of the services offered, including the contro
systems in operatior. irsofar as they relate to the
affars of the Company The MEC determires ard
approves Directors’ fees, having regard to tne leve. of
fees payable to no~- executive Directors in the ndustry
genera'ly, tre ro.e that ndwidual Dinectors fulfilin
respect of Board and Cormmittee respons bisties and
tre time comm tted to the Company's affairs For
further detar s please see tre Directors’ Remureratior
Report o~ pages 63 1o H5

Tre MEC meets at least annLa‘ly towards the end of
the financ.al year ard last met ir March 2023

Activity during the year

At the meetirg peld 1 Marcn 2023 the MEC
reviewed the performance of the AIFM ard Portfc «©
Manager a~d cors'dered bot the appropriateress
of the Marager's appontmert and tre cortractual
arrargeme~ts ( "cidirg tne stractore ard 'ever of
rerLrerator)with the Marager

1 addtor to the reviews by the MEC e Board
rev ewed and considered perforrarce reports
from the Portfolio Manager at each Board meet g
Tre Beard also receved regy ar reports fre~ the
Admim strator ard Coripany Secretary

The Board be’ eve trat tre Marager's track record
ard performarce rer-a'rs outsta~d.rg As aresu't,
tre IMEC confirmed trat the AIFM and Fortfo ©
Manager shoud be retaimed for tre ‘ira-cia year
ending 31 March 2024, being ~ tre best ~terests of

o
[¢4)

ail snareholders A surmmary of the significant terms

of the Investment Management Agreerent and the
trird-party service providers who support the Company
are set out below

During the year, the MEC alsc reviewed the performance
of alltner th rd party service providers inc'vding BNP
Paribas, Computershare, Coturmbia Threadneedie actirg
as Commpany Secretary, both firms of corporate brokers,
Panmure Gordon ard Stifel and PwC (as tax advisors)
Tne Portfoso Marager provides reguiar updates on the
perfarmance of a'l third-party providers durirg the year
ard attended this part of the MEC Meeting The MEC
confirmed that It was satisfied with the level of services
delivered by each third-party provider.

Management arrangements and fees

On 11 July 2014, the Board apponted BMO Investment
Busness Limited (now Columbia Threadneedle
Investrnent Business Limited) as the Company’s
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (in accordance
with the Alternative investmenrt Furd Managers
Directve) witn portfo ‘o maragement delegated 1o the
Investment Marager, Thames Rwvel Capta LLP

The sgrificant terms of the Investment Maragement
Agreement with the Manager are as foilows

Notice period

The Investrent Maragemert Agreement (IMA')
provides for terminat on of the agreement by eitner
party withoLt compersation or tne provis.on of not
'ess than 12 montns’ written notice

Management fees

The fee for the perod under review was a fixed fee of
£3,895000plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based
o the net asset value {deterrmired v accordance with
the AIC method of va'uatior) o1 the last day of March,
-Lne September ard Decerber payable quarterly .»
advarce Tne fee arrargerrents have been reviewed by
the Board for tre year to 31 Marc~ 2024 and tre fixed
eigrentoftrefeew  ncrease to £4 088 00C, wnilst
the ad va.oreT rate w ll rerram urcranged

Tre Board co~tir.es to corsider trat the fee structure
al g-s the ~terests of t~e sharenoder ard t~e Marager
aswelasberg - ghy compet tve

Trefeg atrargerrertswi co~tuetoberevewed on
aranrtog Dass

Performance fees

iradd tig~ to tne maragere~t fees the Board ras
agreed 1 pay the Marager perforrarce re.ated fees
respect of an accourtirg perod f certa ~ perforrarce
ohject vesare achesed

TR Property Investmenrt Trus:



A performance fee 1s payable If the total return of
adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Base
Management Fees and offer expenses), as defined
i tne IMA, at 31 March each year outperforms the
total retuin of the Company’s benchmark plus 1%
{the hurdle rate’): this cutperformance (expressed
as apercentage) 's known as the ‘percentage
outperformance’. Any fee payabie will be the
amount eqlivalent to the adjusted net assets at

31 March each year muitiplied by the percentage
outperformance, then multiplied by 15%. The
maximum performance fee payabie for a perod s
capped at 1.5% of the adjusted net assets However,
if the adjusted net assets at the end of any period
are less than at the beginning of the periad, the
maximum performance fee payabie will be lirmited to
1% of the adjusted ret assets,

‘Adjusted Net Agsets’ means the Net Asset Value
after {1} excluding any increases or decreases n Net
Asset Value attributable to the issue or repurchase of
any Ordinary Shares, {1i} acding back the aggregate
amount of any dividends paid or distribut ons made
mrespect of any Ordinary Shares; and (i) exc uding
the amount of any Performance Fee accrued for

the period.

If the total return of snareholders’ funds for any
performance perod is less than the benchmark

for the relevant performance period, sucn
underperformance (expressed as @ percentage) wi |
be carred forward to future performance periods.

If a1y fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
{expressed as a percentage) will be carrigd

forward ard appled to offset any percentage
Jnderperformance in future performance periods

In the event that the berchmark 1 exceeded but

the hurdle 18 not, that outperformance of the
benchmark can be used to offset past or future
Jnderperformance These amounrts can be used

for offset purposes only and therefore cannot have
the effect of creating a fee in a year where a fee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the

fee inthat year. The -1 5% underperformarce of

the benchmark in the current year has been offset
against the brought forward cutperformarce

as described above. As aresutt of this, tre carry
forward of outperformance at 31 March 202315 0 4%
{2027 1 9%).

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Management company

On 8 Novermber 2021 BMC's asset management
business .n Curcope, the Middte Easl and Africa became
part of Columbia Threadneedle Investments, the globa’
asset maragemert business of Amer prise Firancial,
irc The process of integrating the two firms ‘s well
advanced and both companies have confirmed tne
importance of maintain'ng the stability and cortinaity
of the teams whch support the Company

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Paribas was appointed as Depostary or

14 Juiy 2014 in accordance with the AIFMD

The Depositarys responsibilites include. cash
monitorng; segregation and safe keep'ng of the
Company's fiinancaat instruments, and moritoring the
Company’s compliance witn investment and leverage
requirernents The Depostary receves for its services
a fee of 2.0 basis points per annum on the first

£150 mulion of the Campany's assets, 1 4 basis paints
per anrdm on assets above £150 million and below
£500 milion and 0.75 bas's points on assets above
£500 milion

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody and Administration Services are provided

by BNF Paribas and Compary Secretarial services

by Cclumbia Tnreadneedle Investment Business
Limited Tne fees for these services are cnarged
directly to the Company and are disc ased with:n other
administrative expenses d sclosed in notes to the
accounts.

David Watson
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities
- Review the irterna. financial and non-financia
contrals,

+ Review reports from key third party service providers;

« Consider and recommend to the Board for approva’ tne

contents of tne draft Half year and Arrual Reports;

+ Reveew accounting policies and significart financia'
reporting judgements;

+ Monitor, together with the Manager, ire Compary's
complbance with financ.al reporting, ma:~terance of

[nvestment Trust status and regulatory requiremerts,

and

Consider the impact of prov ding non audit services on

the external Audior's mdeperdence and objectivity

Represertatives of the Manager's internal audht and
compuance departmerts may attend conmmittee
meetings at the Committee Crairmar's request.

Representat ves of the Company's Auditor attend the
Committee meetings at wh ¢h the draft Haif Year ard

Arnaal Report and Accounts are rev ewed and are given,

tre appartunity to speak to the Committee members
withoot the presence of the represertatives of tne
Manager

The Board recogrises tre requrement for at least gne

Committee member tc have recent and relevant financ al

experience ard for tre Audit Committee as a whale to

have competence relevant 1o tre sector The Comrmitlee

Cnrarmar, Mt Watson ard Ms Sodeinde are goaiified

accoortarts wir extengve ardrecent expernece ntre

F ranc a. Services Industry Tre otrer members of tre
Comrutiee nave a combinator of property. finarc al
mvestment and busiress experience throogh senior
positions he'dtrrougroot ther careers

Activity during the year
Dunng the year t7e Corr ttee met twce with al

~embers at each rmeet ~g and corsidered tne fo 1ow rg

Ccrsideraton of the R sk Map ary cna~ges o

the kel rocd or —pact of rsks and comseguert a
changes reguired to Board Momitornga~d~ tgat.or
procedores Cons deratonofary rew cre~erg gy
rsks ard rows or ~tre Risk Map f appropr ate

a

Tris has included cong'deration of the impact of the
COVID-19 pangernic, Russta's invasion of Ukraine,
infationary and interest rate increases across a range of
risk categories

- Tre Groups Internal Contro s and cons:deration of the
Repoits thereon,

+ Tre [SAE/AAF reports or their equivaert from BMO/
Coi.mb a Tnreadneedle and BNP Panbas,

- Wnether tre Company should have its own ‘nternal
aud't functicn,

- The externa! Audtor's planning memorardum settng
oLt the scope of the anndai audit and proposed key
areas of focus;

- Trereports from the Auditor concerning 1ts audit
of the Firanc-al Staterments of tne Company and
Consideration of Sigrificant \ssues inielauon to the
Financia! Statements;

« Tre appropriateness of, and any changes (o the
accouriting peheies of the Compary, inciuding the
reasonabieness of ary judgements required by sLch
DONICIeS;

« TnetorgTermV.ab' ty statemert and consideration
of the preparatior of the Frnancia’ Statererts an
a Going Concern bas s taking account of forward
loocking ircome forecasts, tne hquidity of the
myvestment partfoo and debt profi e,

+ The dnarcial and otrer discicsures intne Firancal
Statemerts;

- The mforration presented in the Ha't Year and Annual
Reports to assess whiether, taken as a who.e, they are
far bala~ced and Lnderstardatle and the ~format on
presented w i enab.e sharehoiders to assess the
Compary's pos 1o, performance. business Todel
ard strategy.

Tre perforrance of tne exterra acd'tor to approve
trer aLdtfees and coms der the agssessment of
dependerce,

+ Therev ew and subsequent propasal to tre Board of
tre.rter~and firard ¢ derds, ard

Trereviewa' of the Comirttes's terms of reference,
srsLrrgthey rema N appropniate and comrpiant watn

207
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Going concern

in assessing whetlel il continues 1o be appropriate to
prepare the Accounts on a Going Concern bas's, the
Cormittee has made a detalled assess™ment of the
ability of the Campany and Group to meet its labilities
as they fal: due. ircluding stress and liquidity tests which
considered the effects of substantial falls in nvestiment
vauations, substantial reductiors in revenue received
a~d reductions in market hguidity.

In 1ght of the testing carr ed owt, the overa | evels of

the investment liquidity held by the Carmpany and the
significant ret asset position, the Parent Company and
Group, the Directors confirm that they are satisfied that
the Company and the Group have adeguate financial
resources to cantinue In operation for at least the

next 12 months foliowing the signing of the firancia,
statements and therefore it is appropriate to cortinue to
adopt the Going Concern basis of accourting.

The long-term viability of the Company was also
assessed as set out on pages 41 and 42,

Risk management and internal conirol

The Board has overali responsibility far the Group's
system of Risk Management ard internal Control and for
review:ng their effectiveness. Key rigks identified by the
Auditor are considered by the Audit Committee to ensure
that robust internal contrels and monitoring procedures
inrespect of these are in place on an ongoing basis
Further details can be found on page 48

The Audit Committee received and considered reports
on Internal Controls from tne key service providers No
areas of concern were highlighted

The Company’s R sk Map was considered 1o ‘dentify

any emerging risks and whether ary adjustments were
required to existing risks, and the controls and mitigation
measures in piace inrespect of those risks.

Elevated levels of inflation and interest rates and the
Russan invasion of Ukrame were also considered and
the risks asscciated with those events reflected in the
risk map

Tke legacy impact of COVID-19 on economies around

the world and operationa: changes made by our sarvice
providers inresponse to changing workpiace practices
were corsidered and the risk map adjusted according’y

Based on the processes and controls in place within
Columbra Trwreadneedle investments ard other
significant service providers, the Beard has concurred
that there s ro carrent need for the Company to Fave its
own mternai audit function.

Ann.al Report & Accounts 2022

Significant issues in relation to the financial
statements

The Committee has corsidered this report and financial
statemerts and the Long Term Viabiiity statement

on pages 41 and 42 The Committee considered the
Auditor's assessment of nisk of material misstatement
and reviewed the interna’ contro's N place in respect

of the key areas identified and the process by which

the Board monitors eachk of the procedures to give the
Committee comfort on those risks cnan orgoing bas's.
Those risks are also nignlighted in the Comn- ftee's Risk
Map

« Carrying amount of isted investments {(Group and
Parent Company) — the Group's investments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Paribas.

The quoted assets are priced by the Administrator's
Global Pricing Platform which uses ‘ndependent external
pricing sources The cortrol process surrounding this °s
set oLt in the BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by the reperting accountant for the
per.od reported to 3C September 2022 which did not
revea ary significant exceptions The quarterly contro
report to the Board from BNP Paribas covering the period
upto 31 March 2023 disclosed no significant 1ssues to
report, In addition, on each business day, the Manager
estimates the NAY using an alternative pricing source as
an independent check

The Auditar agreed 100% of the listed investments of the
portfolio to externally guoted prices and independently
received third-party cenfirmations from investment
custod:ars and fourd the carrying value of I»sted
Investments to be acceptable

- Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group and
Parent Company} — the physical property portfoio 1s
valued every six monrths by professional independent
valuers

Knight Frark LLP value the portfolo on the basis of

Far Va:i.e irn accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1 53 Fair Value and VPGA
1 Va'uations for Incluson .= Financial Statemerts,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by the
International Financial Reperting Standards IFRS 13
defines Fair Value as

The armount for which an asset could be exchanged. a
nabiiity settled, or an equity instrument granted could be
exchanged, between know.edgeable, wilirg parties in ar
arm's length tiansaction’
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

In undertaking their va'uation of each property,
Kright Frark make their assessment on the basis of
a collation and analysis of approprate comparable
mvestiments, rental and sale transactiors, together
witr ev-derce of demand w.thin the vicinity of each
praperty. Ths information is then applied to the
properties, taking mto account size, iocat.on, termis,
covenant ard other material factors

The Board has reviewed reports from tre Manager
ardire externaiva.cer ard determined tre valuation
to be reasonable.

The Auditar has set out therr detai'ed testing ard
procedures in respect of the direct property va'uation
and concluded that trey found the Company's
valuaton of iInvestrment properties to be acceptab'e.

There has been rothirg broagrt 1o the Cormittee's
attertion m respect of the finarcial statements for
the year ended 31 Marcn 2023 that was material

or significant or that the Commi.ttee felt snou'd be
brought to shareholders’ attention

Auditor assessment and independence
The Company's external auditer, KPMG [ LP (KPMG')
was appointed as the Corrparys auditor at the 2016
AGM. Tre Comm ttee Lndertook a review durng
2027 10 ensure tnat sharehoiders were rece'v rg

the best services and va'ue for money A number of
firms were nv.iedtoexpress nterest and respond
onasma |l rumber of key poirts The decision was
made for tre audit toreTam with KPMG Tris s Mr
Merchant's second year as tre Company's Aud t
Fart~er

The Committee expects to repeat a terder process
no later than 2026 10 respect of tre audit for tre
feliow.ng 31 March year erd, i Lre with tre current
aud t regu’'ations

At treha f year meetirg of the Comrmittee KPMG
presented thewr acdt p'ar far the year end ard tre
Cemrittee coms dered the acdt process ard fee
proposa. Tne Com~rttee also reviewed KPWMG's
~deperderce po'ices a~d procedures, oc od g
gua ty assurarce proced.res It was corsidered t-at
t~ose po Ces are fit for purpese a~d tre Directors
are sabtisfied tmat KPMG s rdepender-t

Tota fees payabetotre Audtor ~respecicii-e
aud t for the year to 31 March 2023 were

£97 00012022 £82.3C0) wn chwere approved by
tre Aldit Comr ttee

The Committee has approved and implemented

a po'icy on the engagement of the Auditor to
supp'y ron-aud.t serv.ces tak ng rto account the
recommendat ors of the Accounting Practices
Board with g view tg ensuring that the external
Auditor does ot provide non-addit services that
nave the polertia’ wo iImpair or appear 1o mpair e
ndependence of tneir audit role. In add t:on. the
Committee reviewed the actions put 1 place by
the Auddtor to ensure there was a clear separation
between audt and advisory serv ces, The Comm itee
does not believe there 1o be any impedimert tc the
Audtor's objectivity ard independence

Ful' deta is of the Auditor's fees are provided in rote
6tothe accourts on page 85 The fees far non-
aLdit services for the year 10 31 Mearch 2023 were |
(2022 ni).

Folowngeach aLdit the Commiitee reviews the
audit process and considers its effect,veness

ard tne quality of the services provided 16 tre
Company Within this pracess, the Committee
takes into considerat'on ther own assessmert, the
self-evalyat or of the auditor ard the Audit Quaiity
Revievs Report produced by the FRC ir order to
moritor the progress of the Auditor's performance
comparable with ts peers and tne targets set by
tne FRC Trerev.ew foliow ng the completion of
the 2023 audit conc'uded that the Comm ttee

was sat.shed with the Auditor's effectiveness and
performance The Committee felt tnat KPMG had
run an effective and efficiert avdit process w th
appropnate cralenge Areso JLon to re-appont
KPMG LLP as the Cempary s Aaditor wil be put 1o
sareno ders at t1e forthcem ng AGM

Tim Gillbanks
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneratinn Palcy, in accordance with the
reguirements of Scnedule 8 of the Large and Medium
Sized Companies ard Groups (Accounts and Repotts)
Reguiations 2013, An ordinary resolution for the
approval of this report will be put to the members at the
farthcorrirg Annual General Meeting

Theaw requires the Company's Audtor, KPMG LLP
to audt certain of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures nave been audited, tney are indicated
as such Tne Auditor's opimicn is included in the
‘Independent Auditor's Report’.

Annual statement from the chairman

of the committee

The MEC met in March 2023 and considered the results
and feedback from the Board evaiuation. It was agreed
that tre Drectors’ fees woud be increased, with effect
from 1 Aprii 2023, 1o the followirg ievels Chairman
£73000; Aud't Committee Chairman £43,000; Senior
Independent Director £43,000, and other Directors
£37,000.

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company's policy is that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the responsibiiities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
canaidates of high calibre te be recruited. The policy is
for the Chawrman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit
Commuttee and the Senior Independent Director o be
paid bugher fees than the other Directors in recognition
of their more onerous roles This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
intention is that this will continue for the year ending
31 March 2024 in accordance with the reguiations,
an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’
remuneration policy will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2023, as required every
three years

The Directors are paidin the form of fees, payable
monthly in arrears, to the Director personally o to a third
party specitfied by that Director There are no long-term
ncentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not spectfically related

to the Directars’ performance, either indwidually or
collectively

Arnua Report & Accounts 2073

The Board comprises entirely of non-executive Directors,
whose appointments are reviewed formally every year
None of the Directors have a contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice in wiiting to the Board at
any time, there are no notice penods and no payments
made for loss of office. The terms of their appointment
are detailed 1n an appointment letter when they join the
Board. As the Directors do not have service contiacts,
the Company does not have a policy on termmation
payments. The Company’s Articles of Association
cuirently imit the total aggregate fees payabie (o the
Board to £300,000 per annum

Any shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’
remuneration are communicated at the Company's
AGM and are taken into account in formulating the
Dwrectors remuneration policy. At the 2022 AGM,

9¢ 8% of sharcholders’ votes cast were in favour of the

resolution approving the Directors  Remuneration Report,

with 0 2% against, showing very sigmificant shareholder
sSupPGI.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors remuneration policy of the Company are
set out below with a description and approach to
determination

[aN]
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Directors’ Remuneration report

continued

Remuneration Type

Other

Board members are not
engible “or bonuses, pension
henefits, snare opt ons,

Fixed Fees

The agaregate nmt for
the fees for the Boara
as a whole 1s £300,000
per annum which, in
accorcance with the
Articles of Association,
is dividea between the
Jirectors as they deem
appropnate.

Fees are set to reflect
the roie of each Board
memter and tne time
comimitment reguired
to carry out the rduties
and are reviewed win

reference to tne fees pad

to Directors of similar
nvestment companies

Additional Fees

Addit onal fees may be pawo
to any Drrector whe fuifils the
rale of the Chairman, who
charrs any commitiee of the
Sozrd or wno Is appointea
as the Senior independent
Drector

Tnese fees are setat a
compet.tive level 1o reflect
experience ana time
commitment

Annual remuneration report
For the year enoed 31 March 2023, Drectors' fees were paic at the annual rates of Cha rman £72,000 (2022 £70000)
and al. other Directors. £36.000 (2022 £36,002) An addirona £6,000 wes paid per annum ‘or each of the roles of Audit
Commutiee Chairman and Senior indepenaent Directo” The actua: amounts pa d o the Drectars during tne financiar vear
under review are as shown below

Expenses

The Cirectors are enttlea
to be pa d all reasonatkle

expenses properly incu-red
by them atiending meetings

w.th shareholaers or other
Directors or otherwize in

long-term incentive schemed

or other non-cash henefits or
taxalb'e expenses

connect on w.tnthe cischarge

of their duties as Drectors

Amount of each Director's emeluments (audited)
"he “ees payable in respect of each of Ine Trecters wno se-ved dur ng the financ al year were as foliows

Dawvid Watson
Simon Marrison
Tim Gillbanks
Kate Balsover -
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Andrew VYaughan
Busola Sodeinde -
Tota!

All ‘fees ze gt 2 Fxec "2te and there 18 no
financal year The-e were 10 payments 1

T oappontedilctis b

z2ppo rtedtc tne B

o
T

31 March 2023
£

234300

72,000
14,000
42,000
40,069
36,000
24,000

~xhere a change sakes pace cU g 3
ito i ne tab e above There s of

6831

31 March 2022
£

70,660

40,000

40,000

35006

35000

220000

R Propery irvestmert Trus®



Company performance

Tre graph besow compares, for the ter: years ended

371 March 2023, the percentage change over each period
in the snare price total return to shareholders compared
to the share price total return of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropriate berchmark
for investment performance measurement purpases An
explanation of the performance of the Company s given
in the Chairmran’s Statement and Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4000 S - - e

3500 - - -

000~ -

2500 —

2000

1500

=13 e 14 e 1n Macde 4517 Mar12 0 Mar 18 pdar 200 Kas b Mar B0 fAan 23

. TR Property Share Price Total Return . Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Total Return assuming investment of £1 000 on 37 March
2013 and reinvestrrent of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses)
(Source: Tharmes River Capital)

Benchrmark Total Return assuming notional investment mto the index of
£1,000 on 31 March 2013. {Source  "hames River Capital)

Directors’ shareholdings (audited)}

Tne interests of the Directors in the shares of tre
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year or
date of appointmert, if ater, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of

appointment 31 March 2022
David Watson 41,864 36,407
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks -
Buscla Sedeinde - n/a
Andrew Vaughan _ o7 n/e

Since 31 March 2023 1o the date of this report, there have
been no changes to the Directors’ interests in tne shares of
the Company

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Relative Importance of spend on pay

2023 2022

£000 £'000 Change
Dividends paid 47127 45,381 3.8%
Directors’ fees 228 220 36%

Five year change comparison

Over the ‘ast five years, Directors’ pay has ncreased as set
aut In the table be'cw:

Change

2023 2018 over Annualised

£000 £'000 Syears Change
Chairman 72 70 2.9% 0.6%
Audit Cormnmittee
Chairman 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Senior
independent
Director 42 38 10.5% 2 0%
Director 36 33 91% 8%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The table below sets out the annuzal percentage change in
fees for each director who served in the year under review.

EXNELLII % change % change

Ll vyl from 2021 from 2020

102023 to 2022 10 2027

COLGELV (audited)  (audited)

Director % % %
Dawvid Walson +2.9 +15.80 4512
Simon Marrison -65.01% +4.12 +9.7 -

Tim Gillbanks +5.0 0.0 0a
Kate Bolsover +14 5% 0.0 +100.0 -
Sarah-Jane Curtis +2.9 0.0 +449.3~

Andrew Vaughan n/a’ n/a n/a

Busola Sodeinde n/a® n/a - N/a

Lppe riedas Tnz oman w th 2ot from 28 July 2020 norease ghecls
tnentia part vear and subsequentiul vear ntnerce

E by 2020,

- Appo nted
ncrease oflos = yeal 20 Sabseqguent fu o vesr i the Tole

Apported 85 e nonrcaet Ut ve Directos on 10 0aher 2016 10 eawe

ey

ARpe el naneeseoul e Diretter on 28 Jaruane JL200 0o exnse

efects e foat L vesnw thitne T o pany

Ref

Sppueneten o sondependont Doecto w e et o T, 2022
netepse reflerte tie nnange o e C ng e y R

Lppo nted 29 6 non exetul v Laestar on Y Augnst P00

Appointer 2 Noh-erer Ut ve Larets on 0 eruae, JGe
f

For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Drrectors are responsible for preparing the Arnnual
Report and tne Group ard Parent Comrpany financia
statements in accordance with applicabie law and
reguiations

Compary aw regures the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Compary filnanca’ statements for each
firancia. year Orectors are required to prepare tie Group
finarcial statements 1 accordance with UK-adopted
international account’ng standards ard applicable

aw and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements on the sare basis

Urder company law the Directors must not approve

the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
tney give a true ard farr view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Compary ard of tne Group's profit or
loss for that perod. In preparng each of the Group and
Parent Compary financial statermrents, tre Directors are
required to.

- select suitable accounting policies and apply them
cons'stertly,

+ make jcdgeTerts and est.mates that are reasorab e,
relevant and rehiab.e,

+ state whetner they have been prepared in accordance
with internaticnal accounting standards in corformity
w th the reguirements of UK-adopted rtermatong
accoLnting standards

- assessire Group and Parert Compary's ab tyto
continue as a going caoncerr, d.sclosing, as app icab e,
matters re ated tc go'rg corcern, and

© Lse t1e go g concern basis of accourtirg utiless
they either irtend toiiguidate e Grodp or the Parert
Corrpary or 1o cease operations of have norea :shic
aternative but 1o do so

T=e Directors are responsitie for keep rg adeguate
account rgrecords that are s fficient 1o srew and
explaim the Pare~t Corparystransact 07s a~d d'sc ose
Wit~ reasgnabie accoracy atatytrme tne firatc:a
poston cf tre Parert Compary a~d emabe 1ne™ 10
ensare tat ts fi~arc al statererts corpy wintre
Com~pan es Act 2006 Trey are respors bre far suen
~ter~a contre astrey deter™ re s ~ecessarytoenabe
t-e preparat.on of inarcia. statere~is tnat are free fro~—
~ater @ ' sgtatemert whetrer due to fraud or error
and rave gerera respers bty for takirg suc” steps as
arereasonabt y oper to trem to safequard 17e assets
oftre Group a~d tc preve-t ard detect fraud ard other
Tregueartes

T
(a3

Under applicable law a~d regulations, the Directors
are also responsible for preparirg a Strategic Report
Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remureration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement

The Directors are resporsib.e for the maintenance
and mitegrity of tne carporate and “inarc'al
irformatior g uded on the Company’s website
Legislatior ir the UK governing the preparaticn and
disserminat on of financia: statemerts may differ
from leg:slat:on in other jurisd'ctons

In accordance witn Disclosure Gu'danrce and
Transparency Rule 4 1.14R_the firanc:al statements
wll form part of the annual finarcial report prepared
using the sirgle e'ectronic reporting format under
the TD ESEF Regulat'on The Auditor s report on
these financia statements prov des no assdrance
over the ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annual financial report
Each of the Directors confirms tnat to the best of
tner knowledge.

« thefinancial staterients prepared ir accordance
wth the applicabie set of accourt ng standards,
give a tree and farr view of the assets, 1ab iities,
financia postior and profit or loss of the Group
and Parent Compary and ne undertakings
ncluded in the consoldation take” as a whole, and

- the strategic report includes a fan review of the
developTent ard performance of tne business
and the posit or of t~e issuer and tne Lndertakirgs
incruded it the corsoiidat Gn taken as a wrole,
together wth a descript.or of the principal r'sks
and uncertainties tnat they face

Tre D rectors co~sider tnat the Arrua Report
a~d Accourts take” asa w-cle, sfar baanced
and L~derstandable a~d provides the inforrat or
~ecessary for sharerciders to assess tre Group's
pos't on arc perfermance bugiress mode ard
strategy

By order of the Board
David Watson

"R Property Insestment Trust



Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Plc

01 Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statemenrts of TR Froperty
Investment Trust Pic {tne ‘Company’) for the year

ended 31 March 2023 which comprnise the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Greup ard
Company Statements of Charges in Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company Cash
Flow Statements and the related rotes, ncluding the
accounting policies i note 1

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group's and of the parent Comgany's
affarrs as at 31 March 2023 and of the Group’s return
for the year then ended;

- the Group financial statements have been praperly
prepared in accordarce with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

- the parent Company financial staterments have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
internationat accounting standards and as applied in
accerdance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006, and

+ thefinancial staterments have been prepared in
accordance w'th the requiremerts of the Companies
Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit naccordance with tnternatienal
Standards on Auditing (UK} (1SAs (UK] ) and applicable
aw. Cur responsibilities are described below. We believe
that the audit eviderce we have cbtained 1s a sufficient
and appropnate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion
is consistent with our report to the audit committee

We were first appomted as auditor by the Directors on

2 November 2016 The penod of totai uninterrupted
engagement 15 for the seven financial yvears ended

31 March 2023 We have fufilled our ethical
responsibilties under, and we remain independent of
the Group in accerdance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities. No non-audit services prohibited
by that standard were provided.

Materiality: group £10.5m (2022: £16 8m)
financial statements 1% (2022 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2022 B vs 2022

Recurring risks Valuation of direct property <4 p
investments ) )
Carrying amount of listed <>
investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most sigrificance in the audit of the
financial statements and irclade the most significant assessed nisks of material misstatement (whether or not due
to fraud) idertified by us. including tnose which had the greatest effect on: tne overa!l audit sirategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit, and directirg the efforts of the engagement team We summarise below the key audit matters
(unchanged from 2022), 10 decreasng order of audit significance, in arriving at our sudit opirior above, together

with our key audit procedures to address those matters ard our findings from those procedures in order tnat the
Corrpany's members, as a hody may understand better the process by which we arrived at our audit opinion These
matters were addressed and our findings are based o1 procedures urdertaken, in the cortext of and solety for the
purpose of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn. and cansequently are
ncidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate op rion or these mMatters

Lnrual Report & Accoanis 2022
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material migstatement - -+ .-

e s Our response

Valuation of direct
property investments
(Group and Parent)
(£74Cmilion;

2022 £96 3rmiihion)

Refer *o pagez 60 to

62 [Audit Committes
Report), pages 81 anc 82
jaccounting po ¢y, 1ote 10
on pages 88 to 97 :f nancial
d sclosures|

Subjective valuation:

7 0% (2022 5 7%) of the Group's,

and 6 87 (2022 5 6% of the Parent
Company's, total assets (by valuel a-e
held in 1imvestmen’ properties

The fair value of each property requires
signif cant estimation, in particular with
regard 1o the estimateaq rental value and
yield assumptions. The assumptions
will be impacted by a number of facios
~cluaing quality and condiion of the
buldimg and tenant “inancial strengtn,

The effect of these matters s that,

as part of cur nisk assessment, we
determ ned that the valuation of
nvestiment propert.es has a high
degree of estimation uncertamty, with a
potent al range of reasonable cutcomes
g-eater than our matenial'ty for the
franc-al statemen:s as a whole “he
financia' statements (note 10) cisclagse
The sensitivity est matec by the Group

We performec the aetailed tests below rather
than seeking to relyv on any of the Group’s
controls, because the nature of the balance
1s such that we would expect to obta.n sudgit
evigence primarily through tne detailed
procedures descrbed.

Ou- procedures included

» Assessing valuer’s credentials: using our own
property veluation special.st, we evauaied e
competence, experience and independence o
tng externgl valuer,

+ Tests of detail: Ve compa-ea the information
provided by the Group 10 its external properiv
valuer for a sample of propert es, such as
rental imcome and tenancy data to supporting
documents Incluc ng iease agreements;

+ Methodology choice: We he.d discussions
w.1h the Group's external property vaiuer to
determine the valuaticn metnocology used is
gppropriate Using our own property valuation
specialist, we critically assesseathe resuits
of the valuer's repo-t by checking that the
va Uattons were inaccorcance with the RICS
Valuation Professional Standards 'the Red
Book anc 'FRS and that ine methoaoiogy
zdopted was appropriate hy reference to
acceptable valuation practice;

Benchrmarking assumptions: W ih the

&S5 slance 0F our own property va uation

spec alist, we held discussions with the
Group's exiernal property valuer to undersiand
movements riproperty values For a sample of
properties we assessed the Key assumpt.ons
used by tne valuer upom which tne va'ust-ong
are besec, ncluaing those relatng (o estimaied
-ental value and yie d, by making a compar son
0 our own uncerstand nig ¢ the market and 1o
meuetlry benchmer«s,

+ Assessing transparency: \'Ve g'sc consicered
“he acequacy of the Group's ciscosures abaut
the cegree of estimeaton and sens:t vty *0 Key
3ssuUmpTons mace wien va u ng the direct
property nves ments

Our findings

Yie founc tne Croup's va ugt-on of Imvestmen:
properties to be baanced 12022 balanzec: Vie
"gv8 2ONSgered the aS800'5100 0SS0 0SUTES 10

tzp-opotonate

TR Property Investmar: Trust



€ S Our response

Carrying amount of
listed investments
(Group and Parent)
(£872 1 million,

2022, £71.456 8 rminion)

Refer to pages 6010 672
{Audit Committee Report),
page 82 (account.ng pohoy!
and note 10 01 pages 890
92 (financal disciosures)

Low risk, high value:
Tne portfolio of usted level 1

invesiments makes up 83 0% (2022

86 4%) of the Group's, and 80.27% (2022.
84 6%) of the Parent Company's, total
assets (by value) and 1s one of the key
drivers of resuits. We do not consider
tnese mvestments to be at a nigh risk of
material missiatement, or to be subject
lu & w.ynilicant level of Judgement
because they comprise hguid, cuoted

We performed the cetailed 1ests be-ow rather
than seexing 1o rely on any of the group’s
controls, because the nature of the ba'ance
is such that we would expect to abtain audit
evidence primarnly through the detailed
procedures descrnbed

Our procedures inc'uded

- Test of detaii: Agreeing the valmiation of T00%
ot level T isted invesiments in the portfolio to
externgally queted prices, and

investments However, due to their

materiality in the context of the
financial statements as a whole, they
are considered 1o be one of the areas
which had the greatest effect on our

+ Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 1J0% of
level 1 I'sted investment holdings in the
portfolio to independently received third party
confirmations from investment custodians

overail audn strategy and allocation of
resources In planning and comipleting

our audit

Qur findings

we found no cifferences from third party
hold.ngs confirmations nor from the externally
qguoted prices of a size to require reporting to the
Audir Committee (2022 ne differences).

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial staternents as a whole
was set at £10.5m (2022 £16.8m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it
represents 1.0% (2021 1 0%)

Mater:ality for the parent Company financia’ statements
as awnole was set at £9.97m (2022 £16.0m), which

is the component matenialty for the Parent Company
determined by the Group audit engagement team  This
is lower than the materiality we would otherwise have
determined with reference to Parent Company total
assets, of which it represents 095% {2022 0.95%)

[ line with our audit methodology, our procedures
onindivideal account balances and disclosures were
performed o a lower threshold, performance materiality,
s¢ as to reduce to an acceptabie level the risk that
individuallty immaterigl misstatements nindividual
account balances add up to a maternial amount across
the financia. statemenrts as a whole Performance
matenality was set at 75% {2022: 75%) of matena iy
for the financial staterments as a whole, wnich equates
to £7 85m (2022 £12.6m) for the Group and £7 45m
(2022 £12m) for the Parent Company Ve appl ed
this percentage ir our determ.nat or of performance
matenality because we did 1ot identify any factors
‘rdicatng ar elevated level of risk

Anrual Report & Accounts 2023

We agreed to report 1o the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £0 53m (2022. £0 84m) for the Group and
exceeding £0.5m (2022: £3.8m} for the Parent Company,
in addition to other identified misstatemerts that
warranted reporting on qualitative thresnolds

The audit team performed the audit of the Group as a
single aggregated set of financial information rather

than scopng nndvidual components. This approach

1s unchanged from the pror year The audit of the

Group and Parent Compary was performed using the
materia- ity leveis set out above and was performed by a
single audit team. The scope of the audit work performed
was fully substantive as we did not rely upon the Group's
interrnal cortrols over financial reporting

Group Materiality
£10.5m {2022 £16.8m)

Total Assets
£1,051 (2022 £1 6856mM)

£10.5m
Whoale financial statements
materiality (2022 £16 8m)

£7.85m

Whaole financial statements
performance materiality
(2022 £12.6m)

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiality
(2022: £76.0m)

£0.5m

Misstatements reported
1o the audit commitiee
(2022 £0.8m)

[ | Total Assets
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independent auditor’s report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit
We nave performed a risk assessment of how tre impact
of ciimate change may affect tne financial statemerts
and our audit Level 1 histed investments make up

83.0% of the Group's total assets, for which fair value

Is deterr~ired as the quoted market price. Therefore,

we assessed that tre finarcial statement est mate that
1S primarily exposed to clirate risk 18 the investment
property portfolo, for which the valuation assumptions
a~d estimates may be inrpacted by physical and pol cy
or egal ¢l mate risks, such as flooding or an ircrease

M ¢limate re ated corpiiance expenditure. We neld
discussions witr odr owr climate change professionals
to challenge aur risk assessment We assessed that,
whilst climate change posed a risk to the determmation
of investrment property valuations in the curre~t year,

this risk was not sigmificant wren considering both the
nature and dom'c le of the properties and the tenure of
Jnexpired leases Therefere, tnere was no significart
.mpact of this on our key audit matters,

We rave read the d.sclosure of climate related narrative
in the front half of the financia statements and
considered consistency wih tne financial statements
a~d our audit knowledge

05 Going cancern

The Directars nave prepared tne financial statements

on the go ng concern basis as they do not intend to
hguidate the Group or tne Compary or to cease ther
operatiors, and as tney have concicded that tre Group's
and the Carmpany's firarcia: position mears thatth s

Is realistic They nave a'so conc.Lded that trere are no
material uncertairties that could have cast significart
doubt over ther abuity to continue as a gomg concerr for
atieast a year from the date of approva’ of the financial
staterrents (e go g concern pernod’}

we used our knowledge of the Group, its industry,
ardtre genera econorr.cenvicrrentto dertfy

tre rrerentrsksic ts busiress mode a~d anaysed
~ow trose rsks mogataffectt-e Group or Company's
fira~c a reso.rces or ability to continue operat o~s over
the goimg cenicerr period Trer sks trat we considered
most tkely to adverse v affect tre Group or Cempary's
ava abeqnanca rescurces and tsab 'ty to operate
over{~is pericd were

+ Tre mpactof 3 sig- ficantredoct or mtre g Lator
of ~vestre~ts ardtre mpicators for the Group or
Comparys debt coveranrts

» The.guid ty of the "mvestrment partfoiioc and its abilty
to reet the hab1ties of the Group as and when they
falt due; and

+ The operat oral res  ence of key service organisators.

We corsidered whetner these r.sks colld plausibiy affect
the l.quidity or covenart complance in t1e going corcern
period by assessing the degree of downside assumption
that, individually ard co'lectively, could resu't 'n a tiguidity
IssJe, taking into account the Graup or Company's
current and projected cash ard iguid investrrent
position (andthe results of the'r reverse stress testing).

We considered whether the going corcern disclosare
‘'mnote 1 gves & full and accurate description of the
Directors’ assessment of gong concern, inc'uding the
dentifted rsks and reflated sensitivities

Jur corclus ons based on this work

+ we corsider that the D rectors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting :n the preparation of tne
finarcial statements ‘s appropriate,

- we have nct dertified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there 1s not, a matenal uncerta-nty
related to events or corduons that, indwidua:'y or
co'lectively. may cast sign'ficant doubt on the Group's
or Compary's abihty to continae as a going concern
for the going corcern peried,

we Fave rolr rg materia to add or draw attertior to
“relator to tre Directorg’ statement on the use of the
go ng corcern basis of accourt ng with no matera’
wvacertamt es t1at may cast sigrinicant deubt over

tne Group ard Cor-pany's use of that bas's for the
goirg concerr perniod, ard we fourd the going concern
disclosure in rote 1 to be acceptable; and

- e re ated statement ander tne L strg Raes set ot
or page 61 s matena y cors stentw tnthe financ a
staterents and Gur audit krowedge

However, as we canrot pred ct all future eve~ts o
co~dtons and as subsequent everts may resuitir
oulcoTestrat are ncoos stemt wth judgeTents that
were reascrabie at tre e (ney were rmade tne above
CCTC LS 0Ns are "ot g guarantee trat the Gro.p or tne
Compary s Covtooe roperator

TR Prorerty Irvestmert Trus:



06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To dentify risks of material misstatement due to fraud
{fraud risks’) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incent've or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an opportunity to commit fracd Cur nsk
assessment procedures included:

Erquinng of Directors as to the Growp's high-'evel
policies and procedures 1o prevent and detect fraud,
as well as whetner they have krowledge of any actual,
suspected or a leged fraud,

- Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors, the Administrator and the Group’s
Investrnent Manager, and

*+ Read:ng Board and Audit Committee minutes.

Asrequired by auditing standards, we perform
procedures to address the risk of maragement override
of cortrols, in particuiar to the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting
entries. We communicated identified fraud risk
throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraud throughout the audit We eva.uated
the design, and implemenrtation of the controls over
journal entries and other adjustments and made
ngdiries of the Administrator about iInappropr:ate or
unusJal actwity relating to the processing of joural
entries and otner adjustrments

We substantively tested all matenal post- closing
entries and, based on the results of our risk assessment
proceddres and understanding of the process, including
the segregation of duties between the Directors and

the Admiristrator, no furtner hign-risk journal entries or
other adjustments were identified

Ontris audit we have rebutted the fraud risk related
torevenue recognition because the revenue is

nor- jJudgemental and straightforward, with imited
opportunity for manipulation We did rot identify any
sigrificant unasual transactions or additiora’ fraud risks

Annuz: Report & Accounts 2023

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and reguiations that could
reasonably be expected to have a matenai effect on

tne financial statements from our genera: commercial
and sector expenence and through discussion with

t1e Directors, the Investment Manager and the
admiristrator (as required by audttirg stardards)

and discussed with the Directors the polices and
procedures regarding complianrce willt laws and
regulations We communicated identified aws and
regulations throughout our team and remained alert to
any ndications of non-compliance throughout the audit
As the Parent Company 1s regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gaining an understandirg of the contro
environment inc uding the entity's procedures for
compiying with regulatory requirements,

Tne potential effect of these laws and regulations or tre
financia! statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject tc laws and regulations

that directiy affect the financial statements including
firancal reporting legislation (including related
companies legislation), distributable profits legisiation,
and its gualification as an Investment Trust under UK
taxation iegisiation, any breach of which couid lead to
the Group losing various deductions and exemptions
from UK corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of
comphance with these laws and regulations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement items

We assessed the legality of the distributions made by
the Company in the period based en comparing the
dividends paid to the distributabie reserves prior to eacr
distribution

Second'y, the Group is subject 1o many other laws and
regulations where the conseguences of ron-compliance
could have a mater.a: effect on amounts or disclosures
in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fires or litigation. We 1dent fied the
following areas as thase most Ikey to have such an
effect money laundering, data protecticn, brnibery and
corrupticn legislation and certair aspects of Company
legislation recogmising the financal nature of the
Group's activities and its legal form Auditing standards
limit the required audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with tnese laws and regulations toc enguiry
of the Directors and the Adim nistrator and inspect on of
reguiatory and legal correspondence, if any Therefore,
if a breacn of operational requlations 1s not d'sclosed to
us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit wil!
not detect that breach
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulatians -
ability to detect

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing io the inherent ! mitations of ar audit there s an
unavoidable risk that we may not rave detected some
rmateriai misstaternents in the inancial statements, even
though we have propery planred and performed odr audit
'n accordance with auditing standards. For examipie, the
further removed non-comprance with laws and reguiations
Is from the everts and transactions reflected n tne financia’
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards wouid idertify if

Inaddtion, as with any audit, there remained a nigher risk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may invo've col'usion,
forgery, mtert.onal omiss:ons, musrepresentations, or the
overnde of internal contro's Gur audit procedures are
designed to detect matenal misstatement We are not
responsible for preventing non-comphance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance witn ail laws
andregulations

07 We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsible for the other imformation
presented N the Annual Repolt togetner with tne firancial
statements Our opirior on the financal statements
does not cover the other .nformation and. accordingly,
we Go not express an addit op morn of, except as exploit'y
stated helow any form of assurance conc'Lsor thereon

Our responsibity ‘s to read the other information and,

M do ng so, consder whetrer based or our “inancial
statements audit work, tre infermation trerein g
mater.ally misstated or mcons stent witn the ‘inanciai
stater~erts o cur audit krow'edge. Based so ely on that
work we nave rot dent fied mater a! misstateents in
the other ~formaton

Strategic report and Directors' Report
Based sale y on our work or the other ~forraton

e ~ave ot .detfed —ater @' mosstatements tre
strategic report and the D rectors report

rour op tion tre ~format.er gven tirose reports
fert~efirarca vear s corsstertwit-tne “nancig
state—erts and

' Our cpin e those reports rave beer prepared
accordance w tr the Compar-es Act 2006

Directors’ remuneration report

Inour opicr the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited bas beer properiy prepared in
accordance witn the Compan.es Act 2006,

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are requred to perform procedures to idertify
whetner there s a materal mcorsistency between,
the Directors’ disclosures in respect of emerging and
princ'pal 1isks and the viability statement, ard the
financiai staterents and our audit knowiedge

Based on those procedures, we have nothing matena' to
add or draw attent on to in reatior to.

+ the D rectors’ corfirmation within tne Lang-term
Viabilty statemert on page 47 that they have carried
out a rabust assessmert of the erergirg ard prnc par
risks facing tne Groap, including those that would
threaten its busiress mode,, future performance,
solvercy and hguidity,

the Principal and erierging risks and uncerta.nt es
disciosures describing tnese nsks and how emergirg
risks are identified, and expianing how they are berg
rmanaged and metigated: and

- the Drrectors’ explanat on ir the Lorg- terim Viability
statement of now they have assessed the prospects
of the Growp, over what perod they have dore so and
why they considered that perrod (o be appropriate, and
trer statement as 1o whether they have a reasorab.e
expectation that the Group wi o be ab'e to continue
1 operatior and reet its habi ties as they fa'. due
over the pericd of the'r assessment, ncudirgary
re.ated d sciosures drawing attent:on to any recessary
qua ificat ons or assurmptionrs

We are a sorequred o rev ew the Long-terr V.ab ity
staterrert set aut onrpage 41 and 42 urdertre Lstirg
R. es Based ontne above procedures we have
corcluded trattre above disSc oSures are matena'y
£01s stent vt the financ.al statements and our awd't
krow edge

Corwark:sir ted to assess ng these matters intre
cartext of orwy the know.edge acq. red durrg our
“narc.a statererts audit Aswecannotpredcetad
foture everts or cond tions and as scbiseguent everts
Trayresy t noJtcomes that are roorsistent witn
Judgements that were reasonab e at tne tmie toey
were made, the abse~ce of anvth ~gtoreport or t-ese
statemerts s ot a guarartee as to the Group's and
Companry's orger-ter~ «wab 'ty

F Prazerty Investmient Trust



Corporate governance disclosures

We arc required to perform procedures to idertify
whether there is a matenal inconsistency between the
Directors’ corporate governance disc'osures and the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Based or those procedures, we have concluded that
each of tne followirg is matenaly consistent with the
financial staterents and our audit knowledge.

+ treDirectors’ statement that they consider that the
annual report and firancial statemenrts taken as
awhole s fair, ba.anced and understandable, ard
provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's position and performance,
business mode! and strategy,

- tre sectior of the annual report describing the work of
tre Aucht Committee, including the significant 15sues
trat the audit committee considered in relation to
tre flmancial statements, and how these issues were
addressed, and

- the section of the annual report that describes
tre review of the effectiveress of the Group's risk
management and internal cortrol systems

We are required to review the part of the Corporate
Governance Statement reiatirg to the Group’s
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
rev.ew We have notning to report in this respect.

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Compan’es Act 2006, we are required to report
to youif, inour opinion’

+ adeguate accounting records have not been kept by
tre parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been rece-ved from branches not visited
by us, of

+ the parent Company financial statements and the part
of the Drectors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not i agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

- gertar disclosures of D rectors remunerat:on
specified by iaw are not made, or

« we have not recewved all the rformation and
explanat'ons we require for our audit

We nave rathing to report in these regpects.

Annua' Report & Accounts 2023

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out

on page 66, the Directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements mcluding being
satisfied that tney give a true and far view, such internal
contror as they determ’re s necessary to enabre the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
assessing the Group and parent Company's abiity to
continue as a going corcerr disciosing, as applicabie,
matters related to go'ng comcern, and using the gong
concern basis of accountirg urless they either intend to
hguidate the Group or the parent Company or 1o cease
operations, or have noreaistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtan reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whaole are
free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to ‘ssue our opinion in ar auditor's report.
Reascnabie assurance is a nigh level of assurance,

but does not guarantee that an audit conducted ir
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a materia
misstatement when it exsts Migstatements can arise
from fracd or error and are considered matenal if,
individua!ly or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
experted to influence the econom.c decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibiities s
provided on the FRC's website at www.frc org uk/
auditorsresponsibilities

The Compary s required to nclude these financia:
statements in an arnual financial report prepared using
the singie electronic reporting forrat specified in the
TD ESEF Regulation This acditor's report provides no
assurance over whether the annual ‘inancial report has
been prepared in accordance with that format
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

10 The purpose of cur audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

Trs report s made soey lo the Comipany’s members
as a body, n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement
by the Company Our audit work ras been undertaken so
that we might state 1o the Comrpany's members inose
matters we are required tc state to tremin an auditor's
report, and the further matiers we are required to state
to them ir accordance with the terms agreed with

the Company and for ng other purpose. To tre fuilest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responstbility to anyore otner than the Compary ard the
Company's members, as a bedy, for our audit work, for
this repart, or for the opirions we nave formed

R Mgt LA

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP Statutory Auditor

T4

TE

roperty Invesinmiert Trust



Qverview Strategic report Governance ? Glossary and AIFMD disclosure  Notice of AGM Shareholder information

(V)
)
C
=
Q
)
0
)
(V)

Financial




Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capitat
Return Return Return Return Total
Notes £000 £'000 £:000 £000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 52,077 - 52,077 44170 - 44170
Other operating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental income 3 3,513 - 3,513 2773 - 2,773
Service charge income 3 946 - 946 1,103 - 1103

(Lossesi/gains on investments
hetd at fair value 10 - {549,430) (549,430) - 249,038 249038

Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - (2,780) (2,780) - 1,136 1,136

Net movement on foreign
exchange; cash and cash

equivalents - 2,016 2,016 - 637 637
Net returns on contracts for

difference ) ) 10 9,462 (45,556) (36,094} 5701 16,361 22,062
Total Income i 66,253 (595738)  (529.485) 53752 267,172 320924
Expenses

Management and performance

fees 5 (1,560} (4,680) (6,240) (1,663 (26,477) (31,140)
Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 (1,660) - (1,660} (1,435) - (1,435)
Other administrative expenses & {1163y  (542) (1,705) (1.627) (608) {(2,229)
Total operating expenses (4,383) _(5222)  (9605) (4719)  (30,085) (34,804)
Operating profit/(loss) 61,870 (600,960) (539,090} 49,033 237,087 286,120
Finance costs ] 7 (1.146) (3,438) {4,584) (629) {1,886} (2,515}
Profit/{loss) from operations

before tax 60,724 (604,398) (543,674) 48,404 235201 283,605
Taxation _ 8 (6,087) 2,495 ~ (3,592) (4.967) 3,049 {1918y
Total comprehensive income . 54,637  (601,903)  (547,266) 43,437 238250 281,687
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary

share G 17.22p {189.67)p (172.45)p 13.69% 7507p 88.76p
e Total column of th s sietement represents tne Group's Stetement o Comiprenensive Mcome, preparea inaccorcance w th
JK-adopted qteriztiona accodnting §1ancards. T1e Revedue Retuiand Capia Relurn coumns are supplemenia y 1010 s

znc ave prepared under guigance pub snec by tne Assoc alicn of dvestment Companies &1 temis inthe zbove statement
cetive $Tom Sont U g Cperations

Tre Group does not have any oIner “Come or expense That §1CT 1Cuced nthe ebove sigiement Tnerefore " ota!
zomprehesie ncome’ S g sotne proftana oss for the year

Al micome s a7 buteh e 16 The sharenode s of the parent company

“he notes from paces &80 to 154 form pett of these F nans 2 Statements

= TF Property Inyesiment Trugt



Group and Company statement of changes in equity

MBIAIBAD

Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings @
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 §
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739 ":%
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) (547,266) +
Dividends paid 17 - - - (47,127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Company
g
Share Capital g
Share Premium Redemption Retained 2
Capital Account Reserve Earnings &
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) (547,266)
Dividends paid o 17 = - - (47.127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £°000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43871 1,158962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687 @
Dividends paid 7 - (45381} (45381) g
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,8771 1,396,268 1,562,739 §
;
n
Company £
o
Share Capital §_=
Share Premium Redemption Retained 2
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total b
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £000 £'000 £000 £°000 2
- - . _— k=1
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433 =3
o
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687 .;;,-':
Dividends paid 17 : - - (45381) (45381) <
At 31 March 2022 79338 43167 43,871 1,396,268 1,562,739
The notes from pages 80 to 104 form part of these Financial Statements
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Group and company balance sheets

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
Notes £000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments held &t fair value 10 948,672 948,672 1,506,436 1,506,436
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,292 - 36.297
nvestments held for sale 10 - - 48980 48,980
948,672 984,964 1,555416 1,591,713
Deferred taxation asset 172 903 903 - 903 G903
949,575 985,867 1,556,319 1592616
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97673 97,208
Cash and cash equivalents 36,071 36,069 32,109 32,107
101,358 101,362 126,782 129315
Current liabilities 13 {23,654) (59.950) (66,109) (101,939)
Net current assets 77,704 41,412 B3 673 27376
Total assets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 1,619992 1,619,992
Non-current liabilities 13 __ (58,933) ~ (58,933) (57.253) (57.253)
Net assets . 968,346 968,346 1 ,562‘_7’39 1,562,739
Capital and reserves
Called up share capitai 14 79,338 79,338 79338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43571 43971
Retained earnings 6 801,875 __ 801875 1,296,268 1,396.268
Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 968,346 1,562.739 1,562,739
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492.43p 492 43p

These finanzia: statements were app oy
authersed ‘or ssue 01 1 Juns 20

D Watasn
D Watson
Director

ec by the arrectors of TR Property Investment Trust pro iCompany No 844621 sc

Tre ~otes from pages 80 10 1534 farm part of t-ese Firarc al Staterents

TR Property IrvestTert Trus?




Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £000 £°000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
hefore tax to net cash outflow from
cperating activities
{Loss)/profit from operations before tax (543,674) (543,674) 283,605 283,605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 25715 2515
Losses/{gains) on investments and
derivalives held at fair value through protit
or loss 594,986 594,990 (265,399) (258,387)
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and foan notes (336) (336) (977} (977}
Scrip dividends included In investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (6,325) (6,325) {10,839) (10,839)
Sale of Investments 448,587 448,587 544370 544 370
Purchase of investments {427,509) (427,509) (430,830) (430,837}
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments and
accrued income (978) (978) 8 B8
Decrease/(Increase) in sales settlement .
debtor 30,399 30,399 (32,871 (32,871}
Increase In purchase settlement creditor 3,172 3172 5170 5170
Decrease In other debtors 1,419 1,413 2,951 2,951
{Decrease)/incCrease in other creditors (22,265) (21,797) 13809 6,798
Net cashflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,526 M5z 111,512
Interest paid (4,584) (4,584) (2,515) (2,515)
Taxationpaid _ {3,403) _(3,869) (1.258) o (1,258)
Net cashflow from operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,739
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (47,127} (47,127) (45,381} (45,387)
Repaymentoficans _ (25,000) _(25,000) (60,000} (60,000
Net cashflow from financing activities (72,127) (72,127) {105,381} (105,387)
Increase in cash 1,946 1,946 2,358 2,358
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 32,109 32,107 29114 29,112
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32109 32107
The notes from pages 8010 104 form part of tnese Financia’ Statements

-g
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Notes to the financial statements

01 Accounting policies
The financial statements for the year enced 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a going concern basis, .n accorcance with
Ur-adopred Mternationzl account ng standards and in conformity win the requrements of the Companies Act 2606 The f.nancia
staterments have aiso been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice, "Financig' Statements of
Investment Trust Companies anc Venture Capitai Trusts, (‘SORP, 1o the extent that 118 consistent with J<-adopted nternat onal
accounting standards

In assess ng Going Concern the Board nas made a cetaled assessmeni of the ability of the Company and tne Group to meet
ts abilties as they fall due, includ ng stress and hguidity tests which considerad the effects of substanual falls in mvestment
valuations, revenues received and market 'guiaity as the globai economy coninues to su®er aistupt on due to inflationary
pressures, the war in Lk-ane and the a®er-effects of the COVID-19 pandemic

in light of the testing carmieg out, the hauidity of the evel 1 assets held by the Company and the sign.ficant net asset va'ue,
and the net current asset position of the Group ana Parent Company, ihe Directors are satisf.ec that the Company and
Group nave adequate fmancial resources to continue in operal on “or at ieast the next 12 months following the signing of
tne ‘inanc al staterments and therefore 115 appropriate to adopt the going concern bas.s of accounting

Tne Group ana Company financial statements are exp-essed in sterling, wn cn is therr ‘unctional and preseniational
currency Sterling 1s the fuict onal currency hecause it s the currency of the primary econaimic environimient i1 which the
G-oup operates. Va'ues are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'0007 except where otherwise ind.catea.

Key estimates and judgements

Tne preparation of the “inancial statements necessanly requires tne exerc:se of Juagement, bothin applcaton of
accounting polic-es, which are set out below, and 1in the se.ection of assumptions used in the calculaton of estimates
These est'mates and judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basts and ate continually evaluzted based o nisto-'ca’
experience and other factors However, aciua' results may ciffer from these estimates The only key estimate

13 conaidered to be the valuation of investment properties. See sect'on (1) of this note There are not considerec

tc be any key judgements,

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group f nanc.al statements consat.aate the financ.g' statements of the Company and its subsic'gries 1¢ 31 March
2023 All tne subsiciasies of the Company have been consohaated in these financ.al statements. in accordance with
=RS10the Company has been designated as an invesimean? entity on tne basis that

+ Im obtaing funds from investors and provides those investors with mvestment mansgemen: serv.ces,

¢ it commits 1o 118 investo s nat 1ts busimess purpose 1s 1o invest funas solely for “eturns from capital appreciation and
nvestment income, and

-t measures a1d eve uates performance of substantially an o 1ts nvestments on a fa rvalue basis

Each of 11e subsiciaries of the Company was estabhishec for the soie purpose of operat.ng or supporting the investment
operations of the Company | ncluding rais.ng additional f nancing:, and 1s 1ot 1tsef an mvestment entity 'FRS 10 sets out
wnatin the case oF controlled entties that suppors the investment acuvey of the inveziment ent Ly, those entities should be
consol dated rathe” than presentec as nvesiments at fair va'ue Accord ngly the Company has consolicated the resulis
and financ al positons of those subsidianies.

LY

Subsidianies are consciaatec ‘rom the gate of the 1 acguis hion, being the date on wh cn the Company obta ns contral, enc
continue to be conseol.datec until t1e date tnat sucn conmrol ceases The financia statemen:s of subsic a-es used nthe
preparation of the consolicated fnancial statements arg basec on cons'stent accounting po cles Alintra-group balances anc
sransachans, ncluding unreal sed profits arising therefrom. are el minatea

b} Income

O v cends "ecewab € onecury s1ates are treatea as revenue ‘07 the yesr o1 an ex-civ gena bas s. Vhere 7o ex-aiv aend
date ‘s avanabie, o vcends rece.vable 01 or he‘ore the yea- end are treatet as revenue ‘o7 The yeas 27ov.s onais made

for amy, civ Cenas not expected to be rece ved Where *he Group has e ectec 1o ece.ve these d v.dends 11 tie form of
aadit onal sha-es “atner than casn the amount of cash ¢ v dend foregone € recogmiseg as come S fferences betiveen
e vz ue of sneres recersed ana the casn dv denc ‘oregone are recogn s£a i the cap ta meturns of the Croup Statemen:
of Camprehenshe mcome Tne fxec ceturns on debt secur ties e recegnsed ¢n a ime apport cnment Bas.s so as to
eflect the efective y ed on eacn sucn securty nletest rece vab e from cash ano snorl term depos 1 s acorued 1o the
e of the yez~ S70ck lenc g income € recogn SeC o7 a7 aCCTuE's basis Unoe v it ng commissict s taken o revenue.
U €33 3Ny SNares underaritten are requ tes e be 1a<er Up v/ 1SN CaSe The propor eale COMmIMm SsIgT TECen eC §
decugred from the cost of the Imvestmen:

Recogrito of property -enmtal mcome € setolr 1 sest on ot tus note

Fecognt onef qzome from cont mselouUl nsetIon ¢ of s ote

o
(]
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01 Accounting policies
c) Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruais basis An analysis of retained earnings broken down into

revenue and capital items 1= g venin note 16 1n arrving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenug @
items excep: as follows: E
- Expenses which are incidental te the acquisst-on or disposa of an investment, ‘;E
- Expen are presentec as capital where a connection with the manienance or enhancement of the vaiue of the §
penses P &

imvestments can he demonstrated, this mcludes rrecoverable VAT incurred on costs relzung to 1ne extension of

residentia leases as prenmuums receved for extending or terminating weases are recognised in the capital account
« One guarter of the base management fee is charged to “evenue, with three cuarters allocated 1o capital return to reflect

the Board's expectativns ol long et mvestmen: returns Al performance Tees are charged o capiiai return,
* The fund zdministration, cepositary, custody and company secretarial serv.ces are charged directly 1o the Company and

are mncluded with'n Other administrative expenses in note & These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base g

management ‘ee; one guarter to ‘ncome and three guarters 1o capita:, z

[}

d) Finance costs §

“he finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity $nares is calculated so as to give & constant rate
of return on the ocutstanding balance One quarter of the f nance costis charged to revenue and three quarters to
captal return,

e) Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilit.es are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enactec or substantive'y enacted by the balance sheel date

Income tax s charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are cred ted or cnarged to equity.
Otherwise income tax is recegnised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

The tax effect of different items of expenditure i1s allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's effective rate
of tax for the year. The charge for taxation 1s based on the profit for tne year and takes into account taxation deferred
because of temporary differences between the treatmen? of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORPE the allocation method used to caloulate tax reiief on expenses
presented against capital resurns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 15 the
‘marginal basis” Under this basis, if taxabie income is capabie of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the
revente return column of the Statement of Comprehensive ncome, then no tax redef is transferred to the capital colurmn

Deferred tax is the tax expecten to be pavahle or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and habilities in the Balance Sneet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax habilities are -ecognised for ali taxable temparary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable prof ts will be available
aga:nst wnich deductible temporary differences can be utinsed

The Company I1s an invesiment trust under .1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, 1s not liabte for tax on
capital gains. Capital gams aresing in subsidiaty companies are subiect to capital cains tax.

f) Investment property
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Investment property 1s measured ivtially at cost inciuding transaction costs. Transaction cosis include transfer taxes,
pro‘essignal fees for legal services and initial eas’ng comimissions to bring the property to tne condition necessary for

=
it to be capable of operating. The carrying amount a so includes the cost of replacing part of an existing Investment g—
property et the time that cost ‘s incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties 1s e
recodgrised to be effected on the date unconditional contracts are exchanged ;,_,:
Subsequent to initial ~ecognition, investment property is stated at fair value Gains or losses arising from changes in the =
fair values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in wh ch they anse
Investment property 1s derecogn’sed when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no futu-e
economic bene®it s expected from its disposal Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property
are recogrused in the Group Statement of Comprehensive ncome inthe year of cisposal
Gans or losses on the disposal of investment propery are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset at the cate of disposal 2
)
Revaluation of investment properties g
The Group carries its mvestment properties at far value in accardance with 1FRS 13, revalued tw ce 8 year, with changes l
in fair values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Group engaged Knight Frank as E)
independent valuation specalists to determine *ai- value as at 31 March 2023 g
%‘.
=3
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

o

Accounting palicies

Valuations of investment properties

Determinatnon of the fair value of .nvestment properties has been prepared on tne kas’s definec by the R CS Valustion -
Global Stanaards [ The Red Book Gioba Stancards) as ‘o'lows

"The estmated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of va uat'on between a willing buyer and a
whiing sellerinan arm's length ransaction &fter proper market g wheramn the parties nad eacn acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion”

Tnevauation iakes nto account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profles, future revenue streams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, plant and mach:nery, any environments! matiers and the overs \ reparr and condition
of tne property} anc ciscount rates applicable to those assets These assumptions are based onioca marke: conditions

exist.ng at the balance sheet date

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2023, the valuers 1ave used ther market knowledge gna
professional judgement and have not anly rel'ed solely an h storical transacucona: comparables Examples of inputs ta the
vaiation can be seen in the sensitvity analysis disciosed 1 note 10 (el

Held for sale invesiment are presented sepa-ztely on the ‘ace of the Ba a1ce Sheet

Held for sale
Investment prope-ty classifiea as neld for sale s measured ‘5 = vaiue

This cona mion s regarded as met on y when the investmen: prope-iy .S ava lable for mmea’ate sale .nits present
cond-tion 2nd tne sale i1s h ghiy prohable.

Management mus: be comm tted 1o 2 p an for sale wth an active programme to 1oentify a buyer at & rezsonakle pricen
-elation o ts fair va ue whch shou d be expecten o cualfy for recogmion as a completec sale with'n ong vea™ from te
date of ciassif canion

Rental income

Rentzl income recenvab e under operat ng ieases 1S recognisec on a straight-l ne basis over the term of the lease. except
for contingent rentz. ncome which s recogmiseq when it anses

ncentives for essees toenter into ease agreements or other negoliated ren! free penods acleed gre spread evenly over
the easeterm, even if the paymenis ase not made o1 such a bas s The easeterm $tne non-canceliable period of the
ease togetner with any furthe- term “or wh'ch the tenant nas the option to cont nue tne iease. where. at e inception of
e ease, the directors are reasonab y certamn that “he tenant wil exerc ge that opt.on. Prem.ums received tc tlermonate or
extena leases are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive income when they anise

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

neormme :*'smg fram expenses recharged to tenants s recogn sed nthe cenod in wh ch the expense can be contractualiy
recaverer Service charges and otner such receipts are inc uded gross of the ~elated costs nrevenue as the d rectors
consider that the Group acts #s principal 1178 respecs

g) Investments

wWhen a purchase or saie s mace unger conract, the terms of wnich require de ivery wthin the umeframe of the reevant
market, the mvestments concerned are "ecognised or cerecogn:sed on the race dste

All-he Group's wvestmenis are definea under (FRS as '“NE’SU’T\@“ designzied as “ar va-ue through profit or loss but are
250 ceacnibec nthese Gnancs statemenls a3 nvestments heid et fa - vaue

AlMvesiments are ges gnatea upon 1N Tial recogn nion ag ne d gt far ve ug ancete mecs,umd at subsequent repo-t
walue, whon for guctec mvestments, s ceermec to be clos, g Prices ‘or 510cks sourceg “rom European sioo kexma :
SETS stocks sourced “rom the _oncon Stock Ext henge. SE75 sthe _oncon Sook Exchange elect-on ¢ trad ng serv ce co»efcn;
mos. of the mar<etincluc ng al the F 58 A6-S nare and e Mos: rcud AMConsttueTs Ungugiec nyestmentis o nvesiments
for wnrchtiere 501y an nactve makel ae hev at*a ~vaue wnion s based onvaluations made by the directors nsCCo Cance
st PEVCA guoel nes &nc using current mearket pr ces, tradng condit 0N anc e geneta economic ¢oamate,

nate T nanc & statements the Company recogises tne far value of tgimvestimen's nosubsic aties 8s be ng e sdiusiec el &
walue Thesubs diznes nave N sioticaly been holding ven cles for crect p'ope't Fvesument or fnancing veh cies, No agsels ere
curenty Me ¢ througn the subs ¢ 2ry struciure and &+ F nanoing mgtumenis ate d mect v ned by e Company

—

Group Statement of Comprenens Je ncome 07¢ Sposa. '8 380 gas

Ug &7E TeTOogN SeT 1 The
= emew. of Comprehensive ncome

zogn sed 1 tne Croup Sat

Derivatives

Dervalvesaren
he Croup Stat
|
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Accaotnting pelicies

Derivatives continued
CFOs are synthetc equities and a-e vaiued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract {e.g notonal dividends, financing costs, interest returns and
capial changes) are al.ocated to the revenus and capital accounts in algnment with the nature of the underlying source
of inceme and in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend income or expenses arising on
long or short pesitions are apportioned whofly to the revenue account Notional interest expense an lang pasitions is
apportioned between revenue and capizal in accordance w th the Board's long term expected returns of the Company
rcur-ently determined 1o be 255 1o the revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relatng to
underiyng prnice movements of securities inrelation to CFD exposures are a located wholly to capital reserves

h) Barrowings, loan notes and debentures

All loans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair vaiue of the consideration receved, less issue costs where
applicable Afterinitial recog~tion, ali interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsecuently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cost s calculated by 1aking into account any ¢iscount or premium cn settlement. The costs of arranging
any interest bearing .oans are capitaiised ang amcrtised over the fife of the loan on an effective interest rate basis

i) Foreign currency transiation
Transact:ons involving fore’gn currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Fore.gncurrency monetary asse:s and | abilities are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange d fferences are recognisec in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

i} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured al amorised cost and comprise cash in hanc and demand deposits
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

IMterim dividends are recegnised in the period In which they are paid and final div dends are recagnised when approved
by shareholders

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consoidated financial statements

There were no amendmen's ta International Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretations that had an effect during the peniod .

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards 1ssued before the reporiing date inat become effective after 31 March 2323 are not expected to have

a material effect on eguity or profit for the subsequent period The Group has not early acopted any 1ew Interiational
Sinancial Reporting Standard or Interpretation Standards, amendments and interpretations -ssued but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the G-oup's financial statements are listed below:

IAS 1 Amencments - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effect’ve date amencec to 1 January 20231,
The amendments specfy the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not
expected to have a material .mpact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies {effective 1 January 2023 The amendments require an entity to
disclose its matenal accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting pol'cies The amendments contain
guidance and examples on identifying material accounting policy information.

IAS B8 Amendments - Definition of Aczounting Sstimates {effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting
egumates as ‘monetary amounts i financia! statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty’ The amencments
also clarify the interaction between an accounting policy anc an accounting estimate

145 12 Amendmerts - Deferreg Tax related to Assets anc L'abilities arising from a Single Transaction feffeciive 1 January
70230, The amendments recy re entit:es with certain assets 1o recogmise deferred tax on particular transactions that, on
mitial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deduct'bie temparary differences

IAS 1 Amendments - Non-current Labi ities with Covenants (effective 1 January 2024) The amendments require disclose
of information when there is 2 right to defer settlement of a iability for 21 least twelve montis

m
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02

03

04

[ne)
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tnvestment income

Dividends from UK listed investments
Dividends from overseas listed investments
Scrip dividends from listed investments

Property income distnbutions

Net rental income

Gross rental income

Service charge income

Direct property expenses, rent paysble and service charge costs

Operating leases

£000

3,084

30,891

6,325
777

52,077

2023
£'000

3,513
946
(1,660)
_..2799

2022
£'000
3,101
21,349
10,693

9,027
44170

2022
£'000
2,773
1,103
{1,435)

The Group nas entered 1nto commergial eases onits property portfolo Commerc.al property leases tvpically have lease
terms between 5and 15 years and nclude © auses to enable pericd c upwsa e revis'on of the rentz ¢iarge accoraing to
prevaling market conditions Some eases contain opt ons 1o break before the enc of the legse term

Future minimum rentals under non-cancelizble operating leases as at 31 March are as foilows

within 1 year
After 1 year but not more than 5 years
More than 5 years

Other operating income

Interest recervable
Interest on refund of overseas withhalding tax

Income received 10 capital

2023 2022
£000 £'000
2,900 2800
9,900 10,250
14,150 17,500
26,950 30,550
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
255 -

- )

777777 12 -
267 5
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05 Management and performance fees

2023
Revenue

£000

1,560
Performance fee -
1,560

Management fee

2023
Capital
£'000

4,680

4,680

2022

Revenue

£000

6,240 1663
6,240 1663

2022
Capital
£'000

4,988

24,489
29,477

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 1.,

Under the terms of this agreement the manager Is not entitled to a performance fee for the year to 31 March 2023.

2023
£000

06 Other administrative expenses

Directors’ fees (Directors’ Rermuneration Report on pages 6310 65)

Auditor's remuneration.

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial
statements

Legal fees

Taxation fees

Other administrative expenses
Other expenses
Irrecoveraple VAT
Expenses charged to Revenue

Expenses charged to Capital

Other adm nistrative expenses noude depositary, custody and company secretatial services These expenses are

228

97
1

90

187
532
28
1,163
542

2022
Total
£'000
6,651
24,489
31,140

2022
£000

220

82
21
77
199
869
AES
1,621
608
2229

charged on the same basis as the base management fee; 25% tc income and 75% 10 capital Tota! other administrative
expenses charged to both income and capital are £721,000 (2022 £807,000)

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and 2R costs, Directars’ Nationa' Insurance and recruitment, Reqistrars
and listing fees, and annual report and sther pubdication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged

solely 1o the revenue account

AnnualRepor: & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

2023 2022
£000 £000

Loan notes, bank lcans and overdrafts repayabie within 1 year 3,189 1162
Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years 837 814
Loan notes repayable after S years . o _ 558 . 539
4,584 2515
Amount allocated to Capital -~ 3 {3,438) {1,886)
Amount allocated to Revenue o 1,146 . 629
08 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
UK corporation tax at 19%
(2022 19%) 4,221 (3,521} 700 2,832 (2,832)
Overseas taxation 2,148 1,026 3,174 2135 - 2,135
6,369 (2,495) 3,874 4967 {2,832} 2135
Over provision in respect of prior
years (282) - (282)
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967 (2,832} 2135
Deferred taxation - - - - (217) 217
Current tax charge for the year 6,087 (2,495) 3,692 4967 (3.049) 1918

e8]
o
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08 Taxation v

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year s lower (2022 lower) than the stancard rate of carporation tax in the UK for 2 arge
company of 19% (2022 19%)

The difference i1s explained below:

2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Net prafit/{loss) on ordinary

activities before taxation _ 60,724  (604,3%8)  (543,674) 48,404 235,207 283,605

Corporation tax charge at 19%

(2022:19%) 11,538 (114,836) (103,298) 9,197 44,688 53,885

Effects of:

Non taxable losses/(gains) on

investrnents - 104,392 104,392 - (47.317) (47,317}

Currency movements not taxable - 145 145 - (337} (337)

Tax relief on expenses charged to

capital - {1,878} {1,878) - 3,243 3,243

Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656 - (3,109) {3.109)

Non-taxable UK dividends {586) - (586) (603) - (603)

Non-taxable overseas dividends (6,791) - (6,791) (5810) - (5,810

Overseas withholding taxes 2,148 1,026 3,174 2135 - 2135

Deferred tax moverment - - - - (217} (217

Qver provision in respect of prior

years (282) - (282)

Disallowable expenses 131 - 131 26 - 26

Deferred tex not provided @1y - (71) 22 - 22
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967  (3,049) ) 1,918

¢) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for defer-ed taxation provided al 25% {2022 25%) comprise:

Group
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Unutilised losses carried forward ~(903) _(503) - (903) (903)
Shown as:
Deferred tax asset ) - (903) {903) - {903} (903)
Company 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Unutifised losses carried forward - {903) (903) - (903) (203)
Shown as:
Deferred tax asset - (903) (903) - (903) (903)

Arnuzl Report & Accounts 7023 8/
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08 Taxation

09%

[ae]

[§]

c} Provision for deferred taxation continued

The moverment In provision in the year is as follows

Group 2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £000 £'000
Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903)
Unutilised losses carried forward - o - -
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903)
Company
2023 2022
Revenue Revenue
£'000 £000
Provision at the start of the year - {903) (503) -
Unutilised losses carried forward - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903)

£000

£'000

2022 2022
Capital Total
£000

(686) (686)
(217} (217)
(903) (903)
2022 2022
Capital Total
£'000

(686) (656)
(217) (217)
(903} (903)

“he Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £5,601,017 (2022 £8,007 769 arising as a result of losses camed
forward It's considered toc uncertaln tnat the Group wil generate profits in the relevant compan es that the osses would ke
avaniable to offset aga'nst and, on shis basis, the aefer-ed tax asset 1 respect o’ these expenses has not bee recogrnised

Jue 1o the Company's siatus as an invesiment trust company enc the intenl o 1o continue meet ng e conditons
reqguirec 1o obtan approval for the foreseeahie future, the Company has not prov ded ceerred tax o1 any capinal ga ns

ansing on tne revaluation or dispasal of Investments

Earnings/(loss) per Qrdinary share
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

Year ended

31 March 2023

£000

Net revenue profit 54,637

Net capital profit (601,903)

Net total profit L o - . _ (547,266)
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year 317,350,980

pence

Revenue earnings per share 17.22
Capital earnings per share (189.67)
Earnings per share (172.45)

Year ended

31 March 2022
£'000

43 437

238,250
281687
73]77”35098@7

pence

1369
75.07
88.76

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per share Therefore the basic and diluted return per share

are the same

TR Procerty Investrrent Tryst
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10 Investments held at fair value
a) Analysis of investments

MBIARAD

Company Group Company o

2023 2022 2022 =

£000 £000 £000 &

. 3

Listed in the United Kingdom 383,303 383,303 516,076 516,076 g

Unlisted in the United Kinggom 2,573 2,573 2341 2,247 +
Listed Overseas 488,839 488,839 Q40744 §40,744
Investment properties 73,957 73,957 47275 477275
Investments held for sale 7 ) - - B 48,980 48980

Investments held at fair value 948,672 948,672 1,655,416 1,555,416 o

Investments in subsidiaries _%;

at fairvalue - - 36,292 36,297 g

948,672 984964 1.555416 1591713 =

Investrents held for sale: mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 31 March 2022 with a
sale expected to complete by the end of June 2022, Ultimately, the residential element of the Colonnades was sold and a
decision was made to retain the commercial element for the foreseeable future. There are ne investments held for sale as
at 31 March 2023.

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue

31 March additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 (disposals) (depreciation) 2023 2023 2022

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Listed investments 1,456,820 (52,591) (532,087} - 872,142 51,450 43,775
Unlisted investments 2,347 - 232 2,573 627 395
Contracts for difference 7857 42,567  (45556) 4,662 9,462 570
Total investments segment 1,466,818 {10,030) (577,417) 879,377 61,539 49871
Direct property segment 96,255 {4723)  (17.575) 73,957 4,459 3870
1563073  (14753) (594 386) 953,334 65,998 53,747

In seeking to achieve its Investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationa’ly and also in investment property 1ocated in the UK. The Company
tnerefore considers that there are two d stinct reporting segments, Investments and direc: property, which are used

for evaluating performance and aliocat-an of resources The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives
information on the two segrents on a regular basis Whiist revenue streams anc d'rect property costs can be atinbuted
10 1he reporting segments, general acministrative expenses cannot be split to aliow a prof for each segment to be

o
o
on
7
9
<@
o
5
a
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|
=
o
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o
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a
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s
F)

determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above. §
[+]
The property costs inciuced within note 3 are £1,660,000 {2022 £1.435000) and deducting ~hese costs from the direct a
property gross revenue above woulc resu't 'n et income of £2 789,000 (2022 £2,441 03001 ‘or the airect property =
reporting segment. 2
w
4
o
=
3
[~ %
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=
g
3
g
5
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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investments heid at fair value

¢c) Geographical segment reporting

UK listed equities and convertibles
UK unlisted equities

UK direct property’

Continental European listed eguities

UK contracts for difference?
European contracts for difference?

Valuation
31 March
2022
£000
516,076
2,341
96,255
940,744
1,555,416
1627
6,030
1,563.073

Net
additions/
(disposals)
£'000

46,397
[4,723)
(98,982)
(57.314)
31268
11263
(14.753)

Net
appreciation/
{depreciation}

£'000
(179,164)
232
{17.575)
(352.923)
(549,430}
(33831}
(17,725}
(594.986)

Valuation
31 March

2023
£000

383,303
2,573
73,957
488,839
948,672
(936)
5,598
953,334

Gross Gross
revenue revenue
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
15,941 11,737
395 395
4,459 38786
35,741 32,044
56,536 48046
3,425 1616
6,037 4,085
65,998 53,747

ncludec in the above figures are purchase costs of £981,200 (2022, £486 500) and sales costs of £238 0GC (20272

£259,000)

Trese comprise mainly stamp duly end commiss:on

The Company received £512,155,000 (2022 £544 092,000) from nvestments, e uc ng direct property, sold in tne
vear The book cost 0 these nvestmenis when they we e purchased was £412,279 000 12522 £356 428,000; These

‘nvestments nave been revalued over * me ana unti they were sold any unrea. e

value of tne investmen:s

RSy

nelosses were ‘noludec inine far

! Net addmons/(disposals] incluces £48C,000 (2022 £366.000) of capita expenditure Net appreciat ons(depreciation)
‘nc uces amounts in regpect of rent free pericds

“ Crossrevenue “or contracts fo- d flerence relates to crvigencs rece vak e, 0n an ex dividend basis, on te under y ng
positions held The appreciai on/tdepreciztion) in CFDs reates to the movement in farr va.ue in the year

Tme deprecationin tne TRS relates to tne movement in fair vaiue in the vear unit migtunty

d) Substantial share interests

e Group neid interests in 3% or mo-e of any class of capiial In € companies (2022 8§ companies) 0 wh chit invests
hone of these ‘nvestments s cons cered sign ficant "1 he context of these financiz staterments See nete 21 01 pages 163

a7c 104 7o “urtner detan s of subis ¢ ary investments

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financizl assets anc fnancai | ab’ ites a7e canec in the Ba.ance Sneet edther at the - “air value iinvestments; or the

balance sneet amount 's a “easonabe approwmation of fa v

due to brokers, acerua ¢ anc cash a7 Bankj

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

erminec ¢n the basis o ne oweest ese .nput

nec ing accountng potcies qnotes 1 fiang g

value (due “am broke-s, div dends anc interes® recervabie,

that s =izt ficanmiothear

TE Propersy Irvestrren: Trust
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Investments held at fair value

e) Fair value of financial assets and financiat liabilities continued
The table below sets oul fair vaiue measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'00G

Equity investments 861,611 10,531 2,573 874,715

Investrment properties - - 73,957 73,957

Contracts far difference 4,662 - 4,662

Foreign exchange forward contracts - (386) - (386)
S __._selent 14807 76,530 _ 952,948

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000

Equity investments 1,456,820 - 2,341 1,459,167

Investment properties - - 86,255 86,255

Contracts for difference - 7,657 - 7.657

Foreign exchange forward contracts - 2736 S 2736
1486820 10393 98596 _1.565809

Tne table above represents the Group's fair value hierarchy. 7The Company's fair value hierarchy is identical except for the
nclugion of the fair value of the investment in subsidianes which at 31 March 2023 was £36,292,000 (2022 £36,297,000)
These nave been categorised as evel 310 hotn years, The movernent in the year of £5,0002022: £7,015000)1s

the change in fair value In the year The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2023 was
984,064,000 (2022 £1,591,713,600).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March Appreciation / 31 March

2022 Purchases Sales (Depreciation) 2023

At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

Unlisted equity investments 2341 - - 232 2,573
Investment properties

- Mixed use 48,187 387 (5,203) (6,746) 36,625

- Office & Industrial i 48,068 i 93 - (10,829) 37,332

96,255 480 {5,203) (17575 73,957

98,596 - 480 {5,203) (17.343) 76,530

All appreciation/{depreciation) as statea above relates to movements in farr value of unhsted equity investments and
nvestment properties held at 31 March 2023.

The Group held cne unguoles mvestment at the yvear end (see 11 & overleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
Trere were no transfers durng the year between any of the levels

MBIAJBAD
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Investments held at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

The sign-ficant unobservable inputs used in the fa~ value measurement categornsec witun Leve 3 of the fa 1 value
~iera-chy of investmen: properties are

- Estimated rental vaue £7 5-£65per sc 112022 £6 5 £65)

- Capitansation rates 30% -6 0% {2002: 2 8= - 6.0}

Significant ingrezses (decreases) nestimated renial vaiue and rent growininsc.aron wouic result in g sigaificantly

Aigher ('ower) far value measurement A significant increase {decrease} in.ong-termvacancy rate insolaton would
result ina significant'y .ower (higner) fa.r value measurement

There are interrelationships between the yields and renta: va'ues as they are partially oetermenec by marke: rate
condition The sersitivity of the valuation to changes 1in the mos: ssignificant inputs per class of investment property are
shown below

Estimated mavement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2023 arising from £'006 £'000

Increase in rental value 5 0% 289 1,712 - 2,001
‘ Decrease in rental value 5.0% (289) ) (1.712) B - ~ (2,001}

Increase in Yieid 0.5% (3.538) (3,466) - (7,004)

Decrease in Yield 0 5% ) _ 4,343 4,261 - B804

Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total

2022 arising from £000 £'000 £'000 £000
. Increase in rental value by 5% 306 2,266 145 2,717

Decrease In rentaf value by 5% _ (294) (2,266} - S (2,567}

Increase in yield by 0 5% (3,865} (6,343) (832} (11,040)

Decrease in yield by 0.5% 4841 gm0 1701 ) 14,653

No impalirment osses have heen recogn'sec as at 31 March 2023

11 Financial instruments

‘ Risk management policies and procedures
THe Group mvests necuities and otner asuments forthe long term in the pursut o tne Investment Object ve set oul
onpage 33 Tne Group s exposed 1o a variely of ns<s that could resu't in g ther g regucticn o7 an 1ncease 1 te profits
avalsble for cistmbuton by way of ¢ vidends

The princ pz ms<s e Croup faces 0 s portfo o management activ.l.es are
« METKET TS IDOMIBr § G BUISE 1 8K, Cureoy NSk and i Tierest "ale T gx

< Ligudity s«

- Crectrsx

Trne*tAznager

s polizes ang processes ‘o- ménag " these © §ks are summaneed o peces 37 10 40 2nc na e been appled
TArQUGIOUT TIE veaT

(=)
8]
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Financial instruments

11.71 Market price risk
By the very nature of its aclivities, the Group's mvestments are exposed 1o market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a civersif ed portfoio and reperts *o the Boare on the portfolio activity anc performance at each Boa“a
meeting The Board moniiors the investment activity and strategy 1o ensure :t is compat b e with the stateg objectives.

The Group s exposure o changes in marxet prices onits quoted equily investments, CFDs and investment property
portfolic, was as 1o iows:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Investments held at fair value 948,672 1,555,416
CFD long gross exposure 130,906 144,642

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out In the ‘nvestment Policies on page 34, there ae gu delines to the amount of exposure to a single company,
geograph cal region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to indivicual or sector
prce nsks As an investment company dedicated to investment i the property sector, the Group Is exposed to price
movements across the property asset ¢'ass as a whole

Price risk sensitivity

The following table ifustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year anc the value of shareholders’ funds to
an increase or decrease of 16% inthe fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CF3 and direct property investments.
The level of change s consisient with the illustration shown In the previous year The sensitivity is based on the Group's
equity, fixed interest, CFC and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other vanables helc constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Staterment of Comp'rehens]_\'/e ' o
Income - profit after tax
Revenue return 7N 71 {115) 115
Capital return 142,826 (142,826) 234176 (234,176}
Change to the profit after tax for the
year/shareholders’ funds 142755 (142,755) 234,067 (234,061}
Change to tatal earnings per Ordinary
Share 44.98p {44.98)p 73.75p (73.75)p

1%.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group's portfolio 15 invested in overseas securities and their sterling vaue can be significantly et*ectea

by movements in foreign exchange rates

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the proport:cn of the investment portfolio held :n ster'ing,
Euros or other currencies The Group may sometimeas nedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurczone by
funding mvestiments in overseas secuntes with unsecured :0ans denormnatec in the sarme currency or tnrougn

forward currency contracts

Cash ceposits are hed in sterl ng and,'or Euro cenominated accounts

Annual Renort & Accourts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2023 2022

Sterling 34.0% 34.0%
Euro 42.0% 42 0%
Swedish Krona 14.0% 16 0%
Other o - ) ] 10.0% ) ) 8.0%

The following table sets aut the Group's tota” exposure ta foreign currency risk and the net exposure to fore gn currencies
of the net monetary 2ssets and “ab’lities

Swedish
Sterling Krona
2023 £'000 £'600

Receivables (due from brokers,

dividends and other income receivable} 10,534 51,105 2,811 837
Cash at bank and on deposit 8,226 20,620 4,299 2,926
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (10,000} - - -
Payahles (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (10,573) {1,22%) (1,474) -
FX forwards (118,592) 52,283 39,628 26,295
Total foreign currency exposure on net
manetary items (120,405) 122,787 45,264 30,058
Investments held &t fair value 459,832 330,586 88,592 69,662
Non-current agssets 903 - - -
Non-current hahilities (15,000) (43,933) - -
Totatl currency exposure 325,330 409,440 133,856 99,720
Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona QOther
2022 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Receivables {due from brokers,
dividends and other income receivable} 53812 27758 12,659 608
Cash at bank and on deposit 20,341 3.247 2,883 5638
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (35,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (05642} (111} {(1634) 13722
FX forwards (88,2807 (10,596} 59.877 42135
Total foreign currency exposdre on net
monetary items (74,669) 19,898 73,785 44 659
Investments held at fair vatue 614672 680,755 181,455 78534
Non-current assets 3803
Non-current liabilities {15.000) (42,253) - -
Total currency exposure 525906 658400 255240 1231493

Foreign currency sensitivity
Tneforocnng tablenusttaiesthe sens T o0
exchange rates ‘o sterl 1g Euro ang sten ng

tassumes the fol oy, G CIEM0eS N exIIENgE 2188
coster ng Iuto - - 15~ 2022 157

< Sering Swec s <rong - - 157202215
cosicring oter + - 15 2072 150,

o¥il TR Property Investrrent Trust
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Financial instruments

Foreign currency sensitivity continued

if ster ing had strengthenes against the currencies snown, this would have had the following effect:

Year ended March 2023

Swedish
Krona
£'000

Euro
£000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - profit after tax

Revenue return (4,080) (354} (370)
Capital return (53.496) (17,442)  (12,993)
Change to the profit after tax for

the year/sharehciders’ funds (57,576)  (17,796) (13,363)

2023

Change to total earnings per share (27.96)p

Year ended March 2022

Swedish

Euro Krona
£000 £000
(3.215) (399)
{72110) {33.256)
{(75325) {33,655}

If ster'ing had weakened against the currencies shown. this wou'd have the foilowing effect

Year ended March 2023

Swedish
Krona
£'000

Eure
£000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - profit after tax

Revenue return 5,392 446 475

Capital return N 72,392 23,608 17,586

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds . 77,784 24,054 18,061
2023

Change to total earnings per share 37.78p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect:

- the fair value of any investments in fixec interest securities:

- the fair value of the loan notes,

+ the level of iIncome ecervable from cagh at bank and on deposit,
* the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans, and
+ the prices of the underlying securities held inthe portfolios,

Management of the risk

Year ended March 2022

Swedish

Eurc Krona

£000 £000

4419 475

136656 _ 45017
141,075 45492

Other
£'000

(752
{16,053)

(16,305

2022

Other
£°000

314
477

5,085

2022

60.3%p

The possthre effects an fair vaiue ana cash fows that could anse as a result of changes ininterest “ates are ta<en nio
account when making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of

geanng and structure of 'ts debt portfolio s a key factor when assessing the investment in 2 property company

The Group has fixed anc has had variable rate borrowings durning the year. The interest rates on the loan notes s fixed,

detalls are set out ' note 1311 additon to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolyng ioan

facilities which carry vanable rates of interest based on tne currenc es drawn, plus a margin The unused faaillities tota!

£120,000,000 {2022 95,000,000}

Anrual Report & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11

¥e)
(@)

Financial instruments

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers bath the level of debt on tme balance sheet of the Group (1 e tne oan notes and any bank Icans
drawni and the see-througn’ gearing, 1aking 'nte account the assets ana ! sbilites of tne under ying Investmen:s, when
considering the investment portfolio. 7 nese gearing eve's are reporied reguiarly to the Boarc

The ma onty of the Group's nvestment portfono is non- nterest bearing As a esuli the Group's “imanciai assets are 1o:
directly subject to significant amounts of risk cue to fluctuat.ons in the prevail g leveis of market interest rates

Interest rate exposure

The expcsure at 31 March of financial assets and financ al habilbes to interest -ate risk 1s shown by reference to
- floating nteres: rates when tne Interest rate 1s due 1o be re-set

- fxed interest rates when the financial instrument I1s due to be repaic

“ne Group s exposure T¢ flnating interest rates on assets s £81,170000 (2022 ¢77242.000;

The Group's exposure 1o “ixed interest rates on ~abiines is £58.933.8500 (2022 £57,253,400)

Tne Group s exposure to floating inte-est rates on habitties 1s £16,C00,000 ;2022 £35,000,000)

‘nterest receivab e and fnance costs are ai the “ollowing rates:

+ nteres: recerved on cash balances, or paid on batk overdrafts, is at a margin ove” SONIA or i1s foreign currency
equivalent (2022: same)

+ Interest pa’d o1 borow.ngs under the murt-cutrency loan facilites, is at a ma-g 1 over SANIA orits fore g currency
equiva.ent for the type of loan (2022 same}

- Thefinance charges onthe £50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates o 1 92% and 3 59 respectively

The year enc amounts are not “egresentative of tne exposure to interest rates durng the year as the level of exposure
changes as vestmen:s are mace in f xeq interest securnties, borrowings ae drawn down anc repaid. and tne mix of
borrow ngs hetween oating and “ixed Interest rates changes

Interest rate sensitivity
A cnange of 25 oninterest rates a1 the reporting cate would have had tie “ollowang direct impacy

2023 2023 2022 2022

2% o 2% 2%

Increase Decrease [ncrease Decrease

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Change to shareholders' funds (198) 198 (243) 243
Change to total earnings

pershare (0.06)p _ 006p __ (oosip 0.08p

Tusievel of change s 101 representar ve of the year as a who'e, 5 1ce the exposure changes throughout Tne year.

This £s5es8ment coes 1ot Take 1o account the impact ¢f intetesT rale ©natges on tne makeT va ue of the qvestments
“ne Group qclds

11.4 Liquidity risk

LOCUGIEC vesTments i ne portfoin are sub ectto quicty T s< T ne BrouLp e ¢ one uncuotec mJestment at the year
end fsee 11.6 be ovi;

mcerian matket conc T ansg tne 1qu d oty of d rect property vestments may be ecuces AT 3T Maron 2002 80 12002 60
o the Croup's investmen: por’oac w35 he o n grect propertly nvesiments

A75T Marcn 2023, 62512022 24 - ofine Group s vestmentpoifol @ s el noostec secu” fes vh oh gre predom nantiy
p

c o repaced bulrenews 2E1n0t be
rEspEst ve

)

[l

emer Lt Entopalen terest Cosis
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11 Financial instrumernts

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within Within More than @
1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years S
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 S
©
Bank loans* 10,000 - - - - - 10,000 §
Loan notes - - 43,933 - - 15,000 58,933
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and {Gan notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,585 6,668
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536 -
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 - - - - - 2,953 2
Other creditors 141 - - - - - 141 g
23,012 1,382 45,174 539 539 16,585 87,231 ®
Within Within Within Within Within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2022 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 42253 - 15000 57253
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,241 539 2124 7.954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 5364 - - - - - 5,364
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 - - - - - 25523
Other creditors i 222 - - - - - 222

67,459 43494 539 17124 131,316

tOATROM It oyreney B 1y atthe ba ance aneet dale

s in iy 2 FAN RIS 1 e sheel agte

tOAEROM One vea The ty w

COAEAUT a by v DICBC WS renewe FAn2022 £niwesar o

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of tne portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set
aut in the mvestment Poticies on page 34 Allunguoted investments with a value over £1rn and direct property investments with a
value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase
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The Company maintaing regu ar contact with the banks providing revolving facilizies and renewal discussions commence
well ashead of facility renewal dates  n addition new opporturities for the provision of debt are explored on an ongoing

basis g
2

11.5 Credit risk S,

The failure of a counte-party to a transaction to discharge its obligat'ons under that transection could result in the Group suffering &

aloss. At the period end the largest countarparty ~sk. which the Group was exposec 10 was within Debtors and Cash and cash =

equivaenis where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £56,326 000 (2022 £55,101,000).

Management of the risk

‘nvestment transactions are carried out witn a number of brokers, whose credit standing 1s “eviewed periodically by the

Manager, and “rmi's are set on the amount tnat may be due from any one broker Cash at bank s only held with banks with

hgh guaity external credit ratings
g
g
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Financial instruments

Credit risk exposure

7 summary, compared to the amounts in the Balznce Sheet, the maximurm exposure 1o cred't -isk a7 31 March wes as follows

2023
EIELTY

Sheet
£000

Debtors 65,287
Cash and cash equivalenis 36,071
101,358

2023
Maximum
exposure
£'000
65,287
36,071

101,358

2022 2022
Balance Maximum
Sheet exposure
£000 £000
97,673 97673
32,109 32,109
129,782 129,782

Whe-e the rece.vables of the Group are exposed 1o credit risk, the reguirement for impa:rment is assessed at each year
end For all receivables, in the tahle zbove, 7o impairment has been ~ecognised in relat.on to expectied cred't 10sses as the
'mpact of these Iosses ' immatena as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 no impairment)

Offsetting disclosures

In order to define its contractua nghts betier eng 1o secure r'ghts that w | ne p the Group m tigate its counzerparty = sk,
the Group may enter nto an IS0A Master Agreement o7 similar agreement with s O7C dervative contract counterparties
AnISDA Master Agreement 1s an agreement between the Group and the cocunterparty that governs OTC cenivatives and
foreign exchange contracts ana typically contains, among other things, cal eteral posiing terms and netting provisions

N the event of 2 defaut and/or tlerminai’on event Unaer an 1ISDA Master Agreemen® the G-oup nas a contractual nghs

to offset with tne counterparty cetain denvatve financial nstruments payabes end o rece vakles witn coi ateral

neld and/or posted ana create one sing'e net payment in the event of gefault includ.ng the bankruptcy or insolvency

of tne counterparty Fowever, bankruptey or insolvency laws of & part cular junsdicton may 'mpose resinctions on o”

proh-bitions aga nst the nignt of offset in bankruptcy, nso.vency ar other events

The disclosures set out in the fo low.ng tables include “inancial assets and financial i'ah:lit'es that are subject to an

enfarceable master nett.ng arrangement o simila- agreement

AT 21 March 2073 and 2022 the Group's derivat ve assets and hiab  ties (hy type and counterpayl were as ‘oliows

Year ended 2023

Net amounts
of financial
assets/

{liabilities)
presented in
the Balance

Sheet
£'000

CFD positions.

Golaman Sachs 4,662
4,662

FX forward contracts

HSBC (386)
(386)

Cash collateral
pledged
£000

65,117
65,117

Year ended 2022

Net amaounts

of financial
assets/
liabilities
presented in
the Balance Cash collateral
Sheet pledged
£000 £000
7,657 45133
7657 45133
2,736
2,736

TR Property Investment Trus:
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Financial instruments

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the oan -otes waich are measured at amortised cost {re‘er to Note 13), the fa 1 values of the financia! assets
ana financial liahilities are either carriec in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet
amount Is a reasonable approximation of fair value {debtors, cred tors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and
prepayments)

The fair values of the listed nvestments are cerived from 1ne closing price or last traded price at which the securities are
quoted on the London Stock Exchange and other recogmised exchanges

The fair value of cantracts for difference are basec o1 the underiyving listed investment value as set out above a1d the
amoun? aue from or 1o the counterparty under tne contract is recorded as an asset or habilty accordingly, which 15
disciesec in Note 13 Yo the current year

The fair values of the propert es are derved from an open market (Red Book) valuation of the properties on tne Balance
Sheet date by an incependent firm of va.uers (Knight Frank)

There was one unguaoted investment at tne Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with g tota value of £2,573,030 (2022 Atrato,
£2,3417,000)

In tne Parent Company accounts there are investments of £36,336,000 (2022 £36,797,000) in unlisted subs diares which
are classified as level 3

The amounts of change in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the censolicated profit
or loss for the year was a ioss of £594,086,000 {2022 £265,399,000 gain).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capilal managernent object:ives are:

+ to ensure that 1t will be able 1o continue as a going concern, and

« to maximise the total return 1o 1ts equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and defx

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2023 consisted of caded up share capital, share prermiumm, capital redempuon
and revenue reserves totalling £968,346,000 (2022 £1,562,739,000). The Group does notregard the loan notes and loans
as permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including,
+ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Va:ue;
+ the Adjusted Total Assets shall a1 all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Barrowings, anc

+ tne Adjusted NAV shal not be less than £260,000,000.

12 Debtors

Annugl Report & Accounts 2023

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Securities and properties sold for

future settlement 2,739 2,739 33,138 33,138

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlerment - - 2,736 2,736

Tax recoverable 3,857 3,857 3,344 2,879

Prepayments and accrued income! 6,146 6,146 5,168 5,168

Amounts receivable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7657 7657

CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45133 45133

Other debtors 1,848 1,854 497 497
65,287 65,293 97,673 97,208

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 903 ) 903

v nzludes amourts niespect of rent free pernods

[ke)
[£e)
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current liabilities

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £'000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year.

Bank loans and overdrafts 10,000 10,000 35000 35,000

Securities and properties purchased

for future settlerment 8,536 8,536 5364 5364

Amounts due 1o subsidiaries - 36,336 - 35869

Amounts payable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 936 836 - -

Tax payable 702 700

Accruals and deferred income 2,953 2,925 25523 25523

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settiement 386 386

Cther creditcrs 141 131 222 183
23,654 59,950 56,109 101939

Non-current liabilities

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 43,933 43,933 42,253 42253
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2037 15,000 15,000 15000 15,000

58,933 58,933 57,253 57,253
Loan Notes

Ontne 10th February 2516, ne Company .ssued 1 92% Unsecured Euro 55,000,500 Loan Notes and 3 58+ Unsecuren
GBP 15000000 Loan Notes which are due to be redeermec at pa” on the 10th =ebruary 2026 anc 10t1 February 2031
respectively

The fairvaue of the 1 22% Euro Loan hotes was £43.979000 :20272: £47 345,000; anc the 3 59 GBP Loan Notes was
£14.338,000 (2022 £14.87C,000) at 31 March 2023

Jsgtne IFRE 13 fair value hiera-cny tne Loan Notes are deemed 10 be categorised within Leve 2
The'oan notes zg-eemen’ -ecuires compiarnce with g se: of f nancia covenants, mcuding

s Total Borrow ngs sha 1 not exceed 33% of Adustec et Asse Value,

< the Adjusted Totai Assels ghall &7 all times be ecuva ent o a minimum o 300~ of Total Borowengs, and
« the Ac:usted NAY snall ot be ‘ess tnan £260.000,C00

The Company anc Croup comp ec winihe terms of the loan notes agreemen: throughout the year

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

e CGroup 8 50 N80 UNSeCcuTec. IMUit-Cuency, e

F133.000000 a1 31 Marcn 2022 41031 Maran

e matur ty of tnege 2ot es 537040 nNcies T

oy

e} TR Property Investmen: Trust



13 Current and non-current liabilities
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £000 £'000
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253
Cash flows:
Repayment of bank |oans - (25,000) (25,000)
Non cash-flows:
Movement on foreign exchange ) 1,680 - 1,680
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 58,933 N 10,000 68,933

14 Called up share capital
Ordinary share capital

The balance classified as ordinary share capial includes the nominal value proceeds on the igsue of the Ordinary equity

share capital comprising ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, allotted

Number and fully paid £000
Ordinary shares of 25p
AT April 2022 - i _ 317,350,980 79338
At 31 March 2023 317,350,880 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 4%
Duning the year, the Company made no market purchases fo- canceliation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2022 none)

Since 31 March 2023 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and canceiled.

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account

The balance classified as share premium ncludes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds onissue of the
equity share capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve 1s used to recotd the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the
Company's own shares in order to maintain the Company's capita:.

16 Retained earnings

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £000 £'000

Investment holding (losses) / gains {99,771} (81,449) 412934 431,260
Realised capital reserves _ 828,859 802,597 918,057 861,806
Total capital reserves 729,088 721,148 1,330,991 1,323,066
Revenue reserve ) 72,787 80,727 65,277 73,202
Total retained earmings 801,875 801,875 1,396,268 1,396,268

“nerealised capita. reserves are d'stributable by way of a devidend to shareholders o utiiised for the repurchase of share

capital, net of any unrealised losses on investments heid The revenue reserve represents accumulated -evenue profiis
frorm which a7nual dividends are paid

Annual Report & Accounts 202%
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

17 Dividends

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the yvear ended 31 March 2022 of 9 20p

(2021. 9.00p} per share 29,196 28,562

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p

(2022: 5.30p) per share 17,931 16819
47,127 o 45381

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders
N the year:

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 9.85p

(2022:6.20p) per share 31,259 _ 29196

The fina’ dividenc has not been included as a hatility in these financia. statemen:s inaccordance with AS 1CG Events
after the report ng penod'.

Sel out below is the total d'v'aeend teo be paid in respect of the vear. Tnisis the basis on whch the regquirements of 5 1158
of the Corporaron Tax Azt 2010 are considered

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000

Intenim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p

(2022: 5.30p] per share 17,931 16879
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023
of 9.85p (2022: @ 20p) per share 31,259 ] 29,196

49,190 46015

18 Company statement of comprehensive income
As permtied by Section 408 of 1ne Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of
Comprehens ve ncome e netloss after taxation of the Company cealt w th nthe aczounts o7 the Group was
£947 26600012022 F281.687.000 profit

19 Net asset value per ordinary share
Netasselwa ue pe” Ordinary snare s based on tne net assets atinbutable 1o Ord'nary svares of £066 346,000 (2072
£1.5£2 732000, and on 2178350980 /2022 317350 980 Orgmary snares 1 gsue 't the year eng

20 Commitments and contingent liabilities

ATE1 Marcn 2025 e Group had 2ap ta commitments of £30,000:2022 £74000 but o cont mgent ek ves 2722 M

s
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21 Subsidiaries

Tne Group nas the following p- nc pal subsiciares, all of which are regisiered and operating 1 Scetland, Englana and

Wales,
Name
New England Properties Limited

The Colonnades Limited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited

The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited

Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eieven} Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen} Lirmited
Trust Unicon Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited

Theale) Limited

Number Twenty-Twa) Limited

(
Trust Union Properties {
Trust Union Properties (
Trust Union Properties {(Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Firance {1997} Pic

FGH Developments Limited

FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited

FGH {Newcastle} Limited

NEP (1994) Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England Investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England (Southern} Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Anrual Repert & Accourts 2023

Reg. Number

788895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2416015
2415843
2476017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416031
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SCe8799
1466619
77481
1385509
2613905
1447221
1787371
803940
2134624
1233998
2415911
2420097

Principal Activities

Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading cempany
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nan-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
MNon-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nan-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company

Non-trading company

investment holding and finance cormpany

investment holding and finance company

Non-trading company

MIIAIBAQ
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

21

Subsidiaries

The Company has provided a guarantee for each af these subsid-aries 1 orcer for them te take The exempt on from the
reguirement of an auck, 10 line with the recurements of S 4704 o the Companies Act 2006

Alithe subsidianes are fully ownec and all tne no d-ngs a e o dinary shares

All companies nave the registered office of Exchange House, Pimrose Street, London, ZC2A 2NY witm the exception of
FGH Deve opments 1Aberdeen: Limited wn ch s -eg.steced to 50 Loth.an Road, Fest val Square, Sdinburgh EH3 98Y

22 Related party transactions disclosures

Balances and transactions between the Company and Its subsigiar.es, which are reiated pariies, nave been eliminated on
consolidat 01 The balances are nterest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

2023 2022
£000 £000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 23,101 22619
TR Property Finance Limited 13,255 13270
New England Properties Lirmited . (20) (20}

36,336 , 35,859

Remuneration of key management personnel

The "emuneraton of tne Drectors, who are the key manzagement persennel of the Company “or each of The relevant
categories specified In AS 24 Re atec Party Cisclosures 1s proviced 1n the zud ted part of the Direzlors Remunerat on
Report on peges 63 and 65

Directors’ transactions

Direcio™s Tansactions in The Company's shates are consicered to be a related party transact on cue 10 the nature of their
roie as Directors.

Movemeants 1 Directors' sna-ehold. ngs are disclosed with 1 ine b rectors Remunerztion Reporion page 65

23 Subsequent events

s
(9]

[~

There are no ecents that have ocourrec subsequent to the financis: vea- end to report
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures
Alternative Performarce Measures are numernical
measdres of the Compary’s current or histericai
performarce, financial positior or cast flows, other
than tre fimancial measures defimed or specified ntne
Financia' Statemenrts

The measures defined be'ow are considered to be
Alternat ve Performance MeasLres They are viewed as
particu:arly relevant ard are frequently guoted for closed
ended ‘rvestmert companies

Total Return

The NAV Total Returr 1s ca.carated by reinvesting tre
dividerds in the assets of the Company from tne relevart
ex-dividend date Div'dends are deemed to be reinvested
or the ex-dividend date as this1s the protocol used

by the Compary's berchmark ard otherind.ces Tre
Share Price Tata Return is caloulated by re ryvesting the
dividerds in the shares of the Campany fror the relevant
ex-dividend date

Year to
31 March

2023

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 {pence} 4972 43 456.5
NAY/share price per share at

37 March 2023 {pence) 305.13 2790
Change in year {380%) (38 9%)
impact of dividends reinvested 25%  26%
Total Return fortiheriyear (35.5%) (36.3%)

Year to
31 March

2022

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 {pence} 417.97 392 50
MNAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence) 492.43 456 50
Change in year 17.8% 16.3%
Imipact of dividends reinvested . 36% 3.6%
Total Retarn for the year 21.4%  196%

o
la]

Ongoing Charges

The Ongoing Charges rat o has been calculated
accordance with the guidance issued by the AIC as the
total of invest~ent management fees and adrinistrat ve
expenses expressed as a percertage of the average

Net Asset Values througnout the year. The defimtion of
administrat ve expenses does ing ude property related
expenses, the Crgomg Charges calcu ation s showr
mclus ve and exclusive of these expensestoa low
corparison of the direct administrative and managemert
charges with the majarity of Irvestrent Trasts which do
not hold any d'rect property investments

Excluding
Including  Excluding  Performance
Year to Performance Performance Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2023 £600 £'000 £'000
Management
Fee (note 5) 6,240 6,240 6,240
Other
Administrative
expenses
(note &) 1,705 1,705 1,705
Property
Costs 714 714
Less: Non
recurring
EXPENSES o
8,659 8659 7545
Average Net
Assets 1184462 1,184 462 1,184,462
angoing
Charge 2023 0.73% 0.73% 0.67%

Excluding
Including Including Performance
Year to Performance Performance  Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2022 £000 £000 £'000
Management
Fee (note 5} 31140 6,651 6,651
QOther
Administrative
expenses
{note 6) 2,220 2,220 2,220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less Non
recurnng
expenses -
) 33692 9203 8,871
Average Net
Assets 1.536825 " 536,825 T 526,825
Ongoing
Charge 2022 2.59% 0.60% 0.58%

TR Property Invesurert Trust




Net Debt

Net debtis the tota’ value of loan notes, loans (inc uding
notional exposure to CFDs 2nd TRSs) less cash as a
proportion of net asset value

The net gearing has been caleulated as follows:

Group Group

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Loan notes 58,933 57253

Loans 10,000 35,000

CFD positions (notional exposure} 130,906 144642

less Cash (36,071} (32,109)
Less. Cash collateral (included within

'Other debtors’in Note 12) {45099} (45133

o 118,689 159&@3_

Egurity shareholders” funds 968,346 1,562,739

Net gearing 12.3% 10.2%

The Cngoing Charges ratio provided in the Company’s
Key information Document is calculated in line with
ime PRIIPs regulations which is different to the AIC
methodoicgy above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager
In meeting the Company’s objective against a number
of Key Performarce Indicators, wh'ch are considered to
be Alternative Performance Measures Details of these
ca.culations are set out above.

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This is caicuiated by taking the final dividend ' in the time
series, divided by the initia dividend:® in the period, raised
to the power of 1 divided by the number of years  1nthe
series,

5 year period:

c 5

a 15.50 ~
= 4.9%

P W =F ;

12.20p

Premium/(Discount)

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
mvestment trust company s higher or lower than tne Net
Asset Va'ue per share expressed as a percentage of ine

NAY per snare. If the share price 1s lower than the NAY per
share, the shares are trad'ng at a d'scount and if the share

price 1s fugher than the NAV per share the snares are
tracing at a premium

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Value per share {a} 305.13 48243
Share price per share (by 27900 45650
Premium orf (Discount} (c= (b-a)/a (c}  (88%) _ (7.3%)

Annuat Report & Accounts 2022

An average premium or d'scount is calculated by taking
the sdmof each dai y premium and discount for the
period under review, divided by the number of days in the
given period

2.0 Glossary of terms and
definitions AIFMD

The Atternative Fund Managers Directive 1s Earopean
legislation which created a Earopean wide framewaork
for requlating the managers of "alternative investment
funds” (AlFs) It s designed to reguiate any fund which
1s not a UCITS (Undertakings for Collect've Investment
in Transferable Securities) fund and which 1s managed
or marketed in the EU.

AlC

The Association of Investment Companies, the
representat.ve body for closed ended investment
companies.

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance or financial
position ather than a finarcial measare defined or
specified in the accounting staterments

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulations a short, consumer friendly
Key Information Document s required setting out the
key features, nisks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and
is Intended to assist investors to better understand the
Trust and make comparisons between Trusts

Tre document includes estimates of investment
performance under a number of scenarios These
calcdlations are presciibed by the regulatior and are
based purely onrecent historical data It 's important
for investors to note that there is no judgement applied
and these do not in any way refiect the Board or
Manager's views.

Key Performance Indicator (KPF)

A KPlis a guantifiab e measure that evaluates how
successful the trust 's in meeting 11s object ves The
Company's KPls are discussed on pages 35 and 36,

MiFID

The Markets in Financiar Instruments Directive 1s the EU
legislation tnat regulates firms who prov.de services 1o
clients inked to "finarcial instrumerts” (shares, bonds,
units in collective mvestment schemes and derivatives)
and the venues where those mstruments are tiaded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets ess liabilities (inciuding
borrowirgs) divided by the ~umber of shares in 1ssue
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
centinued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
directive (AIFMD")

Ingecardarce with the AIFMD infarmation ir relation
to the Company's leverage and remurcration of the
Company's AlFM, Columbia Threadreedle Investment
Bus'ness Limited, is required 1o be made available to
investors Detaned regulatory disclosdres inc'udirg
those on the AlFM's remuneration policy ate available or
the Columbia Threadneedle website or from Columbia
Threadneedle on request The ~umerical remunerat o1
disclosures inrelation to te AIFM's first relevant
accounting period wil be made avalab.e in due course

Leverage

Under the AIFM Directive, 1t 18 necessary for AlFs
to disclose their everage in accordarce with
prescr bed calculations

Altnough leverage 1s often used as arotrer term for
gearing, urder the AIFMD everage :s specifically defined
Two types of ‘everage calculations ale defined, the gross
and commitrert methods Tnese methads summarly
express feverage as a ratio of tre exposure of te AIF
agamnst its ret asset value, Exposare typicaly nc.udes
debt the vaiue of any physical properties subject to
mortgage, non-stering cdrrency, equity or cuirency
hedging at absclute rotional va ues {ever those held
pure y forrsk reductior purposes, such as farward
foreign excnarge contracts held for currency redgirg)
ard derivative expasare (corverted irto the eqoivalert
underiying pestions) The comrmmitment method nets
off dervat ve instruments, wn le tre gross rethod
aggregates then

The table beiow sets out the corrent maximum permitted
it and the actual .eve of leverage for the Company as
at 31 March 2023

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 138% 130%

The everage ' mits are set by the AIFM and approved
by tre Boardardare » rewitntrer missetout in e
Companys Articles of Assocatcr

Th s s10ud ot be co~fused win the gear =g set out
tne F rancalHghights weer s 2 coated Lnder
tretrad tona ~etrod set cut by tre Assac at o of
I~vestert Corpares The AR S a soreds red o
copy wetntre gearimg para~eters set by toe Beard -
re'at on to botrrowings

TR Property Ireestment Trust
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents, to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Notice 1s heteby given trat the Annual Gereral Meeting
of TR Property Investment Trust plc {the 'Company’) will
be reld at the Royai Automobile Club, 89/31 Pah Mall,
London SW1Y SHS on Thursday 26 July 2023 at 230 prr
far the purpose of transactng the following business:

To consider and, If thought fit, pass the following
Resolutions, of which Resowutions 110 12 will be
proposed as Ordinary Resolutions a1d Resolitions 13
and 14 skal be proposed as Special Resolut.ons:

1 Toreceive the Report of tre Directors and the
Audited Accourts for tre year ended 31 March 2023,

2 Toapprove the Directors’ Remureration Policy.
3 Toapprove the Directors’ Remurerat'on Report
{excludirg the Directors” Remurerat on Po oyl for

the year erded 31 March 2023

4  Todeciareafinra dvdendof .85p per Ordinary
share

o

To re-elect Kate Boisover as a Director
& Tore-eec!Sarar-care Curt's asaDrector

7 Tore-eect Tim Gl barks asa Director

[0 8]

Tore-e'ect Buscla Scde rde as a D rector,

el

Tore-e'ect Andrew Vaughar as a Drector

16 Tore-appo nt KPMG LLF (the Audtor’ras Al dtor
of tre Corparvic ~oid ofice urt trecerciugscnof
the next Aneual General Meetng of tre Corpary

11 Toautbonse tme Drectorsio deter~ e tre
re~uneration of the ALditor

Special business

Ordinary reselution

12 THAT, -~ scbsttution for a* suck ex:stirg authorities,
the Directors be generally and uncondiiona'y
authonsed pursJant to and in accordance witn
Sectior 557 of the Companies Act 2006 (tne ‘Act’)
to exerc se all the powers of the Comipany to alot
shares ir the Company and to grant rignts to
subscribe for, or to convert ary secdrity nto, shares
inthe Company up to a nominal va.ue of £26 181,455
{being approximately 33% of the tota. 1ssued share
capita' of the Compary as at the latest practicab'e
date priorto publ cat on of this Notice) prov.ded that
this authority skall expire at the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting of the Company in 2024
{or, if earlier, at the close of business on 19 Cetober
2024]). save that the Corpany shail be entitied to
make offers or agreements before the expiry of this
authority which wou'd or might require snares to
be allotted or rights to be granted after such expiry
and the Directors shah be entit ed to a' .ot shares
and grant nghts pursvant to any such offers or
agreements as if tis authority had not expired

Special resolutions

13 THAT, Ir substitution for all sucn existing autrorties
and subject to the passing of Resoiution 12 set
out above, the Directors be emrpowered pursaanrt
to Sect on 570 ard Section 573 of the Act to allot
equity secur t.es {as defined in Sector 560 of the
Act) for cash pursaant totre atthorty corferred by
Resoluticn 12 sbove and/or to se!' snares held by tne
Compary as treas.ry shares for casn as if Section
561 of the Act d'd not appiy to ary such gliotment or
sale provided that this power shait be ' mited:

(a) tctreallotmert of equ ty secdrities ard sale
of treasury srares for cash ir cor-ectior wit~
ar offer of, or invitatior to apply for, equ'ty
securtes

(") tosharenoders inproportion {as rearly
as may be pract cable) to therex sting
1oldngs, a7d

{1 toroiders of otner equ ty securt €s as
reqLred by the nig~ts of trose securt es, or
as the Board otherwise considers necessary

ard sotratt~e Board rmay mpose ary mits of
restrict c~s ard ~ake ary arrargeerts woicr
COTS Qers ECessary or appropr ate to deat witn
treasury srares, fractignal ert tlerents, recorg
dates, egal, regu atory or pract car preblers ~ or
Lnder tre aws of, any terrtory crary otber Tatter
ard

TR Property Insesimeny Trust



{b} mthe case of the authority granted under
Reso-wut-on 12 and/or in the case of any sale
of treasury snares far casn, to the allotment
(otherwise than Lrder paragraph (1) above)
of equ.ty securities or sale of treasury shares
up to a nominal amourt of £3966.887 (be ng
approximately 5% of the total 1ssued snare
capital of the Company as at the latest
practicable date pror to pub.’cat.on of the notice
of meetirg),
the power ¢ ven by this resolution shall expire upor
the expiry of the aLthorty conferred by Resolution 12
above, save that tne Company shall be entitled to
make offers or agreements before exp ry of suck
power which would or might require equity securities
tc be atiotted after such expiry and tne Directors
shall be entitled to allot equity securities pursuant
to any such offer or agreement as f the power
corferred hereby had not expired

14 THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised in accordance with
Sect-on 701 of the Act to make ore or more market
purchases (within the meaning of Section 693(4) of
the Act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each in the capita’
of the Company on such terms and ir such manner
as the Directors may from time to time determine
provided that:

(@) the maximum number of Ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be purchased shall be 14 99% of
the Company’s Ordinary snares in .$sue at the
date of the Annual General Meeting {equivalent
to 47 570,917 Ordinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2023, the ‘atest practicable date prior 1o
publication of this Notice);

(b the maximum pr.ce {exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for any such share shall not
be more than the higher of

(1) 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an Ordinary share as taken
from the London Stock Excnarge Dally
Official List far the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which
the Company agrees to buy the shares
concerned, ard

(1) tne higher of the price of the last
irdependent trade and the tighest carrent
independent bid for an Ordinary share in tne
Company on the trad’ng venue where the
purchase is carned out at the relevant tme,
ard

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

{c) the mmimum price (exclusive of expenses) which
may be pad forar Ordinary share srall be 25p,
being the nominal value per Ordinary share,

tne adthonty nereby conferred shall expire at

tne conclusion of the Annual General Meet:ing of
t1e Company in 2024 (o1, if earlier, at the close

of busiress on 19 Cotober 2024), save thal the
Company sna | be ertitled to enter into a contract
to purchase Ordinary shares which will, or may, be
completed or executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Crdinary shares pursuanrt to such contract as f the
power conferred herehby had "ot expired

Q) Lattan

gy Order of the Board
Forard or benalf of
Columbia Thread-eed e
‘rvestrent Busress Lir ted
Company Secretary

12 June 2023

Registered Office

Company registered in England and Wales
Company number. 84492

13 Woodstock Street

London W1C 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to
register their intention as soon as practicable by email
to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@columbiathreadneedle.com.

Sharehowders who are riot able or do not wisr to attend
the meetingin persor will be abe 1o watch a iive webcast
of the meetirg This wiliinclude the forma, business of
tne meeting, the Manager's presentation and questions
and answers The webcast will not erahle sharenolders 1o
participate i the meeting or to vole. However snarerolders
will e invited to subrmit questions through our website,

by 12.00 ngon on Tuesday 18 July 2023 Questiors

may be sent [o the folowng email address. trpitagrmiw
coiumbiathreadneedle com. Questions of a very similar
nature may be grouped together to ersure the orderly
runrirg of the AGM,

1 Amemberentited to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notce is ertitled to appomt one
of More proxies 1o exercise ail or any of the nghts of the
member 1o altend, speak and vote o mis or ner place

Sharehoiders are strongly encouraged to subrrit ther
proxy vole i advance of the meeting and 1¢ appont
the Chairmrar of the meeting as ther proxy, ratner than
any other nared person who may not be perm-tted to
attend the AGM 1 the event of restrictions or imits on
attendance, A proxy need rot be a sharenc'der of tre
Company. Te appoirt more than ore proxy. the proxy
form should be piotocopied and the name of the proxy
tc be appoirted ‘ndicated o1 each proxy form together
witn the namber of shares that sucr proxy 1S appointed
inrespect of Completion and subrrission of a proxy
instructior wi: act preclude a member from attendirg
andvoling rperson at the AGM (subject to any
restrictiors on physica. atterdance).

To be vald any proxy form or otrer instrument
appoItting a proxy must be returned by post by cournier
or by ~and tc the Corpany's Reqistrars, Computershare
Imvestor Services PLC, Tre Pavilons, Bndgwater Road,
Bristor BS99 62Y or alterrative'y, by gomg to www
eproxyappointrrent. cor and fo owirg the nstrections
provided A proxies must be apponted by no ‘ater tnan
48 novrs beforetretme of tre AGMM In the case of
jait nolders wrere more thar ore of the joint nalders
pUrports to apport a proxy o0y Ire appoirtment
sJbrr tted by tne most serior e der w! be accepted
Serority s deter—ired by the order v whieh the ~aes
of trejont ~oiders appear in the Cormpany s Reg ster of
Merrbers - respect of the jontrod rgitre first ma~ed
benrgdeered the rost senor;

2 Irordertobeab'etoatterd and vote at t-e AGM cr
any adjourred reet ng (ad a so for the purpose of
caic.at ng now Tany voles a perser may cast @

n

person mLst have his or her rame ertered on the
Companys Register of Members by 2.30 pmon 18
Juiy 2023 {or 6 00 pn or the date two days before
any adjourned meeling) Changes to entnes on

the Register of Members after th s time shal be
disregarded in deterrining the rignts of any personto
attend or vote at the meeting

Voting will be conducted on a po'l at tne meetirg On
a pol' vote every shareholder witl throagh their proxy
have onevate for every Ordinary snare of whick be or
shels the holder

Sharehaders should note that it1s possible that,
pLrsuant to requests made by shareholders of the
Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Comrpany
Tay be required to publisk or a website a statement
setting odtany matter relating ta: (1) the audit of the
Company’s accounts (including the Avditor s Report
ard the conduct of the aud.t) that are to be laid before
the AGM ar (n) any c rcumstance cornected wth

an auditor of the Company ceasing tc hoid office
snce the previous meeting at wnich annual accounts
and repaorts were faid :n accordance w'th Section

437 of the Act. The Compary Mmay not rega retre
skareholders requesting any such webste pubication
to pay its expenses 'n complying witn Sectiors 527 or
578 of the of the Act Where the Company ¢ requ.red
tc place a staterient on a webgte under Sectior

527 of the Act it rust forward the statement to

the Companys audtor rot ater than the time when

It makes the statemenrt availab e on the webste

The busimess whick may be dea't with at tre AGM
inc.wdes any statement that the Company has been
required under Sector 527 of the Act to publisn o a
webs.te

Any corporat'er which is a member of the Cempany
can appo.nt one or more corporate representatives
whp Tay exercise o~ ts benafail of tspowersasa
~errber provided that thev do ~ot do sc imrelaticr to
the sa™e srares

The ng~t1o appo it & proxy does notappiy 1 perso™s
wNose shares are beid on the’r behalf by ancther
perscn ard who nave been rominaled to rece ve
cornen cat or from the Compary .~ accordance
wtn Secto 146 of tne Act ( Noinated Persors
Normragted Persons ™ay nave arght ander an
agreermert wit~ t-e registered s~aretoider wro Fods
srares o trer herafro be apboted (or to rave
SCTe0Te € Se appo Nted as a praxy Alterratvey f
~grnated persens do ot nave suchangot ordo
rotvi st 1o exerc se L iney ray nave arght Lnder
sLen ar agregmerttc g ve instructons to the persen
Fodimgthe srares as o tne exercise of votng ngnts

"R Property Ir sestment Trust



& CREST rrembers who wish to appont a proxy
or proxies througn the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service may do so for the AGM to
be held on 20 July 2023 and ary adjoumment(s)
thereof by us:ng the procedures described in the
CREST Marual CREST personal imembers or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who nave appointed a voling service
provider should refer to their CREST sponsors or
voting service provider(s), who wiil be able to take
the appropriate action on ther behalf in order for a
proxy appointmenrt or mstruction made by means of
CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message
(@ CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly
authenticated in accordance with Earoclear UK &
Ireland Limited's specificaticns and must cortan
tre informat,on reguired for such instructions, as
described in the CREST Manual. The message must
be transmtted sc as tc be received by the Company’s
agent, Computershare Invesior Services PLC {CREST
Participant |D: 3RAS0), no later than 48 hours before
the time appointed for the meeting For this purpose,
the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as
determined by the time stamp applied to the message
Dy the CREST Application Host) from which the
Company's agent I1s able to retrieve the message by
enguiry to CREST i the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST members and, where applicable, therr
CREST sponsor or voting service provider should
note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not
make avaiiable special procedures ir CREST for any
particular messages.

Normal systermn timings and “imitatiors w'l: therefore
appy Ir relation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It ‘s the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take {or, if the CREST member
is @ CREST personal member or sponscred member
or has appointed a voting service provider to procure
that hus or her CREST sponsor or voting service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary

to ensure that a message Is transmitted by means
of the CREST syster by any partcular time. Inthis
connection, CREST rembers and, where appiicable,
treir CREST sponsor or vot ng service provider

are referred in particLlar to those sections of the
CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of
tre CREST system ard timings. The Company may
treat asinvalid a CREST Proxy Instruction nthe
circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Urcertificated Secunties Regulatiors 2001,

7 Ary member attend ng the meeting (subject to any
restrictions in place at the time of the meeting) has
the right 10 ask guestions The Company must cause
10 be answered any such questian relating to the

Annual Resort & Accounts 2023

10

11

12

busiriess being dealt with at the meeting but no such
answer need be g.ven f. {a) to do sc would irterfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve
the disciosure of confident al information; (b) the
answer has already been given on a website in the form
of ar answer to a question, or (¢) it is undesirable in

the interests of the Company or the good order of the
meeting that the question be answered. Questions of a
very similar nature may be grouped togetner to ersure
the orderly running of the AGM.

Unacceptable behaviour on the part of any sharenolder
attending the AGM wil: not be tolerated and the

ha.rman has the right to dea’ with sucn behaviour as
appropriate.

Under section 338 and section 3384 of the Act,
members meeting the threshold requirements in those
sections have the right to reguire the Company (i) to
give, 1o members of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution whign

may properly be moved and is ntended t¢ be moved

at the meeting and/or (1} to include 1N the business to
be dealt with at the meeting any matter {(other than a
proposed resclution) which may be properly inciuded in
the business. A resolution may properly be moved of @
matter may properly be inciuded in the business unless
{a) (in the case of a resolution orly) it would, if passed,
be inreffective (whether by reason of inconsistency
with any enactment or the company's constitution or
otherwise), (b) it is defamatory of any person, or (¢) 1

is frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may bein

nard copy form or in electronic form, must identify the
resoution of which notice 15 to be given or the matter
to be ncluded in the busness, must be authorised by
the person or persons making it, must be received by
the company not later than six clear weeks before the
meeting, and (ir the case of a matter 1o be Included

In the business only) must be accompanied by a
staterent setting out the grounds for the reguest.

As at 3C May 2023 (being the latest practicable day prior
to publication of this Notice), the issued share capital

of the Company was 317 350 980 Ordinary shares of
25p each and no ordnary shares were held in treasury
Therefore, the total number of voting nghts ir the
Company at 30 May 2023 was 317,350,980

The terms of reference of the Audit Commutiee, the
Management Ergagernent Committee, the Nom:nation
Committee and Lhe Directors’ Letters of Appointment
will be available for imnspection for at least 15 mmutes
prior to and during the Company's AGM.

You may not use any electronic address provided
either in this Notice or any related documents to
communicate for any purposes other than those
expressly stated.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 Trne Company may process personai data of attendees

at the Arnval General Meeting. This may include
webcasts, plrotos, recording and audio and video links,
as well as other forms of perscnai data The Company
shall process such perscnal data i accordance with its

privacy pohcy wimich car found at www trproperty cormy

leya
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

These are the resclutions which deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approval
of the Diuectors’ Remuneration Policy, the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
declaration of the final dividerd

The vole 1o approve the Remuneration Policy must
be put to shareho'ders every three years, The vote
to approve the Remuneratior Report 15 advisory
only and wil not require the Company to alter any
arrangerents detailed in tne report should the
resout’on not be passed

Trne Board is proposing a fina, dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2023 of 9 85p per Ordinary share

If approved at the AGM, the Companry will pay the
drvidend or 1 August 2023 to those sharehalders on
the Company's Register of Members at the close

of business on 30 June 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9: Re-election of
Directors

These resolutions deal witn tne re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sarah-Jane Curtis, Tim Gillbanks, Busola
Sodeinde and Andrew Vaughan In accordance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, a!l Directors
retire on an annual bas's and have confirmed that
they will offer themsewes far re-election, with the
exception of David Watson who will retire at the
conclus’on of the AGM

A performance evaluation 1as been completed and
the Board has determined that each of the Directors
continues o be effective and demonstrates therr
cammitment to their role,

Their biographical details, which are set out on pages
44 and 45, demonstrate that the Board nas the
appropriate balance of skills, experience,
mdeperdence and knowledge to lead the Company
Accordingly, the Board unanimously recommends
their re-e'ection.

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

These deal with the reappoirtirent of tne Auditor,
KPMG LLE and the authonsation for tne Directors to
determine tieir rerureraticn

Annual Report & Aczounts 20232

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

The Board considers it appropriate that an adthority
be granted to aliot shares in the capital of the
Compary up to a maximum neminal amount of
£26187,4450s stated in tre resclution (representing
approx'mately ore third of the Company's issued
share capital as at 30 May 2023, being the latest
practical date pror to pub'ication of this Notice of
the meeting). As at 30 May 2023 the Company does
not ho'd any shares in treasury.

The Directors have no presert intention of exercising
this autnority and would arly expect to use the
authonty if shares could be issued at, orata
premidm to, the Net Asset Vailue per share

This authority will exprre at the earlier of the
conclusicn of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company tc be hed 1in 2024 and ciose of business
on 19 October 2024,

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

This Resclution would give the Directors the
authority to aliot shares {(or sell any shares which

the Company elects to hold in treasury) for cash
without first offering ther to existing shareholders in
proporion to their existing shareholdings.

This authority would be limited to allotments

or sales ir connection with pre-emptve offers

and offers to nolders of other equity securities if
required by the rights of those shares or as the
board otherwise considers necessary. or otherwise
Jp 1o an aggregate nomina amount of £3,966,887.
This aggregate nominal amount represents 5% of
the total issued share capita of the Company as

at 30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior

to publicatior of this Notice. If the powers sought
by Resclution 13 are used inrelation to a non-pre-
errptive offer. the Directors confirm their irtention
to follow the shareholder protections in paragraph 1
of Part 2B of the Pre-einpticn Group’s Statement of
Principles published in Novermhber 2022

Tris authonty will expire at the earlier of the
conciasion of the Anrual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2024 and close of business
o118 October 2074
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

Attre AGM held in 2022, a spec al resolut on was
passed wh ch gave the Directors authorty, until the
conclysion of the AGM i 2023, to make market
purchases of tre Company's cwr 'ssued srares Lp to
a maximum of 14 99% of the 1ssLed share capital

The Board is proposmg trat they shoud be gven
renewed authornty to purchase the Company's
Ordirary shares in the market It believes that to make
sucn purchases in tre market at approptiate times and
prices is a suitable method of enhancing shareho'der
vatue. Tre Compary would, withim guidel res set

from tirre to time by the Board, rrake either a single
purchase or a series of plLrchases, when market
conditions are suable with tne aim of maxim s ng thre
benefits to sharenclders

Where purcnases are made at prices below the
prevailling Net Asset Value per share, this wil' ennance
the Net Asset Value for the rerrain ng sharehcolders
Therefore pJrchases would on'y be made at prces
below Net Asset Va.ce The Board corsiders trat it
wil be most advantageoJds to srarehoiders for the
Corrpany to be abie to make such purchases as and
when it cons-ders the t.ming 1o be favourabie and
trerefore does not propose to set a timetabie for

mak ng ary such purchases

Tne Cornpanies thcgusition of Own Shares) (Treasary
Shares) Regu'at'ars 2003 enable companies in the

Un ted K ngdom to hold in treasury any of theirr own
shares they nave pJrchased wir a view to possibie
resale at a foture date, rather thar cancelling tnem

If the Compary does re puichase any cf 11s shares,
te Directars do not currentiy interd to nord any of

the srares re-purchased ir treasury. Tre shares so
re-purcrased w'' continee to be canceed.

TreLstrgRuies of the F rancal Comduct Actrorty
it the maxim L proe (exc usive of expenses) wh o
~ay be paid for any sucr share it sha: rot be rore
trar tne higner of

105% of the average of tre middle rarket
quotatons for a- Ord rary srare as taker flo™
tre Londor. Stock Exchange Dal'y Officia L st for
tre five bus ~ess days mmred ately preced g the
date cr wrig the Corpary agrees 1o by shares
corcerted. and

tre nigher of the proe of the ast ~deperde—t
trade a~d 1re migrest cotrent rdependent b d for
ar Ord rary share intre Comrpary ontretradryg
ven.e where the purchase s carred out

The minirrum price to be paid wili be 25p per
Ord.nary share ibeng tne nomrnal vaide) The Listing
RuJles alsoiim i a 1sted company 1o purchases of
shares representing up to 15% of s 1ssued share
capital ir the market pursuant to a gereral authonty
sdch asthis Fortnig reason, tne Company 1s Limiing
is authority to make such purchases to 14 99% of
the Carrpany's Crdirary shares in ssde at the date
of the AGM tnis s equivalent to 47 570,911 Grdinary
shares of 25p each (nominal value £11,892,727)

at 30 May 2023 the latest practicab'e date prior {o
publication this Notice. Tne authority wi't last unt.
the conclugion of the Annua' Gereral Meeting of the
Comrpany tobe reld 11 2024 or, if earlier at the close
of business or 19 Gctaber 2024,

Recommendation

The Board peneves that the resolutions contained
ir this Notice of Anrca. Genera: Meeting are in tne
best irterests of tre Company and shiareroiders as
awnole and recommends that you vote in favour
of themr as your Directors interd to do niespect of
ther ewn beneficial snarencldings

TR PFroperty inestmert Trust
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Directors and other information

Directors

L wWatsen (Charran)
K Bolsover

S-JCurt's

T Gillbanks

B Sodeinde
Avaughan

Registered office
12 vwoodstock Street

LondonW1C 2AG

Registered number

Registered as an investment corrpany In

England anc Waies No 84492

AJFM and Company Secretary

Co'umbya Threadneedle Irvestment

Business Limitec
Exchange House
Primrose Sireet
Londor EC2ZA 2NY

Please coract Jonathar Latter for
Company Secretar.al and acministra

matters

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Capital LLP authorised
andregulated oy the Finanaia’ Corduc?

Adthonty

13 Woodstock Street
London W™ C 2AG
Telephone CZU 35306575

Fund Manager
M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations
o LEN ot ACA

Deputy Fund Manager
A Lhonnedr

Direct Property Manager
GRCayI/RICS

a.
The Association of
Investment Companies

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLT
The Paviions, Brdgwater Roac

dristol B89 647

Teweohone: 0370 707 1355

Sharekolders who hold ther sharesin
certificatea form car check their holdings
withthe Reqistrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, via voww investorcentre.co Juk
Please note that 1o gainaccess to your detalls
on the Computershare site you will needhe
holder reference number stated or the o left
hand corner of your share certificate

Auditor
KPMGLLP

15 Canada SGuare
London E14 5GL

Stockbrokers

Panmure Gordon i LK) Limited,
Cre New Change

Lordor ECAM GAF

stifel Micolaus Europe Limited
" 53 Cheapside
Lordar EC2V6ET

Solicitors
S'aughter and May
Jre Suntirl Row
Lonaon ECTY 8YY

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

BNP Pannas Securities Services
10 Harewood Avende

Lonzor N~ 644

Website
ST (elgetolIatiRelole 0

Tax advisers
Pricewaterheas
Certre q

Newcast

eCoopers LL™
> SO ‘r' Orcharc Sreet

Jare
Jnor TwreSET 387

TP Propertyir

estment

TTust



General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
Tre half vear results are announced in late November

The ful year resuits are annownced i early wune.

Annual general meeting
The AGM is held 1~ London in July.

Dividend payment dates

Dividends are dsualy paid onthe Crdinary shares
as fallows:

(nternm January
F:nal: August

Dividend payments

Diidends can be paid to shareholders by means of
BACS (Bankers' ALtomated Clearing Serv ces), mandate
forms for this purpese are available from the Registrar.
Alternatively, sharenolders can write to the Registrar
{the address 15 given on page 114 of this report) to give
theirinstructions, these must include the bank account
number, the bank account title and the sart code of the
bank to wnich payments are 10 be made

Dividend re-investment plan ('DRIP’)

TR Property Investment Trust plc offers shareholders the
opportunity to purchase furtner shares in the Company
through the DRIP Please note that following Brexit
snalerolders in the Ecropean Ecanomic Area {EEA)

are no longer abie to participate in the DRIP DRIP forms
may be obtained from Computershare Investor Serv.ces
PLC tnrough their secure website www investorcentre,
co uk, or or G370 707 1694 Charges apply, dealing
commession of O 75% (subject to a minimum of £2.50)
Government stamp duty of 0 5% also apples

Share price listings

The estimated Net Asset Value and market price of the
Company's Ordinary shares, as we:' as the discount/
prerrum, are publisned daily in The Financial Times.
They can also be found on the Campany's website at
www. Irproperty.com

Share price information
ISIN GBD0D09064007

SEDOL 0906406

B.oomberg

TRY LN Reuters

TRY L

Datastrear TRY

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Benchmark

Details of the bercnmark are given in the Shiategic
Report on page 27 of this Annual Report ard Accounts
Thne berchmark index s pubiusned daily and can

be found on Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Tota
Return Index in sterling
Blocomberg TRORAG Index

Disability Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other
documents issued by the Company are avarable from
the Company Secretary If needed, copies can be made
avalable in a variety of formats, including Braille, audio
tape or larger type as appropriate

You can cortact the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, wh.ch has installed textphones to allow
speech and hearing impaired peopie who have therr own
textphore to contact them directly, without the need
for an irtermediate operator, by dialling 0870 702 0005
Specially trained operators are available during normal
business hours to answer queries via this service,
Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’
operator (provided by the Royal Nationar institute for
Deaf People} you should diat 18001 followed by the
number you wish to dial.
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General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

where not ficat:on has been provided ~ advance,
the Company wi.' arrange for copres of sharenolder
communicatiors to be provided to the aperators of
nominee accounts Nominee investors may attend
general meetings and speak at meet ngs when
invited to do sc by the Chairmar

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a digpasarof ali or part of a shareboider’s
holding of Ordinary shares, the impact or the
shareholder’s capital gains tax base cost of the
conversior to Sig-ma shares .n 2007 and the
redesigration to Ordinary shares in 2012 should
be cans dered

In respect of the corversion to Sigma r 2007,
agreement was reached with HM Revenue &
Customs (HMRC) to base the apportionnenrt of
the capital gairs tax base cost an the proportion
of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder into Sigra snares on 25 July 2007

Therefore if an Ordinary shareholder corverted 20%
of treir exist ng Qrd rary shares into Signa shares
o 25 Juy 2007, the capitai ga-s tax base cost of
the new S gma shares acquied wou d be equaito
20% of the originar capital gains tax base cost of
tne Ordinary shares that they held pre-conversion
The base cost of their rema n'rg Folding of Ordirary
shares wod d then be 8G% of tne or'gina cap tal

ga nstax base cost of tre'r Oid'rary shares held
pre-conversion.

As part of tne re-designat or of tne Sigma shares
into Ordinary shares n Decerrber 2012 a further
shareroider's agreement wasreached with HMRC
t~ata srarehclders capital ga rs tax base cost
therrew Crdimary srares shou d be equ valert

to ther capital ga'rs base cost rire pre-exist Ng
Sgrrasraresi. e trer capital ga s base cost urder
tre exist rg agreement «f applicab'e)

If ~do.btastotrecorseguerces of th s agreerent
with HIVIRC sharenio ders shouid comsu tw trther
owr profess ora advsors

TR Property Irvestmerit Trust



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

Tne Company's shares are isled and traded on the
London Stock Exchange Investors may purchase
shares through their stockiioker, bank or olner financia!
rtermediary

Holding shares in certificated form

Irvestors may hoid ther nvestmenrtin certificated form
QOurregstrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
which enables investors to buy and sell shares quickiy
and easily onine without a broker or the need to open a
trading account. Alternatively the Investor Centre allows
nvestors to manage portfolies quickly and securely,
Lpdate detalls and view balances without anrual
charges. Further details are avallable by contacting
Cerrputershare or 0370 7C7 1355 or visit

www Investarcentre co uk.

The Company offers shareholders the opportunity

to purchase further snares In the company through

the Div'dend Re-investment Plan {DRIP’) through the
registrar, Computershare. Shareholders can obtain
furtrer information or the DRIP through their secure
website www investorcentre co uk, or by phoning 0370
707 1694, Charges do appy Please note that toc gamn
access to your details or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you wiil need the holder reference
number stated on the top eft hand correr of your share
certificate

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

A number of banks and wealth managaimrent
organisations provide Savings Schemes and I5As
through which UK clients can invest in the Company

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge deaiing
and otner fees for cperating the accounts, and investors
shou'd read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit their
planned investment profl.e Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between provider and product,
Where dealing charges apply, in some cases these are
applied as a percentage of furds invested and others as
aflat crarge. Tre optimum way 1o hold the shares w:ll be
different for each investor depending upon the frequency
and size of investrrents to be made.

Details are given below of two providers offering
shares e tne Company, hut there are many other oplions

Annua- Report & Accounts 2023

Interactive investor ('ii’)

Interactive investor provide and administer a range of
self-select investment plans, including tax-advartaged
ISAs and SIPPs {Self-Invested Personal Pension), and
Trading Accounts For more mformation, interactive
nvestor car be contacted on 0345 6067 6007, or by
VISITING www. 1l CO.Uk/

Interactive investor offer investors in the Company and
other investrent trusts a free online shareholder voting
and infarmation service that enables investors 1o recewve
shareholder communications and, if they w 1, to vote or
the shareholdings he!d ' their account

The Company is also on the interactive super 60 rated list

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited ('CT")
Columbra Threadneedle offer a number of savings

pians for adults and children, from general investrment
accounts to a range of investment 1ISAs and a Child
Trust Fund Eack product gives you the ability to

invest in a range of investment trust companies. For
more information see inside the back cover Columbia
Threadneedle can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
ctinvest.co uk.

Please remember that the value of your investments and
any mcome from them may go down as wetl as up Past
performance is not a guide to future performance. You
may not get back the amount that you invest If you are in
any doubt as to the suitability of a plan or any investmert
avalable within a plan, please take professional advice,

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS') BNP Paribas

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trast Savings by
interactive investor, ATS se:f-directed accounrts were
transferred to the interactive investor platform on
T4th Cctober 2019

In 2012 BNP Parbas closed down the part of therr
business that operated Savings Schemes and 1SAS,
Investors were given the choice of transferring their
schemes to Alliance Trust Savings (ATS)ortoa
provider of ther cwn cho ce, or to close their accounts
and sell the hoidings.

t investors did not respord to the ietters from BNP
Paribas, their accounts were transferred 1o ATS

Following tne acqgu:sition of Alllance Trust Savings by
interactve investor, ATS self directed accourts were
transferred to the interactive investor platferm on

14 Cctaber 2019
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust pic
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams

Shareholders in a number of Investment Trusts Rave
been approached as part of a share fracd where they
are informed of ar opportunity 1o sel! their shares as the
comMpany s subject to a takeover bid This is not true and
is an attempt to defraud srarenoiders The snare fiaud
also seeks payment of a commission’ by shareholders
to the parties carrying out the fraud.

Shareholders snould remain alert to this type of scam
and treat with suspicion any contact by teieprone
offering an attractive investment opportunity, such

as a premwurm price for yvour shares, or an attermpt to
convince you that payment .s required .~ order to re'ease
a settlement for your shares Trese frauds may a'sc
offer to sell your shares in companies which have litt'e or
no valce or may offer you bonus shares Tnese so caled
‘bosler room’ scars can also .nvaive an attempt to obtan
your persona’ and/or banking information w.th wnich to
commit [dentty fraud.

The calier may be friendly ard reassarmg or they May
take a more urgent tone, encodraging you to act guickly
otherw se you couid 'ose money ar miss cut on a dea’.

If you nave been contacted by ar unauthorised firm
regarding vour shares the FCA wou'd 'ike to hear
from you. You can report ar unactnonsed firm using
the FCA he pine or GB0OC 111 6768 or by visit ng trerr
website which also has other useful irformat on,

at www.fca org Lk

IFyou recerve any wnsoic'ted investment advice
rmake sure you get the correct name of the person
ard organisat or If the cals persist, rang up If yoL
dea. with ar unauthonsed firm, you w L. nct be sig h'e
1o rece've payment under te Financial Serv ces
Cormpensatior 3cheme

Please be adv sed thattre Board or tme Mar-ager wou d
“ever —ake uaso ic ted ieleprore ca' s of such a ~ature
to share~oider s

™D
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How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investiment Trust plc i1s through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your iISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing 1SAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 himp sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to Columbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime I1SA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. Invest
up tc £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £2,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a month,
CTFs with other providers can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedle.

CT General Investment Account (GIA)

This fs a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximurn contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or

£25 & month.

CT Junior Investment Account (JIA)

This is a flexible way 1o save for a child in our range of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximurm contributions, and
the plan can easily be set up under bare trust (where the child is
noted as the beneficial owner) or kept In your name if you wish
to retain control over the investment. Investmernits can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additional lurnp sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account.

Charges
Arnual management charges anc other charges apply accordingto the
tvpe of plar.
Annual account charge
INGARAVANY
FADYAT
[P H+WAT
You can pay the anndal charge from your account, or by direct debit
N adotion toary annaal subsonotoniimits),
Dealing charges
£12 per furd (reduced to £0 for deals placed through the cnime
Columbia Threadneedle Irvestor Portal} for ISA/GIALISA/SIA
and JISA. There are no dealing charges ona CTF

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not
on the reinvestment of dividends or the investment of monthly
direct debits. Government stamp duty of 0 5% also applies on

the pdrchase of shares (where applicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you

may not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Please ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant Key Features documents
before investing. For regulatory purposes, please ensure you have
read the Pre-sales Cost & Charges disclosure related to the product
you are gpolying for, and the relevant Key Information Documents
(KIDs) for the investment trusts you want to invest into.

How to invest

To open a new Coumizia Threacneedle Investments plan, apply
onine at ctinvest.co.uk

Onhne applications are not availabie !f you are transferrirg

an existing plan with another provider to Columbia Threacneedle
Investments, or if you are applying for a new plan in more than are
name but paper applications are availanie at ctinvest.co uky
documents or by contacting Columbia Threadneeale Investments
New customers

Call. 0800 336420%* = -+ 7 - e
Emailr  investrpcolumbiathreadneedle.com

Existing plan holders

Call 03456003030%* = [ -1 = To cooptn
Email. investor encuiresii-columbiathreadneedle com

Bypost:  Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited. ™ 7>
oL gt T -

nvestor enguairiescolumbiathreadneedle com

Youcana so nvestin:he Company through enme oea g pafonms for prvaie rvestors has offer shave dea ng arcd 154 Comipares ocade Barclays
Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lioyds Bank, The Share Centre

* The CTF and JISA accounts are opened nthe chid's name and they have access tothe money atage 18

= Carls may be recorded or montared for tram ng and qualry purposes

Tofind nutmione, v 1 ctinvest,co,uk

03456003030 & 00am — 5 G0pm weekdays, ca s iay betecorded oo oreu for ran ngand qua’ ™y parpases

2022 Co anba Threadnged ¢ nvesirients Cowriba Tine

needl.e nvesimenis s che globs brand name

of e Court a and Thresdneedie group of compancs 1 narsa promaeions argissued foraket i and

OO DL EAEEs v Ce el e T e o MA P suhorsed aed rege sted nehe UK by

nforraron purpnses by Co tnnty a Theeadneed o Management - mited, suchorsed ard rege ated nthe UK by

e e 4 COLUMBIA
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